
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

AUGUST 25, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 

Outcome Statements 

 
I. Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 

 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 

 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

August 25, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Steve Husava –Northfield Hills 

Baptist Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (July), 
Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director will present a check in the 
amount of $450.88 to Ann Comiskey for Troy Community Coalition .................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – EcoMotors, 1055 
West Square Lake 1 

C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, 
1055 West Square Lake 2 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development 
(PUD-013) – West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5500 New King)    
Section 8 - O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District 3 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

D-1 No Postponed Items 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 4 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City 
Council Appointments: Parks & Recreation Board 4 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: None (b) City Council Nominations: Historic District Study 
Committee; Historical Commission; and Liquor Advisory Committee 5 

E-3 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 
League (MML) 6 

E-4 Troy Racquet Club Owner – Request to Delete Lease Provisions 6 

E-5 Library Café Space Recommendation 7 

E-6 Liquor License Ordinance Fees – Chapter 60 Amendment 7 

E-7 Request to Amend Library Fee Schedule 8 

E-8 Proposed Amendment to Troy City Code Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention 8 

CONSENT AGENDA: 8 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 8 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 9 



 

 

 -  -  

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 9 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 9 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 9 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Amendment – Proprietary Service 
Contract CLEMIS Fire Records Management System ......................................... 9 

F-5 Sole Known Supplier – Cell Phone Forensics Purchase 9 

F-6 Application for Transfer of Resort Class C License to Dhammamegha, Inc. – 72 
West Maple 10 

F-7 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival 10 

F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and 
Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-30-226-008 – Nemer Troy Place 
Equities and Troy Place Equities, LLC 11 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and 
Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-29-151-001 – Somerset Park 
Apartments, LLC 11 

F-10 Request for Acceptance of Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and 
Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-30-228-002 – Somerset 
Collection Limited Partnership 11 

F-11 Troy Daze Festival Parking Services 12 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 12 

a) Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast 
Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), 
Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731) – September 8, 2008 .................. 12 

G-2 Memorandums: 12 

a) Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance ............................................................... 12 



 

 

 -  -  

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 12 

H-1 Proposed Resolution Authorizing Staff to Draft Information Regarding Ballot 
Proposal as Requested by Council Member Robin Beltramini 12 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 13 

REPORTS: 13 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 4, 2008 ............. 13 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 4, 2008 ............. 13 

c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Amended/Final – June 11, 
2008 ................................................................................................................... 13 

d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 9, 2008 ............ 13 

e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – July 15, 2008 ........................................... 13 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 22, 2008 ................................ 13 

g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 22, 2008 ................................ 13 
h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 11, 2008.......................................... 13 

i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – August 12, 2008 ...................................... 13 

J-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) Customer Solutions Monthly Report – July, 2008............................................... 13 
b) Purchasing Department/Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – 

July, 2008 ........................................................................................................... 13 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter from Pat Anlishiv Commending Lifeguards .............................................. 13 

b) Letter of Thanks to Detective Pokley from Dale and Debbie Bise Regarding 
the Effort and Assistance Received on a Case .................................................. 13 

c) Letter of Thanks to Officer Andy Breidenich from Hannah Mae Russ 
Regarding the Time Taken to Educate for Daisy Scout Petal ............................ 13 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 14 

a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #08125 – Michigan’s 
Structural Deficit ................................................................................................. 14 

J-5  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Amber Creek East 
Apartments v. City of Troy 14 



 

 

 -  -  

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Proposed Consolidation 
and Redraft of Municipal Solid Waste and Littering Ordinances 14 

STUDY ITEMS: 14 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 14 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 14 

CLOSED SESSION: 14 

L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Attorney as Permitted by 
Council Resolution #2008-07-233 14 

RECESSED 14 

RECONVENED 14 

ADJOURNMENT 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

Monday, September 8, 2008 ................................................................................... 15 

1. Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast 
Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), 
Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731) .................................................... 15 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, September 8, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................ 15 

Monday, September 22, 2008 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 
Monday, October 6, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 15 
Monday, October 20, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................. 15 

Monday, November 10, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 15 
Monday, November 24, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 15 
Monday, December 1, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................. 15 
Monday, December 15, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 15 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Steve Husava –Northfield Hills 

Baptist Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (July), Carol 
Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director will present a check in the amount of $450.88 to 
Ann Comiskey for Troy Community Coalition 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – EcoMotors, 1055 West 

Square Lake  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for EcoMotors International, for property known as 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, MI 
48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-
06-238; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 

C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, 

1055 West Square Lake 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on August 
25, 2008, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1055 
West Square Lake, Troy MI, 48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002;  
 
WHEREAS, An application has been submitted by EcoMotors International,  for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, 
MI 48098, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on August 25, 
2008, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 
EcoMotors International, at 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098 may have the effect of 
substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of 
the taxing unit; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, at 1055 
West Square Lake Troy, MI 48098 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 

Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, Inc., at 1055 
West Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098, Parcel #88-20-08-227-004, for personal property for a term 

of twelve (12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and EcoMotors International, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and EcoMotors, 

International, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 

 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

No: 
 

C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development 

(PUD-013) – West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5500 New King)    

Section 8 - O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner Tinelle Properties, LLC has requested Concept Development Plan 
approval, pursuant to article 35.50.01, for Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development (PUD-013), 
located on the west side of Crooks and north side of New King, in Section 8, within the O-M 
zoning district, being approximately 6.16 acres in size;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Concept Development 
Plan on July 8, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 35.30.00; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development, parcel 88-20-08-276-002, is described 
in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached boundary survey drawing:  
 
 T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 8 
 

Beginning at a Point N 02°30'26" W, 224.14 ft. along the section line in Crooks Rd. and 
S 87°29'34" W, 90.00 ft. to the West right-of-way line, from the East ¼ corner of said 
Section 8;  thence S 87°29'34" W, 248.90 ft.;  thence 554.06 ft. along the arc of a curve 
to the right (chord bearing N 47°30’51” W, 498.81 ft., radius 352.68 ft.);  thence N 
02°30’26” W, 137.51 ft.;  thence N 87°29'34" E, 601.65 ft.;  thence S 02°30’26” E, 
490.18 ft. along the west right-of-way line of said Crooks Road (150 ft. wide) to the Point 
of Beginning.  Containing ±6.16 acres, more or less, and subject to easements of record. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Planning Director and 
City Clerk to take whatever actions are necessary pursuant to the City Ordinance to effect the 
rezoning of the subject parcel to PUD; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-013; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 

Planned Unit Development Agreement and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the Planned Unit Development Agreement for Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development 

on behalf of the City, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the recording of 
the executed Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development Agreement with the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept 
Development Plan for Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development and the petitioner is hereby 
permitted to submit Preliminary Development Plans pursuant to Article 35.50.02 of Chapter 39. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 

Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City 

Council Appointments: Parks & Recreation Board 

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments – No appointments scheduled 

 
(b) City Council Appointments  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular: 3-Year Terms) (1-Troy School Board: 1-Year Term)  
(1-Troy Daze Committee: 1-Year Term ) (1-Adv. Comm. for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Term) 

 
Gary Hauff – Troy School District Representative       Term Expires 07/31/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: None (b) City Council Nominations: Historic District Study 

Committee; Historical Commission; and Liquor Advisory Committee    

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations – No nominations scheduled 
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council  hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Historic District Study Committee  
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular-Ad Hoc);  (1 Member from Historic District Comm.); 

(1 Member from Historic District Commission;  

  

 Ad Hoc 

  

Historical Commission  
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms  
  

 Term Expires 07/31/11 

  

Liquor Advisory Committee  

Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms  

  

Student Term Expires 07/31/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 

League (MML) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES _________________________ as 

Principal Official Representative (Official Voting Delegate) and hereby DESIGNATES 
________________________ as the Alternate Official Representative (Official Alternate Voting 
Delegate) to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Business Meeting of the Michigan 
Municipal League to be held October 1 through October 4, 2008 on Mackinaw Island, Michigan.  
 
Yes:  
No:  
 

E-4 Troy Racquet Club Owner – Request to Delete Lease Provisions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

(a) Proposed Resolution to Deny the Request to Amend the Lease 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DENIES the request by the Troy Racquet Club to 
amend the lease eliminating the provisions that allow for termination without cause. 

 
OR 

 
(b) Proposed Resolution to Direct Staff to Draft Amendment to Lease 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS staff to draft an amendment eliminating 
the provisions that allow for termination without cause. 
 
Yes: 
No:  
 

E-5 Library Café Space Recommendation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, On December 3, 2007, a one-year contract for Library Café Services based upon 
new terms and conditions was approved to Zeyn Francis of Troy, MI, (Resolution # 2007-12-
345-F17); and 
 
WHEREAS, Zeyn Francis has defaulted on the contract due to closing the café without notice 
prior to the contract expiration of December 31, 2008;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 

contract for Library Café Services from Zeyn Francis, and hereby AUTHORIZES the space to 
be reconfigured at the Troy Public Library known as Steamers Café for use as a multi-purpose 
room that includes a vending café and the Friends of the Troy Public Library Gift Shop. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Liquor License Ordinance Fees – Chapter 60 Amendment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Section 60.03, as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 

E-7 Request to Amend Library Fee Schedule 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the revisions to the Troy Public Library 
Schedule of Library Fees as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and said fee revisions shall apply as of 
January 1, 2009. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-8 Proposed Amendment to Troy City Code Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Chapter 93 of 
the Troy City Code as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 

Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of August 11, 2008 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 

 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Amendment – Proprietary Service Contract 

CLEMIS Fire Records Management System                 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the five-year proprietary interlocal 
service agreement with Oakland County for participation in the Oakland County Fire Records 
Management System to an estimated total cost of $25,750.00 expiring December 31, 2009. 
 

F-5 Sole Known Supplier – Cell Phone Forensics Purchase 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 
WHEREAS, Cell phone forensics is a growing field within law enforcement used to substantiate 
a claim of criminal activity;  
 
WHEREAS, Recovery of evidence from cell phones is a very complicated activity that requires 
specialized training, and specific hardware and software used to retrieve the evidence;   
 
WHEREAS, In order to build a forensics lab capable of handling the majority of cell phones on 
the market at this time, several software and hardware applications are needed; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, Teel Technologies is the only company that currently sells all the software and 
hardware applications the Troy Police Department has determined necessary to build a cell 
phone forensics lab in one package; 
  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
purchase forensic hardware, software, and services from Teel Technologies of Norwalk, CT, for 
an estimated total cost of $36,050.23, as detailed on the quote dated July 15, 2008, a copy of 

which is ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, plus ongoing license renewals, 
updates and technical support as needed.   
 

F-6 Application for Transfer of Resort Class C License to Dhammamegha, Inc. – 72 

West Maple  
 

(a) Transfer of Resort Class C License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Dhammamegha, Inc. to transfer ownership of the 2008 Resort Class C licensed business, 
issued under MCL 436.1531 (2), with Official Permit (Food), from Priya Enterprises, Inc., 
located at 72 West Maple, Troy, MI, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-08- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Dhammamegha, Inc. to transfer ownership of the 2008 Resort Class C licensed business, 
issued under MCL 436.1531 (2), with Official Permit (Food), from Priya Enterprises, Inc., 

located at 72 West Maple, Troy, MI, Oakland County, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor 

and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber 
Fireworks Productions, of Kingsbury, IN for the display of fireworks at the conclusion of the 
2008 Troy Daze Festival on September 14, 2008. 
 

F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and 

Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-30-226-008 – Nemer Troy Place 

Equities and Troy Place Equities, LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk 
from property owner Nemer Troy Place Equities, LLC and Troy Place Equities, LLC, having 
Sidwell # 88-20-30-226-008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and 

Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-29-151-001 – Somerset Park 

Apartments, LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk 
from property owner Somerset Park Apartments, LLC, having Sidwell # 88-20-29-151-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Request for Acceptance of Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and 

Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-30-228-002 – Somerset Collection 

Limited Partnership 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk 
from property owner Somerset Collection Limited Partnership, having Sidwell # 88-20-30-228-
002; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

F-11 Troy Daze Festival Parking Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a three-year contract to furnish 
parking services as outlined in the Troy Daze Festival Parking Agreement with the Troy Police 
Explorers Post 1950 at an annual cost of $4,500.00 for 2008, 2009, and 2010, plus a $500.00 
bonus if revenues of the annual event exceed expenses by $500.00 or more; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the contract is CONTINGENT upon the Explorer’s 
submission of acceptable insurance certificate(s) and all other specified requirements, and 

Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast Corner of 
Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), Section 23 – B-1 to H-S 
(File Number Z-731) – September 8, 2008        

    

G-2 Memorandums:   

a) Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance   
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Proposed Resolution Authorizing Staff to Draft Information Regarding Ballot 

Proposal as Requested by Council Member Robin Beltramini  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, It is anticipated that the citizen initiated charter amendment petition to add Section 
9.16.5 to the Troy Charter will be approved by the Attorney General and the Governor of the 
State of Michigan for placement on the November 4, 2008 ballot;  
  

WHEREAS, The City's past practice has been to authorize City Administration to prepare a 
frequently asked questions factual information sheet or other similar educational piece about 
the ballot proposal, which would first be submitted to the City Council for review and approval, 
as well as direction as to the distribution of the educational materials, which could be done 
through the inclusion on the City's web site and/or the printing and distribution and/or mailing of 
the neutral educational material to the voters of the City of Troy;   
  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

WHEREAS, Troy City Council is interested in providing neutral educational information to the 
voters about the November 2008 ballot questions; and  
  

WHEREAS, It is in the City's best interest to hire outside experts to prepare such neutral 
educational materials concerning the November 4, 2008 ballot questions;   
  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City 
Attorney to hire outside legal counsel, at a cost not to exceed $10,000.00 (inclusive of all costs 
and consultants deemed necessary by outside legal counsel), to prepare factual neutral 
information about the ballot proposal for the November 2008 ballot, which shall be presented to 
the Troy City Council for its review and approval and direction as to distribution at the earliest 
opportunity; and   
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to 
provide any necessary assistance or factual information for the preparation of such neutral 
educational materials, as requested by the outside legal counsel or any consultant retained by 
outside legal counsel to assist with the neutral educational materials.    
 
Yes: 
No: 
  

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 

   

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 4, 2008  

b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 4, 2008  

c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Amended/Final – June 11, 2008  

d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 9, 2008  

e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – July 15, 2008  

f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 22, 2008  

g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 22, 2008  

h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 11, 2008 

i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – August 12, 2008 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Customer Solutions Monthly Report – July, 2008  

b) Purchasing Department/Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – July, 2008 
  

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter from Pat Anlishiv Commending Lifeguards  

b) Letter of Thanks to Detective Pokley from Dale and Debbie Bise Regarding the Effort 
and Assistance Received on a Case 

c) Letter of Thanks to Officer Andy Breidenich from Hannah Mae Russ Regarding the Time 
Taken to Educate for Daisy Scout Petal 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   

a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #08125 – Michigan’s Structural 
Deficit  

 

J-5  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Amber Creek East 

Apartments v. City of Troy 
 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Proposed Consolidation 

and Redraft of Municipal Solid Waste and Littering Ordinances  

   

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Attorney as Permitted by 

Council Resolution #2008-07-233 
 

RECESSED 

 

RECONVENED 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 25, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, September 8, 2008 
1. Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast 

Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), Section 
23 – B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731)   
 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, September 8, 2008 ..................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 22, 2008 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 6, 2008 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 20, 2008 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, November 10, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, November 24, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 1, 2008 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 15, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 

 
 
August 25, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for EcoMotors, International, 1055 W Square Lake  
 
 
Background: 
 
 EcoMotors, International is requesting the creation of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 

1055 W. Square Lake, in order to apply for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC), for 
tax abatement at the same location. 

 
EcoMotors has licensed with Advanced Propulsion Technologies (APT) to further develop for 
commercial use, the Opposed-Piston-Opposed-Cylinder (OPOC) engine that was developed for 
Military use. 
 
Their intent is to have a mid size demonstrator automobile, achieving 100 miles per gallon, out by 
February of 2010.   
 
They are a very well funded firm, intent on hiring the best engineers in the area, and have 
specifically targeted this area for the sheer volume of engineering expertise that are no longer 
working in the automobile industry. 
 
They currently have 7 employees in Troy, and another 7 in California.  They plan to add 157 new 
jobs to Troy with this project. 
 
They intend to occupy the 30,000 square foot engineering building at 1055 W. Square Lake 
(formerly occupied by Hi-Lex). 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

Financial Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

CampbellLD
Text Box
C-01



 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $3,548,100 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $157,714.59, of which $49,997.65 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $78,857.29 in total taxes, of which $24,998.83 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\EcoMotors\CouncilPakIDD PH 



Michigan Department of Treasury
1012 (Rev. 5-07)

Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate
Issued under authority of Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended. Filing is mandatory.

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments (three complete sets) with the clerk of the 

local government unit. The State Tax Commission (STC) requires two complete sets (one original and one copy). One copy is retained

by the clerk. If you have any questions regarding the completion of this form or would like to request an informational packet, call (517) 

373-3272.

Signature of Clerk

1a. Company Name (Applicant must be the occupant/operator of the facility)

1c. Facility Address (City, State, ZIP Code) (real and/or personal property location) 1d. City/Township/Village (indicate which) 1e. County

1b. Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code - Sec. 2(10) (4 or 6 Digit Code)

2. Type of Approval Requested

New (Sec. 2(4))

Speculative Building (Sec. 3(8))

Research and Development (Sec. 2(9))

Rehabilitation (Sec. 3(1))

Transfer (1 copy only)

3a. School District where facility is located 3b. School Code

4. Amount of years requested for exemption (1-12 Years)

5. Per section 5, the application shall contain or be accompanied by a general description of the facility and a general description of the proposed use of the facility, the general
nature and extent of the restoration, replacement, or construction to be undertaken, a descriptive list of the equipment that will be part of the facility.  Attach additional page(s) if
more room is needed.

6a. Cost of land and building improvements (excluding cost of land)

6b. Cost of machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures

6c. Total Project Costs

* Attach list of improvements and associated costs. 
* Also attach a copy of building permit if project has already begun.

* Attach itemized listing with month, day and year of beginning of installation, plus total

Real Property Costs

Personal Property Costs

Total of Real & Personal Costs

7. Indicate the time schedule for start and finish of construction and equipment installation. Projects must be completed within a two year period of the effective date of the 
certificate unless otherwise approved by the STC.

Real Property Improvements

Personal Property Improvements

Owned Leased

Owned Leased

9. No. of existing jobs at this facility that will be retained as a result of this project. 10. No. of new jobs at this facility expected to create within 2 years of completion.

Begin Date (M/D/Y) End Date (M/D/Y)

12a. Check the type of District the facility is located in:

12b. Date district was established by local government unit (contact local unit) 12c. Is this application for a speculative building (Sec. 3(8))?

Date received by Local Unit

To be completed by Clerk of Local Government Unit

APPLICANT INFORMATION
All boxes must be completed.

8. Are State Education Taxes reduced or abated by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC)? If yes, applicant must attach a signed MEDC Letter of 

Commitment to receive this exemption. Yes No

11. Rehabilitation applications only: Complete a, b and c of this section. You must attach the assessor's statement of SEV for the entire plant rehabilitation district and 
obsolescence statement for property. The Taxable Value (TV) data below must be as of December 31 of the year prior to the rehabilitation.

a. TV of Real Property (excluding land)

b. TV of Personal Property (excluding inventory)

c. Total TV

Industrial Development District Plant Rehabilitation District

Yes No

Application Number Date Received by STC

STC Use Only

* Round Costs to Nearest Dollar

EcoMotors International 3714

1055 W. Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098 City of Troy Oakland

Troy 63150

12

The planned technical facility will house the technical research staff and laboratories for EcoMotors International.  At 

maturity the center will providemaore than 160 new jobs, have a laboratory that will include at least 2 dynamometer 

cells, and a garage facility that will have 4-6 hoists.  See attachments for additional details.

$0.00

$3,548,100.00

$3,548,100.00

12/1/08 12/31/10

6/1/08 12/31/10

7 157

8/25/08

licarila
Text Box
06/12/08



licarila
Text Box































Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.
LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
EcoMotors International

licarila
Text Box
Leger A. (Nino) Licari





                                
 

 
 
 
 

2401 West Big Beaver Rd. #100 • Troy, MI 48084 • USA • phone 248.643.8800 • fax 248.643.8855 • www.ecomotors.com 

 

EcoMotors International was incorporated in the State of Delaware on January 9, 2008.  Khosla 
Ventures (Menlo Park, CA) became the lead investor on February 9, 2008.  Near-term, EcoMotors 
will build a company to commercialize the Opposed-Piston-Opposed-Cylinder (OPOC) engine 
technology, with the near-term objective of building, by February of 2010, a demonstrator vehicle 
capable of achieving 100mpg.  

The OPOC engine is a new mechanical power system.  The design is based on the Opposed Piston 
Opposed Cylinder engine that was developed for the military by Advanced Propulsion 
Technologies (APT).  EcoMotors has entered into a License Agreement with APT under which 
further development of the OPOC technology for commercial applications will proceed. 
 
The base design (shown below) is highly flexible and can be: 
• Adapted to utilize any combustion system (i.e. compression ignition, spark ignition, etc.) 
• Operated on a wide variety of fuels 
• Sized for a wide array of product lines 

 
 

 
 
 
 

EcoMotors is currently headquartered in Troy, Michigan, with a staff of 7 management and 
product development engineers.  In addition to the Troy facilities, the company has an R&D center 
in Goleta, California, which also currently employs 7 people. 

With the recent approval of a $6.3MIL MEGA Tax Credit, EcoMotors plans to construct a new 
Technical Center in Troy Michigan.  With a capital investment exceeding $7MIL and creation of 
approximately 156 new jobs, EcoMotors will put in place the technical team and facilities 
necessary to develop the demonstrator vehicle, and to spearhead the development of large scale 
commercialization of the product as early as 2011/12. 
       June 2008 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

6/13/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

6/13/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



Legal Description for : 88-20-08-226-002 
                                       1055 W Square Lake 
                                       EcoMotors 
 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 5 & 8  
PART OF SE 1/4 SEC 5 &  
PART OF NE 1/4 SEC 8  
BEG AT PT DIST  
S 87-05-55 W 125 FT  
FROM NE COR OF SEC 8,  
TH S 02-30-26 E 241.27 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO LEFT,  
RAD 2973.79 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 77-41-27 W 491.32 FT,  
DIST OF 491.89 FT,  
TH N 02-30-26 W 109.23 FT,  
TH N 74-08-01 E 67.20 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT,  
RAD 1234.77 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 76-54-55 E 119.86 FT,  
DIST OF 119.91 FT,  
TH N 79-41-50 E 130.93 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT,  
RAD 1034 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 82-27-57 E 99.88 FT,  
DIST OF 99.92 FT,  
TH N 85-14-03 E 62.30 FT,  
TH S 02-48-28 E 60.10 FT  
TO BEG.                   2.26 A 
6-25-01 FR 08-226 -001 & 20-05-480-001 



Market Value 3,548,100 3,252,543 2,710,670 2,033,273 1,355,787 791,101 395,709 164,971 55,034 13,775 2,300 193 0
50% of Value 1,774,050 1,626,272 1,355,335 1,016,637 677,893 395,551 197,854 82,486 27,517 6,888 1,150 96 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 1,626,272 1,355,335 1,016,637 677,893 395,551 197,854 82,486 27,517 6,888 1,150 96 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59500 $967.63 $806.42 $604.90 $403.35 $235.35 $117.72 $49.08 $16.37 $4.10 $0.68 $0.06 $0.00
County 4.64610 $7,555.82 $6,297.02 $4,723.40 $3,149.56 $1,837.77 $919.25 $383.24 $127.85 $32.00 $5.34 $0.45 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $5,478.91 $4,566.12 $3,425.05 $2,283.82 $1,332.61 $666.57 $277.89 $92.71 $23.20 $3.88 $0.32 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $2,576.66 $2,147.39 $1,610.76 $1,074.05 $626.71 $313.48 $130.69 $43.60 $10.91 $1.82 $0.15 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 5.28560 $8,595.82 $7,163.76 $5,373.53 $3,583.07 $2,090.72 $1,045.78 $435.99 $145.44 $36.40 $6.08 $0.51 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.13000 $6,716.50 $5,597.53 $4,198.71 $2,799.70 $1,633.62 $817.14 $340.67 $113.65 $28.45 $4.75 $0.40 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $623.02 $519.23 $389.47 $259.70 $151.54 $75.80 $31.60 $10.54 $2.64 $0.44 $0.04 $0.00
City 9.28000 $15,091.80 $12,577.51 $9,434.39 $6,290.85 $3,670.71 $1,836.09 $765.47 $255.36 $63.92 $10.67 $0.89 $0.00
Total 29.27320 $47,606.17 $39,674.99 $29,760.21 $19,844.11 $11,579.04 $5,791.83 $2,414.62 $805.52 $201.62 $33.67 $2.82 $0.00

Total 12 Years $157,714.59
Total City 12 Yr $49,997.65

50% Total 12 Yr $78,857.29
50% Total City 12 $24,998.83 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
EcoMotors International

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement Policy Resolution  06/05/06 
 
F-5   Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and                             
Headquarters Companies 
 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) 
reducing economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial 
areas, (e) encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in 
industrial areas, and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for 
certain industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Troy, that the 
following criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in 
the review of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial 
Development Districts (IDD) by the City Council: 

 
(1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 

improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to 
be abated; and 

 
(2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to 
be abated; and  

 
(3)   That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to 

prove by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in 
compliance with the basic guidelines established above. 

 
(4)    That the company provide documentation that they are Michigan Economic 

Growth Authority (MEGA) eligible, or are moving into existing vacant 
buildings, or are retaining or expanding their job base in Troy.   

 
 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting 
the aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by 
laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
Yes:       Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini 
No:        Howrylak 
Absent:  Broomfield, Stine 



06/16/08 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
EcoMotors International, 1055 W. Square Lake, Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between EcoMotors International, (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), EcoMotors International, understands that through its 
investment of $3,548,100 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2022, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2010, EcoMotors International will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) EcoMotors International, agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
EcoMotors International, further understands that if it 
chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for 
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  EcoMotors International, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  EcoMotors International, agrees that it will operate the 

Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, August 25, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from EcoMotors, International, for the establishment of an 

Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-08-226-002  1055 W. Square Lake, Troy,  MI.  48098 

T2N, R11E, Section 8 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI  48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
1055 W SQUARE LAKE 
TROY  MI  48098 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
2401 W BIG BEAVER STE 100 
TROY  MI 48084 

 
CURT BRAINARD 
CLB BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 
PO BOX 95 
NORTHVILLE MI 48167 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  









 

 
 
August 25, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, International, 1055 W. Square Lake 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 EcoMotors intends to purchase and occupy the vacant 30,000 square foot engineering building at 

1055 W. Square Lake, as a research and development headquarters. 
 

The Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) has granted the company $6.3 million in tax 
credits.  One of the contingencies tied to these State Tax Credits is tax abatement from the City of 
Troy.   This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local City policy.  As you will 
recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction in personal property taxes that they would 
pay, over a twelve (12) year period. 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $3,548,100 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $157,714.59, of which $49,997.65 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $78,857.29 in total taxes, of which $24,998.83 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.  The company will own and occupy an existing vacant 30,000 square foot building, 
and bring in an additional 157 jobs. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the 
exemption. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

Staff recommends that the Exemption be granted for the full twelve (12) years. 
 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\EcoMotors\CouncilPakIFEC PH 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, August 25, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from EcoMotors, International, for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the following location: 

 

88-20-08-226-002  1055 W. Square Lake, Troy,  MI.  48098 

T2N, R11E, Section 8 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI  48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
1055 W SQUARE LAKE 
TROY  MI  48098 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
2401 W BIG BEAVER STE 100 
TROY  MI 48084 

 
CURT BRAINARD 
CLB BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 
PO BOX 95 
NORTHVILLE MI 48167 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 
DATE: August 12, 2008 
 

TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Concept Development Plan Approval – Troy Plaza Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 13) – West side of Crooks, North side of New King (5500 New 
King), Section 8 – O-M District 

 
 
Background: 

 

 The Planning Commission recommended Concept Development Plan Approval of PUD 13 at 
the July 8, 2008 Special/Study meeting.   

 

 The applicant proposes a mixed-use development on the 6.16-acre parcel.  The project 
includes a 5-story, 172-room hotel, with banquet facility and restaurant.  The hotel is to be 
connected via ramped skywalk to 14 extended stay suites, which are located above a 14,000 
square foot retail building (including a drive-thru).  A stand-alone 3,400 square foot retail 
building (with a drive-thru) is also proposed on the site.  Parking is to be provided using a 
combination of on-site at-grade parking, on-site decked parking, and shared spaces on 
adjacent parcels off-site. 

 

 Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, 
prepared a report summarizing the project and recommending Concept Development Plan 
Approval. 

 

 The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval of Section 35.30.00 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 

 The attached report was presented to the Planning Commission at the July 8, 2008 Regular 
meeting.   

 

 The Concept Development Plan Application was distributed to City Council prior to the August 
11, 2008 Regular meeting. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 

 Concept Development Plan Approval will have the effect of rezoning the subject parcel to PUD 
13.  

 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1 special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 

 City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval with 
conditions. 

 

 City Council can deny the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 

 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: ________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated July 1, 2008. 
3. Draft PUD Agreement. 
4. Traffic Impact Study Review prepared by HRC, dated May 5, 2008. 
5. Traffic Impact Study Review (revised) prepared by HRC, dated May 28, 2008. 
6. Planning Commission Minutes from the July 8, 2008 Regular meeting. 
7. Public comment. 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 Richard Carlisle/CWA 
 File /PUD 13 
 

G:\PUD's\PUD 013 Troy Plaza PUD\CC Public Hearing 08 25 08.doc 







JO
H

N 
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
A

M
S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



S
I75

O
FR

P

CORPORATE
N I75 ONRP

SB I-75 ONRP

S
I75

S I75 ONRP

W
Y

N
N

W
O

O
D

N
O

R
TH

F I
E

LD
PA

R
K

W
AY

HEATHERWOOD

N
I75

WAVERLY

I-75

C
R

O
O

K
S

N
E

W
K

IN
G

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED TROY PLAZA PUD
N & E SIDE OF NEW KING, W SIDE OF CROOKS (5500 NEW KING)
SEC. 8  (PUD 13) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 200 400 600100
Feet ³



S
I75

O
FR

P

CORPORATE
N I75 ONRP

SB I-75 ONRP

S
I75

S I75 ONRP

W
Y

N
N

W
O

O
D

N
O

R
TH

F I
E

LD
PA

R
K

W
AY

HEATHERWOOD

N
I75

WAVERLY

I-75

C
R

O
O

K
S

N
E

W
K

IN
G

OSC

O-M

R-C

R-1T

O-1
B-2

R-1C

E-P

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED TROY PLAZA PUD
N & E SIDE OF NEW KING, W SIDE OF CROOKS (5500 NEW KING)
SEC. 8  (PUD 13) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 200 400 600100
Feet ³



 
 
  

 Date: May 12, 2008 
Rev:   July 1, 2008 

 
Planned Unit Development/Site Plan Review 

For 
City of Troy, Michigan 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant Ron Asmar, Tinelle Properties, LLC 

Project Name: Troy Plaza PUD 

Plan Date: April 10, 2008 

Revised: June 12, 2008 

Location: 5500 New King Street, at the intersection of Crooks Road and 
Corporate Drive 

Zoning: O-M, Office Midrise 

Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City 
Council for approval of the Concept Development Plan.  The 
procedure for review and approval of a PUD is a three-step 
process:   

• The first step is an application for and approval of a 
Concept Development Plan, along with a Development 
Agreement.  The Concept Development Plan and 
Development Agreement are approved by the City Council 
following recommendation of the Planning Commission.  
Such action, if and when approved, shall confer upon the 
applicant approval of the Concept Development Plan and 
shall rezone the property to PUD in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Concept Development Plan 
approval.   

• The second step of the review and approval process is 
application for and approval of a Preliminary Development 
Plan (preliminary site plan) for the entire project, or for any 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

2 

one or more phases of the project.  City Council shall have 
the final authority to approve and grant Preliminary 
Development Plan approvals, following a recommendation 
by the Planning Commission.   

• The third step of the review and approval process is the 
review and approval of a Final Development Plan (final site 
plan) for the entire project, or for any one or more phases 
of the project, and the issuance of building permits.  Final 
Development Plans for Planned Unit Developments are 
submitted to the Planning Department for administrative 
review, and the Planning Department, with the 
recommendation of other appropriate City Departments, 
has final authority for approval of such Final Development 
Plans. 

Required Information:         Deficiencies are noted throughout this review. 

PROJECT, SITE DESCRIPTION, AND CONCEPT PLAN
 
We are in receipt of a revised full conceptual submittal for the Troy Plaza mixed use PUD at the 
corner of Crooks Road and Corporate Drive.  This revised conceptual plan has been provided in 
response to issues raised in our initial report on this project, dated May 12, 2008, a review 
provided to the City by Hubbell Roth and Clark, and the items discussed with the applicant at a 
meeting on May 20, 2008 at City Hall.  We provided comments on a May 22, 2008 single sheet 
submittal demonstrating potential changes to the site plan in a memo dated May 28, 2008.  The 
new full submittal incorporates changes demonstrated in the May 22 single sheet submittal.   
 
Since the original full submittal, the applicant has made a number of changes to the conceptual 
plans that include: 
 
• The proposed central driveway has been changed to two-way traffic for the entire length 

from the north to south boundary of the project.  We support this change in that it will 
better allow for loading and unloading for the mixed-use building, safer entry and exit for 
the drive-through lanes, and a more logical and practical layout. 

• The stacking lanes and circulation pattern for the proposed stand-alone building at the 
southeast corner of the property has been revised; it is now a 360 degree drive-through 
design, separating it from the other drove through stacking area along the west façade of 
the mixed-use building.  We support this change in that it will no longer be necessary to 
circle around the large mixed-use building to access the drive-through and fewer conflicts 
with the drivers accessing the mixed-use building may occur. 

• The proposed south driveway access to Corporate Drive has been moved west to expand 
the distance between the driveway and Crooks Road.  This has also resulted in a 
reconfiguration of the driveway in the southern portion of the property, separating it from 
the parking lot at the southeast corner of the project.  This has allowed the drive-through 
to exit into a parking area rather than the main north-south drive.   



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

3 

• The south driveway on New King Street has been relocated to be directly opposite the 
existing driveway on the west side of New King Street, resulting in a minor 
reconfiguration of the parking area there.  

• The sidewalk network has been slightly revised in keeping with other changes and is now 
less impacted by the proposed drive-throughs as a result of their reconfiguration. 

• A portion of the proposed parking spaces within parking easements on adjacent 
properties has been reduced to 306 spaces; however, the plans now indicate that 150 of 
those spaces will be available starting at 5 p.m. 

The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) includes a 172 room hotel tower with a 
restaurant and banquet facility, a 14,000 square foot retail building with a drive through and 28 
extended stay suites above, and a separate 3,400 square foot drive through restaurant building.  
The site is currently occupied by a vacant single-story structure and a surface parking lot.  The 
site is 6.16 acres in area.  The project is proposed in two phases. 
 
Located on a site that is currently unused, the proposed project could supply lodging and meeting 
space for Troy businesses.  While hotels and motels are permitted in the O-M District as uses 
subject to special use approval; they must meet a series of conditions.  If developed under 
conventional zoning as a special land use, a hotel in the O-M District, they must be on a 5 acre or 
larger site, must have no less than 200 rooms or suites, have meeting room facilities 
accommodating 800 persons, and restaurant facilities accommodating a minimum of 250 
persons.  The 172 hotel rooms and 28 extended stay suites allow the project to meet the 
minimum number of rooms, and the site is over 5 acres in area.  However, the proposed 
restaurant would house only 102 customers, and the proposed banquet facilities would 
accommodate only 700, therefore the project could not be permitted as proposed under current 
zoning. 
 
The retail portion of the project would be permitted as a principal permitted use in the O-M 
District. While restaurants are also permitted in the O-M District, drive through facilities are not 
allowed, and therefore the retail and restaurant portion of the project could not be permitted as 
designed under the current zoning. 
 
The project would also require a series of deviations from the dimensional and parking 
requirements of the O-M District.  Given these proposed use and dimensional deviations, the 
applicant has elected to pursue PUD approval for this project. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE
 
The site is located within an existing O-M zone.  A similar O-M District is located immediately 
south of the site across Corporate Drive.  Two larger OSC District areas are situated on the north 
and south sides of the Interstate 75 interchange ramps on the east side of Crooks Road.  The area 
to the north and to the west, across New King Street are zoned R-C, Research Center District. 
 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

4 

Nearby land uses include a variety of office and research center uses, a small collection of retail 
establishments, and the Interstate.  There are also existing hotels to the east on either side of the 
Interstate 75 ramp.  A residential area is located to the west, on the opposite side of the office 
development immediately west of the site. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The Master Plan designations for the site and surrounding area largely replicate current zoning.  
The subject site and immediate surrounding area is designated Office Research.  Across 
Corporate Drive to the south is a small area planned for Office Service use.  A combination of 
Mid-Rise Office, High-Rise Office, and Office/Research is located immediately east of the site 
across Crooks Road, surrounding the Interstate 75 ramp.  Two elements of the proposed 
combination of uses, a hotel and retail, would be permitted as a special use and permitted use in 
the zoning districts associated with this future land use category, however, the drive through 
restaurants would not be permitted.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
PUD STANDARDS  
 
The PUD provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are found in article XXXV.  Criteria are set forth 
in Section 35.30.00 for consideration of a PUD project as a PUD.  The following are our 
comments: 
 
Section 35.30.00, A.  The proposed development shall be applied for by a person or entity that 
has the legal right to execute a binding agreement concerning all process on the development. 
 
The application lists the owner as Ron Asmar, the applicant. 
 
Section 35.30.00, B.:  The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, 
the development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following objectives, as are 
reasonably applicable to the site, providing:  
 
1.  A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without the use of the PUD 

provided that other objectives of this Article are also met.  

The project includes a mix of uses.  Given the current underlying zoning, O-M District, 
hotels and motels are permitted as a use subject to special use and retail and restaurant 
uses could be permitted as principal uses.  However, conditions and specific 
requirements for these uses would not permit them to be developed as designed in this 
proposal without the PUD option. 

2.  A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, transportation, safety and 
security) which will enhance, add to or replace those provided by public entities, thereby 
furthering the public health, safety and welfare.  



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

5 

The proposed hotel use does not constitute a public facility dedicated towards recreation 
transportation, safety or security.  While the addition of a hotel use in the area may be a 
welcome addition for the adjacent office developments, and could contribute to the 
overall health of the surrounding development there, it does not specifically provide a 
public benefit which will directly enhance add to or replace those provided by public 
entities, thereby furthering the public health, safety and welfare. 

3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and to the 
community, where such benefit would otherwise be infeasible or unlikely to be achieved 
absent these regulations.   

The addition of a hotel in this area would contribute to the overall well being of the 
large-scale office developments in the area, as it would provide lodging for visiting 
professionals.  This is especially true given the project’s walkable design, easily access, 
and inclusion of a collection of restaurants and retail uses for visitors.   

This project also includes a collection of other restaurant uses and retail spaces.  The 
proposed mix of uses increases overall benefit of the project overall by providing dining 
and service, all within walking distance.   The proposed combination of uses will be 
unable to meet all parking and dimensional requirements of the Ordinance under 
conventional zoning.   

4. Long term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural features, and historic 
and cultural resources, of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of protection or 
preservation, and which would otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent 
these regulations.  

The site is currently developed.  The development would improve this condition by 
adding open space, landscaping, and stormwater management benefits.  

5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or pedestrian amenities.   

The project would improve on the existing conditions in this regard and does include 
small pockets of open space and landscaped areas. While it does not provide a great deal 
of open space, it does make effective use of the remaining open areas for stormwater 
management and for landscape features.   

The project does include a useful pedestrian network, connecting the primary hotel to the 
extended stay suites via a skywalk.  It also allows for effective, safe pedestrian access 
between the hotel and retail components, using a traffic island for a pedestrian respite 
point in order to bridge across the area adjacent the corner of the proposed stacking 
lanes.  Given the high vehicle traffic likely to use this area, the surface pedestrian 
network takes an acceptable route between these major components of the site plan.  
Complements by the proposed skywalk, effective cross-access should be accommodated.  
The project also includes sidewalks around its entire perimeter, adequately connected to 
the uses within. 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding properties.  

 Given the nonresidential character of the area, we do not believe that any land use 
transition issues will be created by the development of a hotel, retail, and restaurants at 
this location and that the proposed project would be largely compatible with the overall 
area in terms of use. 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

6 

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low impact design, which 
will promote and encourage energy conservation and sustainable development.  

The project narrative and conceptual plan indicates that the project intends to promote 
green building techniques and low impact design.  The conceptual plan indicates that 
green roofs will be part of the final design and that the project designers will seek LEED 
Certification for the project.  Another benefit is the redevelopment of an underutilized 
surface parking lot and vacant building for a positive economic return, and which will 
improve the condition of the site with regard to permeability and stormwater 
management.  The project includes bioswales designed to assist with pretreatment of 
stormwater runoff.  Given the conceptual level of detail offered with this submittal, it is 
unclear what other green development practices are proposed by the applicant. 

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and materials.  

 The proposed PUD includes a hotel connected via a skyway to the upper level of a three-
story structure.  The connected upper level will house extended stay units, and will be 
located above retail and restaurant uses.  The site plan includes an integrated parking 
structure, a thorough pedestrian network, and unprogrammed open space with distinct 
landscape features.  This approach creates a compact, integrated development that 
maximizes the use of the property. 

9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is compact, designed to 
human scale, and exhibits contextual integration of buildings and city spaces.   

 As noted in the previous response, this project does have a strong emphasis on street 
activity, mixed use, and pedestrians.  It is designed to provide a gateway into the City of 
Troy and create a visually memorable landmark for the Interstate 75 exit.  The proposed 
building designs are appropriate.  The project provides an opportunity to maximize the 
impact this site has on the City, and bring maximum visibility to the uses on the site and 
in the immediate area. 

10.  The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation system and enhance non-
motorized facilities and amenities.   

The City of Troy has retained a traffic consultant to provide a detailed review with 
regard to traffic impact and mitigation measures.  Please refer to the section of this 
report entitled “site access and circulation.”   

11.  For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement and/or improvement of 
existing sites that are occupied by obsolete uses and/or structures;  

 This project will be redeveloping what is a vacant structure and parking lot.  Therefore, 
the project does allow for the positive redevelopment of an obsolete use.   

12.  A complementary variety of housing types that are in harmony with adjacent uses;  

No permanent housing is proposed as part of this project. 

13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an obsolete building or 
structure.  

Please refer to comment #11 above. 

14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article; and will promote 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

7 

the intent of the plan meeting the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act or the 
intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If conditions have changed since the 
plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans, were adopted, the uses shall be 
consistent with recent development trends in the area.  

As mentioned earlier, the proposed project represents a use which is complementary to 
the primary future land use designation for the area, and therefore meets the Master 
Land Use Plan designation.  

15.  Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to structures, heights, 
setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, amenities and other design and 
layout features, exhibiting a due regard for the relationship of the development to the 
surrounding properties and uses thereon, as well as to the relationship between the 
various elements within the proposed Planned Unit Development. In determining whether 
these relationships have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall be given to the 
following: 

A.  The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the proposed structures and 
other site improvements.   

 The site plan includes conceptual drawings of the proposed buildings, but 
detailed drawings that adequately describe materials of constriction have not yet 
been provided.  The hotel tower and retail buildings appear to make extensive use 
of glass curtain walls and stone. 

B.  The location and screening of vehicular circulation and parking areas in relation 
to surrounding properties and the other elements of the development.   

The project incorporates parking all around its perimeter.  Two rows of parking 
are situated along Crooks Road.  We support the incorporation of a parking 
structure and the concealment of the service drive and stacking areas for the 
proposed drive through uses. 

C.  The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or 
work areas, and mechanical equipment.   

Typical screening measures are shown on the site plan in the landscaping plans 
and detail sheets.  Dumpster pads and loading and unloading areas as integrated 
throughout the project in accessible but unobtrusive areas. 

D.  The hours of operation of the proposed uses.  

Hours of operation for hotel uses are 24 hours a day, with typical busy times in 
the check-in and check-out windows.  The retail and restaurant uses will likely 
have hours running until mid to late evening. 

 

E.  The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and other site amenities.   

The submittal adequately describes the proposed concept landscaping plan. 

16.  Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of uses within the 
Planned Unit Development. The sharing of parking among the various uses within a 
Planned Unit Development may be permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

8 

the satisfaction of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the 
development and will not impair the functioning of the development, and will not have a 
negative effect on traffic flow within the development and/or on properties adjacent to 
the development.   

 Please refer to the section of this report entitled Parking and Loading.  The project relies 
heavily on landbanked and shared parking to meet minimum requirements and 
anticipated demand. 

17.  Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water quality shall be 
considered in the design of the stormwater system.  

As indicated earlier, the project does include bioswales.  The project also includes a 
detention basin and an underground stormwater storage area to accommodate large rain 
events.  The inclusion of green roofs in the project will also reduce the rate of stormwater 
runoff. 

18.  The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with all applicable 
Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, and shall coordinate with existing public 
facilities.   

On the basis of the information provided all applicable laws and ordinances will be 
observed. 

 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS
 
The site slopes from west to east, allowing the buildings to be situated with offset heights.  That 
is, the first story of the hotel building would connect via a skywalk to the second story of the 
extended stay suite and retail mixed use building.   
 
The applicant has outlined a series of estimated anticipated deviations from the underlying 
dimensional requirements of the O-M District that are requested as part of this PUD submittal.  
The anticipated deviation would be an insufficient north setback.  Only about 62 feet are 
provided, but 93 would be required, resulting in a proposed 31-foot encroachment into the 
setback along the north property boundary.  
 
The dimensional requirements and proposed dimensions are as described on the following page: 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

9 

 
 Required:  Provided:  
Lot Area 5 acres 6.16 acres 

Setbacks: 30 feet for all sides plus one additional foot for every foot in building height when 
the property abuts another non-residential property.  (If a building is five stories or 75 feet in 
height, the minimum setback is 50 feet at the 4th story and above, with an additional foot for 
every foot of height above 30 feet when abutting a non-residential property.) 

New King Frontage 

Hotel: 50 feet plus 1 foot for 
every foot above 30 feet, in this 
case, 42.33, or 43 additional feet 
(at the 4th story and above).  A 
minimum of 93 feet of setback is 
required.  For the single story 
building, 30 feet are required. 

73 feet from the banquet 
center portico (first level), 93 
feet from the main building 
The site plan meets the New 
King frontage setback. 

Crooks Frontage 

Three story mixed use building: 
30 feet plus 1 foot for every foot 
above 30 feet, in this case, 
13.33, or 14 additional feet.  A 
minimum of 44 feet of setback is 
required. For the single story 
building, 30 feet are required. 

103 feet.  The site plan meets 
the Crooks Road setback. 

North Boundary 

Hotel: 50 feet plus 1 foot for 
every foot above 30 feet, in this 
case, 42.33, or 43 additional 
feet.  A minimum of 93 feet of 
setback is required. 

62 feet.  The site plan is 
deficient 31 feet from the 
required north boundary 
setback. 

Building Height 
Minimum of 3 stories for 80 
percent of the project; setback 
requirements are tiered for building 
higher than 30 feet. 

• Hotel: 5 stories 
• Mixed use building: 3 

stories 
• Stand alone drive-through 

building: 1 story 
 

 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.  
 
PARKING, LOADING 
 
The applicant has submitted a description of proposed parking that requires the application of 
shared parking.   Given the different peak demands for parking for the hotel, retail, restaurant 
and adjacent office uses, this does likely present a good opportunity to reduce overall surface 
parking and use the shared approach.  The applicant has included a revised self-directed parking 
study in their submittal package. 
 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

10 

The applicant’s parking study and schedule provides the following information about parking for 
the proposed project: 
 
Phase 1:  
87 required spaces 
 

• Retail portion of mixed-use building: 14,000 square feet at one space per 200 square feet 
= 70 required spaces 

• Retail portion of separate retail building: 3,400 square feet at one space per 200 square 
feet = 17 required spaces 

 
97 surface spaces provided in surface lots 
 
 
Phase 2:  
695 required spaces 
 

• Hotel: 200 rooms and 18 staff = 218 spaces required 
• 102 seat restaurant at 1 space per 2 seats plus 1 space for every 10 seats = 61 spaces 
• 2,100 square foot meeting rooms: 300 seats (7 square feet per person) at one space for 

every 2 seats (150 spaces) plus one space for every ten seats (30 spaces) for 180 required 
spaces. 

• 5,900 square foot banquet rooms: 393 seats (15 square feet per person) at one space for 
every 2 seats (197 spaces) plus one space for every ten seats (40 spaces – the applicant’s 
submittal incorrectly rounds down to 39) for 237 requires spaces. 

 
611 surface spaces provided in: 

• surface lots (92 spaces) 
• garage spaces (196 spaces) 
• landbanked parking (17 spaces) 
• parking easements for shared parking (306 spaces) 

 
The total parking required for this project, including both phases, would be 782 spaces.  The 
applicant has provided 708 spaces. 
 
Given that parking for the proposed project cannot be met on the site due to constraints in the 
site’s area, the applicant intends to utilize shared parking for the project.  The proposed shared 
parking would total 306 spaces, 150 of which would be available for use between 5 p.m. and 2 
a.m. on weekdays, and 156 of which would be available between 7 p.m. and 2 a.m. on weekdays.  
All 306 spaces would be available all day and night on weekends.   
 
The applicant’s parking study, conducted by Metro Transportation Group, concludes that the 
only period when the on-site parking would be exceeded by demand is between 6 pm and 7 pm 
(a 22 space deficiency) and when the banquet facility would be in use, after 7 pm.  The study is 
based on The Institute of Transportation Engineers’ Parking Generation Manual and on the 
Urban Land Institute’s Shared Parking publication.  In the case of the latter, the study takes into 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

11 

account the time-of-day variations and peak hour demands of the proposed uses.  Even though 
the proposed parking and shared parking would not meet minimum Ordinance requirements 
under conventional zoning, this study reveals that the parking proposed under the PUD option 
would be adequate to meet anticipated demand in that the peak hours of the various uses do not 
coincide.   
 
The highest demand for parking could occur on a weeknight evening if the banquet center is 
occupied and hotel is full.  The surplus parking provided by the shared parking easement (306 
spaces) should now be sufficient to meet that peak hour demand in that a portion of those spaces 
would now be available starting at 5 p.m.   
 
The two proposed drive through lanes include stacking areas.  Both lanes provide at least 8 
stacking spaces, meeting ordinance requirements.  The applicant has significantly revised the 
layout of the proposed rive-throughs to reduce circulation conflicts and enhance efficiency.    
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION
 
The existing site is served by a driveway on Crooks Road and a driveway on New King Street.  
The proposal includes four driveways in total, reusing the Crooks Road driveway in its current 
location.  The remaining three driveways would be along the south and west portions of the site.  
The existing driveway on New King Street would be relocated to the extreme north end of the 
site, and a new driveway would be added close to the Corporate Drive and New King Street 
intersection.  A final driveway would be added at the extreme south end of the site, off of 
Corporate Drive. 
 
The City’s traffic consultant, Hubbell Roth and Clark, issued an analysis of this project in a letter 
dated May 5, 2008.  It states that the proposed reuse of the driveway to Crooks Road would be 
acceptable, but the remaining driveways raise concerns.   
 
In response to Hubbell Roth and Clark, the applicant moved the new south driveway on New 
King Street to be directly opposite the existing driveway to the west, eliminating the potential 
inadequate offset condition.  The proposed driveway on Corporate Drive was moved west, 
further from Crooks Road.       
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
ESSENTIAL SERVICES 
 
The application includes a summary of proposed utility connections.  The applicant intends to 
connect the site to the existing 8 inch water main on New King Street and provide a loop around 
the site.  The on-site water system would then connect to the existing 12 inch water main in the 
greenbelt area along the north side of Corporate Drive. 
 
A new 8 inch sanitary sewer line will connect to the existing 8 inch sewer line in the greenbelt 
area along the north side of Corporate Drive. 



Troy Plaza PUD July 1, 2008 

12 

 
We defer to the City Engineer in this regard. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Consult with City Engineer with regard to water and sewer service. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We believe the innovative design and appropriate mix of uses included in this project largely 
complement the surrounding area.  The PUD option allows the City to permit a compact, higher-
density project that incorporates a number of complementary uses that would be highly 
beneficial in this office and research dominated area.    
 
This revised submittal has addressed our primary concerns: parking, site access and internal 
circulation, through the use of revised drives and driveways, and by revising the shared parking 
plan to make a sufficient portion of those spaces available at 5:00 p.m.  Therefore, we 
recommend the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council that the Concept 
Development Plan be approved. 
 

  
  # 225-02-2603 
 
RKC: zb 



 TROY PLAZA 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF TROY 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR “TROY PLAZA” 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

This Development Agreement (“Agreement”), dated ______________, 2008 is entered 

into by and between Tinelle Properties, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, whose 

address is 18700 W. 10 Mile Road, Southfield, Michigan (“Developer”), and the City of Troy, a 

Michigan municipal corporation,  having its principal offices at  500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, 

Michigan 48084 (“City”). 

R E C I T A L S: 

A. Developer is the owner of certain real property located in the City of Troy, 

Oakland County, Michigan, containing approximately 6.16 acres, located on the west side of 

Crooks Road and north of Corporate Drive, which is more particularly described in Exhibit A 

hereto (the “Property”). 

B. The Property contains a long-vacant and obsolete office building that has or will 

be demolished by Developer as part of the project described below. 

C. Developer petitioned for an amendment to the City’s Zoning Ordinance granting a 

rezoning of the Property to Planned Unit Development (“PUD”), in order to develop a mixed-use 

project consisting of a boutique hotel, banquet/meeting room, extended stay hotel suites and 

retail uses (the “Project” or the “Troy Plaza PUD”).  Developer has received Concept 

Development Plan approval from City Council for the rezoning of the Property to PUD as 

required by Article XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance. 



2 

D. In connection with the grant of rezoning of the Property to PUD, Section 

35.50.01 E of the City’s Zoning Ordinance requires the execution of a Planned Unit 

Development Agreement which incorporates the Concept Development Plan, including site 

plans, landscaping plans and other documents enumerated as PUD Documents, as defined below 

and which requires Concept Development Plan Approval by City Council as part of the grant of 

rezoning of the Property to PUD.  As part of Concept Development plan approval, Developer has 

offered and agreed to make the improvements and to proceed with the undertakings described in 

the PUD Documents which Developer and the City agree were necessary and roughly 

proportional to the burden imposed in order to (i) ensure  that the public services and facilities 

affected by the Project will be capable of accommodating increased services and facility loads 

caused by the Project, (ii) protect the natural environment and conserve natural resources, (iii) 

ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, (iv) promote use of the Property in a socially and 

economically desirable manner and (v) achieve other legitimate objectives authorized under the 

Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3101, et. seq. and Chapter 39, Article XXXV of the 

City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

E. For the purpose of confirming the rights, obligations and restrictions in 

connection with the improvements and development to be undertaken on the Property, once City 

Council has granted rezoning to Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development and approved this 

Agreement and the Concept Development Plan, including final site plans, landscaping plans and 

the other PUD Documents, this Agreement is effective on the date the City’s Zoning Ordinance 

is amended to grant rezoning of the Property to PUD (the “Effective Date”) and to be binding 

upon the City, the Developer, and their successors and assigns. 

NOW, THEREFORE, as an integral part of the grant of the rezoning of the Property to 

Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

 

GENERAL TERMS 

1.1 This Agreement, incorporates all PUD Documents, and shall run with the land.  

Reference in this Agreement or any PUD Documents to “Developer” shall include Developer’s 

respective successors and assigns.  It is the intent of the City and Developer to put all future 

owners of the Property or parties in interest on notice of the rights, obligations and restrictions 

contained herein by recording this Agreement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds.  The 

terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be considered “Deed Restrictions” for any 

successors or assigns of the Property, and shall be incorporated by reference in any master deed 

or other restrictions created in connection with the development and/or use of the Property. 

1.2 The Property shall be developed and improved only in accordance with the 

following, which shall be referred to herein as the “PUD Documents”: 

A. Chapter 39, ARTICLE XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, and 

amendments, if any. 



3 

B. The Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development Concept Development Plan 

Application, submitted by Developer to the Planning Department on July 

18, 2008.  Information included in the Concept Development Plan 

Application includes but is not limited to the following: 

1. The following plans prepared by Moiseev/Gordon Associates, Inc. 

(“MGA”): 

    (a) SP-1 Sheet Schedule Location Plan 

    (b) SP-2 Site Plan 

    (c) A-1 Lower Level Floor Plan 

    (d) A-2 First Floor Plan 

    (e) A-3 Typical Floor Plan 2, 3, & 4 

    (f) A-4 Fifth Floor Plan 

    (g) A-5  Retail & Extended Stay Suites Floor Plans 

    (h) A-6 South and West Elevations 

    (i) A-7 North and East Elevations 

2.  The following plans prepared by Giffels-Webster Engineers, Inc. 

(“GWE”): 

(a) SP-01 Conceptual Development Plan Cover Sheet 

(b) SP-02 Topographic Survey 

(c) SP-03 Demolition Plan 

(d) SP-04 Utility Plan 

(e) SP-05 Geometric Plan 

(f) SP-06 Preliminary Grading Plan 

(g) SP-07 Details 

(h) L-1 Landscape Plan 

C. Any and all conditions of the approval of the City Council pertaining to 

the Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development Conceptual Development Plan 

as specifically reflected in the resolution of the official minutes of the 

meeting at which such approval is granted. 



4 

D. An Affidavit of Property Ownership to be recorded with the Oakland 

County Register of Deeds prior to commencement of construction and 

prior to the sale or lease of any portion of the Project, containing the legal 

description of the entire Property, specifying the date of Concept  

Development Plan approval and rezoning of the Planned Unit 

Development by City Council, and declaring that all future development 

of the Property has been authorized, restricted and required to be carried 

out in accordance with this Agreement and the Ordinance amendment 

granting rezoning to Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development. 

1.3 The Ordinance amendment granting the Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development 

reclassifies the zoning of the Property to PUD and constitutes the land use authorization for the 

Property, and all use and improvement of the Property shall be in substantial conformity with 

such Ordinance and the PUD Documents referenced herein.   

ARTICLE II 

 

DEVELOPER’S RIGHTS, OBLIGATIONS AND PROPERTY RESTRICTIONS 

2.1 The Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) application submitted per the 

requirements of Section 35.50.02 of Chapter 39, ARTICLE XXXV of the City’s Zoning 

Ordinance, shall meet and conform to the criteria of the Conceptual Development Plan.  The 

Final Development Plan application submitted per the requirements of Section 35.50.03 of 

Chapter 39, ARTICLE XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, shall meet and conform to the 

criteria of the Conceptual Development Plan and Preliminary Development Plan.   

2.2 Developer shall have the right to develop the Property in accordance with the 

PUD Documents as per Chapter 39, ARTICLE XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  Any 

changes to the Plan shall be approved in accordance with the PUD Documents and the City’s 

Zoning Ordinance. 

2.3 The Project shall be developed in two phases. The first phase (Phase I) shall 

consist of up to 28 extended stay hotel suites, and a maximum of 17,400 square feet of retail. 

Phase I shall also include a two story parking structure , drop-offs and drive-throughs as shown 

on Sheet SP-2 Site Plan.  The second phase (Phase II) shall be a proposed 5 story full service 

hotel containing not more than 172 rooms as shown on Sheet SP-2 Site Plan, which will seat a 

102 person restaurant. Phase II shall also include a walk way connecting the Phase I 

development to the Phase II development.  

2.4 List of Conditions Offered in Exchange for PUD Consideration. As part of the 

PUD approval and as conditions of said approval and to satisfy the PUD zoning standards, 

Developer shall do the following:  (a) demolish the vacant and obsolete office building on the 

Property; (b) construct a 30’ landscaped buffer along New King Street and a 25’ landscaped 

buffer along Crooks Road; (c) minimize the amount of impervious surfaces and a “sea of 

parking” by construction and utilizing two parking decks and entering into a shared parking 

agreement binding on the parties and successors with the owners of the properties adjacent to the 

Troy Plaza PUD for 316 parking spaces as identified in the correspondence dated May 10, 2008, 



5 

and included with the PUD application; (d) integrate the various buildings and uses on the 

Property with common architectural standards and controls; (e) develop the Project using green 

building practices, including a green roof design and bioswales with native plantings; (f) erect a 

ramped skywalk between the extended stay/retail uses and the hotel, conference center and 

restaurant uses; (g) include pedestrian site amenities, including green spaces and a water feature; 

and (h) create a mixed use and integrated development by combining extended stay and retail 

uses in the same building structure.  The public benefit provided by Developer shall, in addition 

to the items set forth above, include the elimination of existing blight by redevelopment of the 

Property with desirable and compatible land uses that provide a logical transition with the 

surrounding properties, and the creation of an attractive gateway to the City of Troy. 

2.5 If the Developer should determine to sell or lease parts of the Project in the form 

of a business condominium, Developer shall submit to the Troy City Attorney the proposed 

Master Deed and Bylaws for the Project (collectively the “Master Deed”) for review and 

approval.  If the Master Deed satisfies the requirements of this Development Agreement and 

other applicable City ordinances then approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The Master 

Deed shall acknowledge that each unit owner and the Condominium Association (the 

“Association”) identified therein will be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement.  

The Master Deed shall comply with all statutes of the State of Michigan and City Ordinances and 

be recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds after the Effective Date of the 

amendment of the Zoning Ordinance to rezone the Property to PUD. 

2.6 The Master Deed shall obligate the Association to maintain the general common 

elements of the Project, as more particularly set forth in the Master Deed, in good working order 

and appearance, including, without limitation, storm water drainage and retention facilities, 

private roadways, landscaping, parking areas, sidewalks, water features, common structures and 

facilities, and common areas or elements.  In addition, the Master Deed shall provide that the 

Project is controlled by the PUD Documents.  The Master Deed shall also contain provisions for 

the performance of Developer’s maintenance obligations under this Agreement and the PUD 

Documents. 

2.7 Each unit owner in the Project shall be a member of the Association, as 

applicable, at all times during the term of ownership and, and subject to the assessments of the 

Association.  The Association shall be authorized to perform the functions and duties delegated 

and assigned under the Master Deed. 

2.8 The Master Deed shall prohibit exterior modification of the units within the 

Project which are in conflict with the PUD Documents. 

2.9 Until such time as a Condominium Association is formed or the Developer’s 

responsibilities are otherwise formally transferred, Developer shall maintain all common areas, 

storm water drainage and retention facilities, landscaped areas, parking areas and sidewalks in 

good working order and appearance. Developer may establish an Association or Associations to 

assume the maintenance obligations set forth in this Article II, this Planned Unit Development 

Agreement and otherwise, in which event the Association or Associations shall succeed to the 

Developer’s obligations for those portions of the Property defined in the instrument establishing 



6 

each Association, and Developer shall be relieved of all obligation and liability with respect 

thereto.  

2.10 Developer, or successor Association or Associations, shall maintain the 

landscaping and related improvements in a neat an orderly appearance, substantially free from 

refuse and debris and, shall promptly replace any dead or dying plants and shrubs. If the weather 

does not allow for immediate removal and replacement, then it shall be done as soon as possible, 

but in no event shall it be longer than the end of the current planting season.  

2.11 The Property contains one or more structures which Developer intends to 

demolish.  Developer shall comply with all State statutes and City Ordinances regarding 

demolition.  In connection with the demolition of such structure(s), Developer shall engage a 

demolition contractor to remove any asbestos and/or asbestos contaminated materials contained 

within such structures(s) prior to performing its demolition activities.  Any asbestos shall be 

removed in accordance with an action plan prepared by Developer’s contractor, which action 

plan shall include the following:  Prior to the removal of any asbestos and/or asbestos 

contaminated materials, such contractor shall notify the Michigan Department of Environmental 

Quality that the contractor intends to commence demolition activities involving a structure(s) 

which contains asbestos; Developer’s contractor shall use trained asbestos abatement/removal 

technicians.  All asbestos materials which are removed from the site shall be sent to a Type II 

landfill and, in connection with the transportation of such materials to the landfill, appropriate 

shipping manifests shall be obtained and a third-party monitoring company shall be engaged to 

monitor the transportation of asbestos contaminated materials to such landfill.  Demolition of 

structures will commence/resume following completion of asbestos removal activities.  During 

the demolition process, the site will be sprayed with water to minimize airborne particles.  

Following completion of the demolition activities, the City shall inspect the site prior to the 

performance of backfilling and grading activities. When the City has approved the site, which 

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, the site will then be graded and seeded to prevent 

soil erosion. 

2.12  Developer shall comply with the City Code and Ordinances make any necessary 

application for permits and obtain any necessary permits for the use of temporary sales trailers 

and/or sale and advertising signs. 

ARTICLE III 

 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

3.1 Water and Sanitary Sewer Systems.  Developer shall, at its sole expense, 

construct and install improvements and/or connections tying into the municipal water and 

sewage systems, including any required water hydrants.  Such improvements shall be designed 

and constructed in accordance with the Final Development Plan, approved engineering 

construction plans and all applicable City, County and State standards, codes, regulations, 

ordinances and laws.  Such water and sanitary sewer service facilities, including any on-site and 

off-site facilities, extensions and easements to reach the area to be served, shall be provided by 

and at the sole expense of the Developer shall be completed, approved and dedicated to (as 

required by the City in its discretion) the City to the extent necessary to fully service all proposed 



7 

and existing facilities, structures and uses in the Project. All water and sanitary system 

improvements shall be completed before construction of Phase I of the development.  

3.2 Storm Water Drainage.  The Developer, at its sole expense, shall construct and 

maintain a storm water and retention system, which system shall include the improvements 

provided in this Agreement, and shall be installed in accordance with the PUD Documents, the 

approved engineering construction plans, and all applicable ordinances, laws, codes, standards 

and regulations.  All drainage improvements necessary for the entire Project shall be completed 

and approved prior to issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy for any structure for any phase.  

During the development of the Project, the Developer shall be obligated to maintain the storm 

drainage and retention system and facilities in a fully operational condition.  Upon completion of 

the storm drainage and retention system, the Developer may assign its responsibility with respect 

to such maintenance to an Association if allowable by applicable Master Deed.  In such case, the 

obligation shall be solely that of the Association. The Developer shall post security in the form 

of cash or check or certificate of deposit or irrevocable letter of credit (issued by an institution 

doing business in Oakland County), as specified in a separate agreement approved by the City.  

The security shall be in an amount equal to the estimated cost of installation, or a performance 

bond in an amount equal to the cost of construction plus 10%. The Agreement shall also 

authorize the City, at its option, to complete the drainage improvements as required by the City 

Engineer, if Developer fails to complete the drainage improvements in a timely fashion, once 

construction has commenced.  All performance bonds shall be issued by institutions licensed and 

admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  In such case, building permits for the 

applicable phase of the development to be served by the drainage improvements in question shall 

be issued upon the posting of such security and execution of such agreement, which shall be 

approved by the City Attorney.  The drainage improvements shall be completed and approved 

prior to issuance of any certificates of occupancy for the last building within the Phase of that 

development. 

All construction, repair, maintenance and replacement of the storm drainage and retention 

system which are Developer’s responsibility, as described in this Section, shall be the sole 

obligation of the Developer and its successors in ownership except for storm water retention, 

which can be shifted to any successor Association by Master Deed.  Any such Master Deed shall 

require ongoing maintenance, repair and improvement of such storm drainage and retention 

system by the Association.  During the development of the applicable phase, the Developer shall 

be obligated to maintain the storm drainage and retention system and facilities in a fully 

operational condition.  Upon the installation of the final or topcoat of asphalt on the roads within 

a phase, the Developer may assign its responsibility with respect to such maintenance to the 

Association as provided in the applicable Master Deed or as Deed Restrictions herein.  

Thereafter, the obligation shall be solely that of the Association.  The proper functioning, 

maintenance and repair of the applicable portion of such drainage and retention facilities shall be 

a condition for issuance of any and all building permits for construction of dwellings on the 

Property and for issuance of certificates of occupancy. 

3.3 Sidewalks, Drives, Entryways and Parking Lots.  All drives, entryways, 

sidewalks, and parking lots within the Project shall be designed, situated and constructed in 

accordance with all requirements and applicable ordinances of the City, the PUD Documents and 

the approved engineering construction plans.  All internal drives, entryways, sidewalks, and 



8 

parking lots will be private except as otherwise set forth herein.  The Developer, its successors 

and assigns, shall provide in the Master Deed provisions for emergency access for public entities 

and their personnel. The Developer shall post security in the form of cash or check or certificate 

of deposit or irrevocable letter of credit (issued by an institution doing business in Oakland 

County), as specified in a separate agreement approved by the City. The security shall be in an 

amount equal to the estimated cost of installation, or a performance bond in an amount equal to 

the cost of construction plus 10%. The Agreement shall also authorize the City, at its option, to 

complete the sidewalks, drives, entryways and parking lots as required by the City Engineer, if 

Developer fails to complete the sidewalks, drives, entryways and parking lots in a timely fashion, 

once construction has commenced.  All performance bonds shall be issued by institutions 

licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  In such case, building permits for 

the applicable phase of the development to be served by the sidewalks, drives, entryways, and 

parking lots in question shall be issued upon the posting of such security and execution of such 

agreement, which shall be approved by the City Attorney.  The sidewalks, drives, entryways, and 

parking lots shall be completed and approved prior to issuance of any certificates of occupancy 

for the last building within the Phase of that development. 

Building permits shall be issued subject to installation and maintenance of an adequate 

gravel surface base as determined by the City Engineer for all entranceways and internal drive 

areas to provide for access for construction traffic, City personnel, emergency and fire fighting 

equipment.  Further, the Developer shall also sign an agreement that requires completion and 

approval of the paving of all areas referenced in this Paragraph (including topcoat and parking 

lot striping) prior to the issuance of more than 95% of the certificates of occupancy within any 

phase of the condominium Development, but in any event such paving shall be completed within 

two (2) years of issuance of the first building permit for a building within each phase of the 

Development. 

Developer, its successors and assigns, shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of 

the drives, entranceways, sidewalks, and parking lots during the period of construction, and shall 

also keep streets abutting the Project and Crooks Road free from debris and repair any damage to 

the streets abutting the Project (subject to City of Troy requirements) caused by construction 

activities on or for the Property or the Project and use of abutting streets and Crooks Road for 

construction purposes.  If the Developer fails to maintain and repair the streets, boulevards, 

drives, entranceways, parking lots and abutting streets and Crooks Road, as required by this 

Paragraph, the City may issue stop work orders and/or withhold issuance of further approvals, 

permits and occupancy certificates for the Project until such failure is cured in addition to any 

enforcement authorization or remedy provided herein, or any other agreement. At all times 

during and after completion of construction, Developer, its successor and assigns, shall cause all 

drives, entranceways and parking lots to be maintained, repaired and kept in an unimpeded, 

unobstructed, safe and passable condition at all times to allow for the free flow and circulation of 

traffic throughout the Project, except for temporary closures or obstruction due to repairs or 

snow.  The responsibility and obligation for such ongoing maintenance and repair shall be that of 

the Developer, its successors and assigns.  Developer shall incorporate provisions in any and all 

Master Deeds stating that property owners and the Association are bound by the obligations and 

restrictions herein. 



9 

3.4 Developer shall have the right, subject to City approvals, to assign its 

maintenance and repair obligations under this Agreement to an Association.  Upon the 

assignment to and assumption by the Association of Developer’s maintenance and repair 

obligations, Developer shall have no further obligations or liability with respect thereto.   

3.5  For purposes of maintenance obligations set forth in this Paragraph, the term 

“maintenance,” “maintain” and “maintained” shall mean and include regular inspections. 

ARTICLE IV 

 

THE CITY’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

4.1 The City, in each instance, shall provide by written thirty (30) days notice to 

Developer documentation of any and all deficiencies and shall provide Developer with a time 

period in which to cure any deficiencies under this agreement, which shall be enough time for 

Developer, its successors, or assigns, to cure the deficiency. It is understood, however, that each 

phase shall stand on its own.  Any defect or violation that affects a phase shall not be grounds to 

penalize the other Phase, and the City’s remedies should be exercised as to each phase only.  

If, following the expiration of the period set forth to cure any deficiencies, such 

deficiencies have not been cured, the City shall there upon have the power and authority, but not 

the obligation, to take any of the following actions, in addition to any actions authorized under 

City ordinance and/or State law: 

(a) Demand that the non-performance, deficiency or obligation be fulfilled, 

performed or completed before Developer assigns its obligations to the Association and 

set a specific date to complete the performance, fulfill the obligation or correct the 

deficiency.  If Developer has not completed the performance, fulfilled the obligation or 

corrected the deficiency by the date specified, the Developer shall not assign its 

obligations to the Association and the City may proceed under paragraph 4.1(b). 

(b) Enter upon the Property, or cause its agents or contractors to enter upon 

the Property and perform such obligation or take such corrective measures as reasonably 

found by the City Administration to be appropriate.  In addition to any financial 

assurance given to ensure completion of the improvements, the additional costs and 

expense of making and financing such action by the City, including without limitation 

notices by the City and reasonable legal fees incurred by the City, plus an administrative 

fee in the amount of ten (10%) percent of the total of all such costs and expenses 

incurred, shall be paid by Developer within thirty (30) days of City’s invoicing to 

Developer. . 

(c) The City may initiate legal action for the enforcement of any of the 

provisions, requirements, and obligations set forth in the PUD Documents. 

(d) The City may issue a stop work order as to any or all aspects of the 

Project, may deny the issuance of any requested building permit or certificate of 

occupancy within any part or all of the Project regardless of whether the Developer is the 



10 

named applicant for such permit or certificate of occupancy, and may suspend further 

inspections of any or all aspects of the Project. 

4.2 At any time throughout the period of development and construction of any part of 

the Project, the City, its contractors, representatives, consultants and agents, shall be permitted 

and are hereby granted authority to enter upon all or any portion of the Property for the purpose 

of inspecting and/or completing the respective improvements, and for the purposes of inspecting 

for compliance with and enforcement of the PUD Documents. 

4.3 To the extent the PUD Documents deviate from the City of Troy Development 

Standards, Zoning Ordinance or other City ordinances, or any amendments thereto, the PUD 

Documents shall control.  All improvements constructed in accordance with the PUD Documents 

shall be deemed to be conforming under the Zoning Ordinance and in compliance with all 

ordinances of the City. 

ARTICLE V 

 

MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS 

5.1 The Developer and any successor Association and any of their successors and 

assigns shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, from and against any and all claims for 

injuries and/or damages arising out of their use or maintenance of the areas owned by the City 

but maintained by the Developer or the Association, except those claims arising from the 

negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its agents or employees. 

5.2 The Developer or any successor Association shall establish and levy assessments 

against the units within the Project for the purpose of performing the Association’s maintenance 

and repair obligations under this Agreement, in addition to any maintenance obligations for the 

Project’s common elements, including, but not limited to: storm drainage facilities, streets, 

entranceway improvements, landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks, and for any other proper 

purposes..  If the Developer or successor Association fails to fulfill the obligations as set out in 

this Agreement and the PUD Documents, the City may take any action available to it under 

Article IV against the individual property owners of each unit on a pro-rata basis and/or the 

Association, including, but not limited to, assessing a lien against the individual property owners 

on a pro-rata share. 

ARTICLE VI 

 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to prevent Developer from including in any 

Master Deed terms and conditions which do not bind the City or are more restrictive 

requirements and standards with respect to the Project as long as those terms and conditions are 

not in conflict with this Agreement or the PUD Documents, and as long as such terms and 

conditions are in compliance with State and Federal law. 

6.2 This Agreement may not be modified, replaced, amended or terminated without 

the prior written consent of the parties to this Agreement.  Developer shall have the right to 



11 

delegate its rights and obligations under this Agreement to a successor Association as set out in 

this Agreement.  Until the rights and responsibilities under this Agreement are transferred to an 

Association, Developer and the City shall be entitled to modify, replace, amend or terminate this 

Agreement, without requiring the consent of any other person or entity whatsoever, regardless of 

whether such person has any interest in the Property, including unit owners, mortgages of co-

owners, and others. 

6.3 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Michigan. 

6.4 If there is a conflict between the terms of any of the PUD Documents, such 

documents shall control in the following order:  (a) the Conceptual Development Plan; (b) this 

Agreement; and (c) Chapter 39, Article XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, and 

amendments, if any.  Where there is a question with regard to applicable regulations for a 

particular aspect of the Project, or with regard to clarification, interpretation, or definition of 

terms or regulations, and there are no apparent express provisions of the PUD Documents which 

apply, the City in the reasonable exercise of its discretion, shall determine the regulations of the 

City’s Ordinances that are applicable, provided such determination is not inconsistent with the 

nature and intent of the PUD Documents. 

6.5 The terms of the PUD Documents, including this Agreement, have been 

negotiated by the undersigned parties and such documentation represents the product of the joint 

efforts and agreement of the Developer and the City.  Developer and the City fully accept and 

agree to the final terms, conditions, requirements and obligations of the PUD Documents, and 

shall not be permitted in the future to claim that the effect of these PUD Documents results in an 

unreasonable limitation upon uses of all or a portion of the Property, or claim that enforcement 

of any of the PUD Documents causes an inverse condemnation or taking of all or a portion of the 

Property.  Furthermore, it is agreed that the improvements and undertakings set forth in the PUD 

Documents are necessary and roughly proportional to the burden imposed in order to ensure that 

services and facilities affected by the Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development will be capable of 

accommodating increased services and facility loads, traffic and storm water drainage caused by 

the development thereof, to protect the natural environment and conserve natural resources, to 

ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, to promote use of the Property in a socially and 

economically desirable manner, and to achieve other legitimate objectives authorized under the 

Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3101, et seq. It is further agreed and acknowledged 

hereby that all of such improvements are substantially related to the burdens to be created by the 

Project contemplated hereby, and all such improvements and the requirements and regulations of 

the Property under the PUD Documents and Zoning Ordinance, without exception, are clearly 

and substantially related to the City’s legitimate interests in protecting the public health, safety 

and general welfare. 

6.6 This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one agreement.  The signature of any party 

to any counterpart shall be deemed to be a signature to, and may be appended to, any other 

counterpart. 



12 

6.7 This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties 

and their respective successors and assigns. 

THIS AGREEMENT was executed by the respective parties on the date specified with 

the notarization with their name, and shall take effect on the date of adoption by the Troy City 

Council of the Zoning Ordinance amendment granting rezoning of the Property to Troy Plaza 

Planned Unit Development. 

[Signatures Follow] 



13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Development Agreement to be 

executed the ay and year first above written. 

“Developer” 

Tinelle Properties, LLC, 

a Michigan limited liability company 

By:   

Name:  

Dated:      Its:        

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) SS 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 

2008, by ___________________________, the ____________________________ of Tinelle 

Properties, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

              

Print Name:  

Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 

My Commission Expires:  

Acting in the County of Oakland 

 

 

 

“City” 

CITY OF TROY, 

a Michigan municipal corporation 

By:   

Name: Louise E. Schilling 

Dated:  Its: Mayor 



14 

By:   

Name: Tonni L. Bartholomew 

Dated:  Its: City Clerk 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) SS. 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ____________, 

2008, by Louise E. Schilling, Mayor and Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk of the City of Troy, 

a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the Corporation. 

              

Print Name:  

Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 

My Commission Expires:  

Acting in the County of Oakland 

DRAFTED BY:    WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

Alan M. Greene            

Dykema Gossett PLLC   City Clerk 

39577 Woodward Avenue, Suite 300  City of Troy 

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48304  500 W. Big Beaver Road 

Troy, Michigan  48084 

 



15 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

 
BH01\862325.2 

ID\AMG 











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION (P.U.D. 
13) – Proposed Troy Plaza New King Planned Unit Development, West side of 
Crooks, North side of New King (5500 New King), Section 8, Currently Zoned O-
M (Office Mid Rise) District 
 
Mr. Miller gave a short summary of the proposed project.   
 
Zak Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. reported on the revised 
submittal.  He addressed the revisions relating to parking, site access and 
internal circulation.  He said it is their recommendation that the Planning 
Commission recommend to the City Council approval of the Concept 
Development Plan for Troy Plaza New King PUD. 
 
Michael J. Gordon of Moiseev/Gordon Associates (MGA Architects), 818 W. 
Eleven Mile Road, Royal Oak, was present to represent the petitioner.  He 
introduced those present:  the petitioner, Frank Asmar of Tinelle Properties; 
project architect, Robert Cliffe of MGA Architects; legal counsel, Alan Greene of 
Dykema Gossett; civil engineer, Scott Chabot of Giffels Webster Engineering; 
and transportation engineer, Dylan Foukes of Metro Transportation Group.  Mr. 
Gordon gave a PowerPoint presentation and displayed different views of the 
project.  He specifically addressed the water feature, banquet facility and 
extended stay hotel features.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Robert Wineman of Etkin Equities, 29100 Northwestern Highway, Southfield, was 
present.  Mr. Wineman said they are significant property owners of office space 
in the area of the proposed project.  He gave a history of their interest in the 
surrounding property and discussions they had with City staff approximately 
twelve years ago.  Mr. Wineman voiced opposition to the proposed PUD as 
relates to the proposed retail.  He said their opposition is based upon former 
conversations and agreements, verbal and otherwise, they had with City 
representatives relative to what they collectively envisioned for this portion of the 
City.  Mr. Wineman addressed a potential for an oversaturated market and a 
potential competitive market as relates to existing tenants in the area. 
 
Mr. Maxwell addressed the potential retail competition as relates to the size of 
the proposed establishments and the possibility that new retail could be 
complimentary to the existing retail.  He asked if Mr. Wineman could substantiate 
that the proposed PUD would have a direct adverse affect on existing retail in the 
area. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

Mr. Wineman said retail establishments in intense office areas focus on service-
oriented types of establishments such as coffee purveyors and food users.  He 
contended those uses are currently captured in that marketplace.  Mr. Wineman 
considers the square footage of the proposed retail relatively large in comparison 
to the existing retail.  
 
Bill Wylonis, General Manager of Emmes Realty Services, was present.  He 
represented five buildings in the area (5600 New King, 5750 New King, 5505 
Corporate, 5555 New King, and 5607 New King).  Mr. Wylonis specifically 
addressed concerns with daytime parking in the area.  To his knowledge, he said 
there has been no approval given for additional parking at those office buildings.   
 
Mr. Tagle said the Planning Commission is in receipt of a letter from Emmes 
Asset Management out of New York under the signature of Audris Shau.  The 
letter states that Tinelle Properties can use parking spaces on three of those 
office locations (5600 New King, 5555 New King and 5505 Corporate) on certain 
days and at certain times.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner to address the project’s construction phases.   
 
Mr. Gordon replied construction would not be in phases.  It is their intent to 
construct under a single building permit.  He said that because the retail portion 
would be completed and occupied prior to the completion of the hotel 
construction, a temporary front desk check-in area would be provided for 
extended stay hotel guests. 
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner to address parking on the site and adjacent 
properties.   
 
Mr. Gordon said retail, hotel and extended stay guests would park on the 
property.  Staff, banquet users and the valet service would use parking on 
adjacent properties. 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed parking agreements in relation to preliminary and final PUD 
approval.  He also suggested that gateway signage would be a positive addition 
in the approval process of the project.   
 
Chair Schultz agreed.  He said the project’s location at an expressway 
entrance/exit is more or less a major gateway to the City.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked for clarification on a comment in the Carlisle/Wortman report 
stating that retail hours of operation could run until mid to late evening.  He asked 
if there were any concerns or issues should there be a 24-hour retail operation. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

Mr. Branigan said there are no concerns with a 24-hour retail operation as relates 
to residential or parking.   
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-084 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan 
for a Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by 
Tinelle Properties LLC for the Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development (PUD 13), 
located on the west side of Crooks and the north side of New King, Section 8, 
within the O-M zoning district, being approximately 6.16 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated July 1, 2008 that recommends 
Concept Development Plan approval of Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development 
be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 







 

 
 
                             
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan 

Municipal League (MML) 
 
 
Background: 
 
 It is typical for at least one Troy City Council member to attend the MML Annual Convention as 

representation from the City of Troy in MML elections 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available in the City Council’s Education and Training account, number 102.7960 and 

have been appropriated by the Council for the attendance at the 2008 Annual Convention 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this agenda item 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Council member participation in the elective process at the MML Annual Conventions is a right of 

membership and potentially impacts the MML governing officials and board operations  
 
Options: 
 
 Staff requests Council pass a resolution designating the Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting 

of the Michigan Municipal League 
 
 
 
TLB 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03













campbellld
Text Box
E-04

























Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 
                              August 18, 2008 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Library Café Space Recommendation 
 
 

Background: 

 On Monday, December 3, 2007, City Council approved a one-year contract amendment for 
Library Café Services to Zeyn Francis expiring December 31, 2008. (Resolution #2007-12-
345-F17) 

 Mr. Francis has since closed Steamers Café without notice on Wednesday, August 6, 2008, 
and verbally informed the Library Director that the café was no longer in business.  

 Management recommends that the City cease café service operations at the Troy Public 
Library, and instead provide a seating area for patrons, with several multi-choice vending 
machines.  

 
The reasons for this recommendation are as follows: 

 Café patronage is very low; 

 Ongoing problems with café proprietors, whose substandard service reflects poorly on the 
Troy Public Library. There is no guarantee there won’t be similar problems with future owners; 

 Grant patron requests for a space in which they can bring in food and eat inside the library; 

 Will make better use of existing library space; 

o By combining the current café space and Friends Gift Shop into a large area where 
patrons can enjoy refreshments as well as browse the Gift Shop.  

o Doing so will reduce the amount of congestion/traffic in a very busy area. 

 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



Page 2 of 2 

 

August 18, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Library Café Space 
 

Financial Considerations: 

 Potential loss of revenue: rent for the café space has been budgeted at $750/month, $9,000/year. 
However, it is my expectation that high quality vending machines could generate at least this 
amount, if not more.  

 The City could also charge the Friends a nominal amount for rent on the Gift Shop space if 
deemed necessary.  

 

Legal Considerations: 
 
 Zeyn Francis will receive a written notice of default and remedies for reinstatement as a potential 

vendor after three (3) years. 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 
This recommendation addresses the following Outcome Statements: 
 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 

venues  
 

Options: 
 
 City management recommends the Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved 

on December 3, 2007, to Zeyn Francis of Troy, MI, for Library Café Services and reconfigure the 
space at the Troy Public Library known as Steamers Café for use as a multi-purpose room that 
includes a vending café and the Friends of the Troy Public Library Gift Shop.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CR/LibraryCafe08080.doc 



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: August 19, 2008 
SUBJECT: Liquor License Ordinance Fees – Chapter 60 Amendment   

 

 
 

 
 
 

 The recently approved Chapter 101 sets forth the liquor license application procedure.  
Chapter 101 does not include the amount of fees, however, since these are set forth in 
Chapter 60 of the Troy City Ordinances.     
 
 Enclosed please find the proposed additions to Chapter 60, which codifies the 
amounts that are currently being charged for liquor license processing.  Under this proposed 
ordinance, applications for new licenses or a change of location are $1,000, since these 
applications require significant administrative time and inspection, including background 
checks, fire department inspections, building inspections, contract preparation, etc.   Other 
changes, such as a change of the name of the corporate licensee or the addition of outdoor 
service for an existing licensee, require significantly less administrative time, and therefore 
are only $300.       
 

In addition to the above referenced fees, there may be additional fingerprinting 
charges, which are set by the State of Michigan.  Although Chapter 101 requires the liquor 
license applicant to submit to fingerprinting when requested, it is the State of Michigan that 
determines when such fingerprinting is necessary for a liquor license application.  Under the 
State Liquor Control Act administrative rules, the local unit of government must take the 
fingerprints when required, and submit payment to the State of Michigan.  Currently, the 
State charges $35 for fingerprinting, but since this amount could change, the proposed 
amendment refers to the State of Michigan fee schedule.   
 
 The proposed additions to Chapter 60 are recommended for approval.  As always, if 
you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.   
   
 
 
 
  

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Section 60.03, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 60, Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule, shall be amended by adding the 
following items: 
 
 

ITEM/SERVICE: FEE: 

  

Liquor License Application and Investigation Fee 
(New and transfers to different premises) 

$1,000.00 

Applications for additions or amendments to existing liquor 
licenses 

$300.00 

Fingerprinting fee (Payable to the State of Michigan)  Michigan State 
Police Fee Structure 

 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 



Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



CR/proposedfeeincrease2008.doc 
 

 
 
  
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
 
 

SUBJECT: Request to Amend Library Fee Schedule  
  
Background: 
 
  It is recommended that the Library Fee Schedule be revised to accommodate changes and 

additions to library collections, and to update user fees in several areas. 
 
The City of Troy/Troy Public Library’s operating costs are continually increasing. In order to offset 
increased operational costs, the following fee increases are proposed, to take effect October 1, 
2008.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  It is expected that the recommended adjustment to the overdue materials fees will yield an 

additional $25,000 in revenue, for a projected total of $135,000/year.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  This recommendation addresses the following Outcome Statement: 

Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world.  

 
Options: 
 
  City management recommends that the changes to the fee structure for materials at the Troy 

Public Library be approved.  City management further recommends that these rates can be 
adjusted by City management in order to stay competitive in the market.  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07



CR/proposedfeeincrease2008.doc 
 

TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
SCHEDULE OF LIBRARY FEES 

 
OVERDUE CHARGES 
 

MATERIAL LOAN 
PERIOD 

CURRENT 
OVERDUE 
CHARGES/DAY 

PROPOSED 
OVERDUE 
CHARGES/DAY 

CURRENT 
MAXIMUM  
OVERDUE 
CHARGE * 

PROPOSED 
MAXIMUM 
OVERDUE 
CHARGE* 

Books (Adult) 21 days $ 0.15   $ 0.25 $10.00 $15.00 

Books (Youth) 21 days $ 0.15 $ 0.25 $10.00 $15.00 

Cassettes 21 days $ 0.15 $ 0.25 $10.00 $15.00 

Compact Discs 21 days $ 0.15 $ 0.25 $10.00 $15.00 

Puppets 7 days $ 0.15 $ 0.25 $10.00 $15.00 

Periodicals 7 days $ 0.15 $ 0.25 $10.00 * 

CDROMS 7 days $1.00 $1.00 $10.00 $15.00 

Videocassettes 7 days $1.00 $1.00 $10.00 $15.00 

Videocassettes 
Non fiction 

21 days $1.00 $1.00 $10.00 $15.00 

DVD 7 days $1.00 $1.00 $10.00 $15.00 

DVD 
Non fiction 

21 days $1.00 $1.00 $10.00 $15.00 

Video Games 14 days NA $1.00 NA $15.00 

Boxed Set 
DVD 

14 days NA $1.00 NA $15.00 

 
* Maximum charge does not exceed the replacement cost of the material 
 
USER FEES 
 

 CURRENT PROPOSED 

Lost/Damaged material Retail replacement cost Same 

Library Card Replacement $ 2.00 $3.00 

Non-Resident Card $ 200.00 Same 

DVD (Feature) $2.00 per title, per week Same 

Rental Books $ 0.15 per title, per day $ 0.25 per title per day 

Computer Printout $ 0.10 per page Same 

Photocopy/Microform Copy $ 0.10 per page Same 

Color Copy $ 1.00 per page Same 

Fax $ 3.00 first page,  
$ 1.00 per additional page  
$ 1.00 per page received 

Same 

Video Games  $ 5.00 for 14 days 

Boxed Set DVDs  $ 5.00 for 14 days 

 



campbellld
Text Box
E-08





Revision 2r 

 

 

CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 93 

OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 

 

The City of Troy ordains: 

 

Section 1.  Short Title 

 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the 16th amendment to Chapter 93, Fire 

Prevention, of the Code of the City of Troy.  

 

Section 2.  Amendment 
 

93.00 Adoption of the 2003 2006 International Fire Code by Reference. The 

International Fire Code, 2003 2006 Edition, including its appendices, is hereby adopted 

by reference with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes prescribed in Section 

93.01 of this Ordinance, as the Fire Prevention Code of the City of Troy, regulating and 

governing the safeguarding of life and property from fire and explosion hazards arising 

from the storage, handling and use of hazardous substances, materials and devices, and 

from conditions hazardous to life and property in the occupancy of buildings.  This 

Ordinance and a copy of the International Fire Code, 2003 2006 Edition, shall be kept on 

file with the City Clerk. 

 

93.01  Additions, Insertions, Deletions and Changes to the International Fire Code, 

2003 2006 Edition and Amendment to Chapter 93.  The City of Troy adopts the 

following amendments to Chapter 93 of the Code of Ordinances which represent 

additions, insertions, deletions and changes from the International Fire Code, 2003 2006 

Edition. Subsequent section numbers used in this section shall refer to the like numbered 

sections of the International Fire Code, 2003 2006 Edition. Deletions are indicated with 

strike-through text while additions and insertions are indicated with underlined text. Any 

provisions of Chapter 93, Section 93.01 which are not amended or deleted herein shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

105.6 Required operational permits. The code official is authorized to issue operational 

permits for the operations set forth in Sections 105.6.1 through 105.6.47  105.6.46. 

Where there are no provisions for issuing said permits, the code official is authorized to 

waive the particular permit requirement.  

 

105.6.13 Exhibits, crafts and trade shows Special events. An operational permit is 

required to operate/conduct all special events including exhibits, crafts, and trade shows. 

 



105.6.20 Hazardous materials. An operational permit is required to store, transport on 

site, dispense, use or handle hazardous materials in excess of the amounts listed in Table 

105.6.21. most restrictive amounts listed in this code, the EPA’s  Emergency Planning 

and Community Right To Know regulations, and MIOSHA’s Firefighter Right To Know 

requirements. 

 

105.6.20.1 Required amounts for reporting. Reportable quantities shall be considered 

the maximum amount of hazardous material on site at any given time. This amount is 

required to be reported to the fire department as indicated in Table 105.6.21. the Troy 

Fire Department’s HMIS packet as defined in Chapter 27 of this code. 

 

105.6.21 Hazardous Materials. Deleted. 

 

105.6.21.1 Required Amounts for Reporting. Deleted. 

 

105.7.13 Permit Issuance. Deleted. 

 

105.7.14 Permit issuance. A permit granted hereunder shall not be transferable nor shall 

any such permit be extended beyond the time set forth therein unless approved by the fire 

official. When work is started without a permit, the permit fee shall be doubled. 

 

109.3 Violation penalties. Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail 

to comply with any requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair, service, 

test or do work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the 

fire code official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions of this code, shall be 

guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than five hundred (500) dollars 

or by imprisonment not exceeding ninety (90) days, or both such fine and imprisonment 

as determined by a judge in a court of law.  responsible for a Municipal Civil Infraction 

subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code for the City of Troy. Each day that a 

violation continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed a separate offense. 

Sanctions for each violation shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages 

and injunctive orders, as authorized by Chapter 100.   

 

SECTION 202 

GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
 

307.1.1 Prohibited open burning. Open burning that is offensive or objectionable 

because of smoke or odor emissions or when atmospheric conditions or local 

circumstances make such fires hazardous shall be prohibited. Burning for purposes of 

incineration of waste material including paper, leaves, or any other combustible 

debris, outside of any structure at any place is prohibited. 
 

307.2 Allowable burning. Open burning shall be allowed without prior notification to 

the fire official for recreational fires, highway safety flares, smudge pots and similar 

occupational needs. Bonfires may be permitted if in compliance with 307.3.1 and subject 

to prior approval of the fire official. 
 

307.2.2. Prohibited open burning. Deleted. 

 

307.2.3. Allowable burning. Deleted. 



 

307.3 Extinguishment authority. The fire code official or police official is authorized to 

order the extinguishment by the permit holder responsible person, another person 

responsible, or the fire department of open burning that creates or adds to a hazardous or 

objectionable situation. 

 

307.3.1  Bonfires. Deleted. 

 

307.4.1 Bonfires.  A bonfire shall not be conducted within 50 feet (15 240 mm) of a 

structure or combustible material unless the fire is contained in a barbecue pit. Conditions 

which could cause a fire to spread within 50 feet (15 240 mm) of a structure shall be 

eliminated prior to ignition. Once approved, the intended maximum size and duration of a 

bonfire shall not be increased unless by City Council and only after it has been 

determined by the fire official that fire safety requirements of the situation and the 

desirable duration of burn warrant the increase prior to the bonfire. 

 

307.3.3 Ground Fires. Deleted. 

 

307.4.3 Ground fires. A ground fire shall be the minimum size for the intended purpose 

but not larger than 3 feet by 3 feet by 3 feet in dimension and shall be contained in a safe 

manner. 
 

404.5.1 Format. Fire safety and evacuation plans, general floor plans, seating 

arrangements, storage configurations, or other specific plans shall be furnished to the fire 

code official in an approved format upon request. 

 

 

SECTION 502  

DEFINITIONS 

 

609.1.1 Exhaust fans. Exhaust fans for commercial cooking hoods shall be installed so 

that the fans are operational at all times cooking is occurring. This may be accomplished 

by a temperature monitoring device installed in, on, or near the hood to activate the 

exhaust fan(s) at a pre-determined temperature, or as otherwise approved by the code 

official. 

 

610.1.1 Exhaust fans. Deleted. 

 

803.1.1. Explosive and highly flammable or combustible materials. Deleted. 

 

803.3.1. Explosive and highly flammable or combustible materials. Furnishings or 

decorations of an explosive or highly flammable or combustible character shall not be 

used. 

 

804.1.1. Restricted Occupancies. Deleted. 

 

805.1 General. Deleted. 

 

806.1.1 Restricted occupancies. Natural cut trees shall be prohibited in Group A, B, E, 

F, H, I, M, R-1, R-2, R-4, S, and U occupancies. 

 



Exceptions. Trees located in areas protected by an approved automatic fire 

sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2 shall 

not be prohibited in Groups A, B,E, F, M, R-1,R-2, S, and U.  

 

807.1 General. In occupancies of Groups A, B, E, F, H, I, M, R-1, dormitories in Group 

R-2, R-4, S, and U, curtains, draperies, hangings and other decorative materials 

suspended from walls or ceilings shall meet the flame propagation performance criteria of 

NFPA 701 in accordance with Section 806.2 or be noncombustible. 

 

901.5. Installation acceptance testing. Deleted.  

 

901.5 Installation acceptance testing. Fire detection and alarm systems, fire-

extinguishing systems, fire hydrant systems, fire standpipe systems, fire pump systems, 

private fire service mains and all other fire protection systems and appurtenances thereto 

shall be subject to acceptance tests as contained in the installation standards and as 

approved by the fire code official. The fire code official shall be notified before any 

required acceptance testing is performed in order to schedule, witness and approve such 

testing prior to use of said fire protection system or equipment. 

 

901.6.2 Records. Deleted.  

 

901.6.2 Records. Records of all system inspections, tests and maintenance required by 

the referenced standards shall be maintained on the premises for a minimum of three 

years and shall be copied to the fire code official upon request.  A copy shall also be sent 

to the fire code official by the service company or individual performing such work 

within 30 days or as may be otherwise required by the fire code official.  

 

901.6.2.1 Noncompliant systems. Deleted. 

 

901.6.2.2 Noncompliant systems. Fire suppression, protection, or other related systems 

found to be noncompliant, malfunctioning, or otherwise non-operational in the manner 

required, designed, or intended, shall be identified as “noncompliant” by the service 

company or individual performing such service, and the fire code official and the 

occupant shall be notified immediately or at the earliest practical time. At no time shall 

an approval, compliance, or other indication of operability be affixed to, on, or near such 

system(s) so as to give false indication of designed, intended, or expected operation. 

 

SECTION 902 

DEFINITIONS 

 

903.2.10.3 Buildings over 30 feet in height. Deleted.  

 

903.2.10.3 Buildings over 30 feet in height. An automatic sprinkler system shall be 

installed throughout a building that has a floor level which has an occupant load of 30 or 

more occupants and which is located 30 feet (9144 mm) or more above the lowest level 

of fire department vehicle access. 

 

Exceptions: Refer to the Michigan Building Code, as set forth in Chapter 79, 

Section 8.1 of the City of Troy Code. 

 



903.3.5.3 Required pressure margin. Due to unforeseeable and changing conditions 

within the water supply, t The code official is authorized to require a pressure margin of 

up to twenty (20) lbs p.s.i. over the minimum design criteria for installed automatic fire 

sprinkler systems. Where this margin cannot be achieved, approved means shall be taken 

to provide this margin. 

 

907.7.1 Annunciation. Where fire suppression systems exist in multi-tenant occupancies, 

i.e., strip malls, separate annunciation, including water flow switch and inspector test 

valve, shall be required for each separately addressed tenant space unless otherwise 

approved by the code official. 

 

907.10.2.2 Audible alarm appliance silencing.  Deleted.  

 

907.12.1 Remote annunciation: Deleted. 

 

 

SECTION 914.0 

TEMPERATURE AND MONITORING 

 

Deleted in its entirety 

 

SECTION 915.0 

TEMPERATURE AND MONITORING 

 

915.1 General. Precautions shall be taken in all rooms and areas containing fire sprinkler 

equipment such as piping, valve(s), and fire pump(s), to prevent freezing of said 

equipment during times of extremely cold temperatures. Where the code official deems 

necessary, equipment shall be installed to monitor the temperature of said areas and send 

a trouble or supervisory signal to an approved location when the temperature falls below 

40 degrees F to warn of freezing conditions so that the occurrence of frozen and/or 

broken piping, valve(s), and fire pump(s) can be prevented. 

 

1019.1.8 Smokeproof enclosures. Deleted. 

 

1020.1.7 Smokeproof enclosures. In buildings required to comply with Section 403 or 

405 of the International Building Code, each of the exits of a building which serves 

stories where the floor surface is more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level 

of fire department vehicle access or more than 30 feet (9144 mm) below the level of exit 

discharge serving such floor levels shall be a smokeproof enclosure or pressurized 

stairway in accordance with Section 909.2 of the International Building Code. 

 

1022.2 Use in a means of egress. Deleted. 

 

1023.2 Use in a means of egress. Exterior exit stairways shall not be used as an element 

of a required means of egress for occupancies in Group I-2. For occupancies in other than 

Group I-2, exterior exit stairways shall be permitted as an element of a required means of 

egress for buildings not exceeding five stories above grade plane or having occupied 

floors more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) in height above the lowest level of fire department 

vehicle access. 

 

1025.1 General. Deleted. 



 

1026.1 General. In addition to the means of egress required by this chapter, provisions 

shall be made for emergency escape and rescue in Group R and I-1 occupancies. 

Basements and sleeping rooms below the fourth story above grade plane shall have at 

least one exterior emergency escape and rescue opening in accordance with this section. 

Where basements contain one or more sleeping rooms, emergency egress and rescue 

openings shall be required in each sleeping room, but shall not be required in adjoining 

areas of the basement. Such openings shall open directly into a public way or to a yard or 

court that opens to a public way. 

 

Exceptions: 

1. In other than Group R-3 occupancies, buildings equipped throughout with an 

approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 

903.3.1.2. 

2. In other than Group R-3 occupancies, sleeping rooms provided with a door to a 

fire-resistance-rated corridor having access to two remote exits in opposite 

directions. 

3. The emergency escape and rescue opening is permitted to open onto a balcony 

within an atrium in accordance with the requirements of Section 404 of the 

International Building Code, provided the balcony provides access to an exit and 

the dwelling unit or sleeping unit has a means of egress that is not open to the 

atrium. 

4. Basements with a ceiling height of less than 80 inches (2032 mm) shall not be 

required to have emergency escape and rescue windows. 

5. High-rise buildings in accordance with Section 403 of the International 

Building Code. 

6. Emergency escape and rescue openings are not required from basements or 

sleeping rooms that have an exit door or exit access door that opens directly into 

a public way or to a yard, court or exterior exit balcony that opens to a public 

way. 

7. Basements without habitable spaces and having no more than 200 square feet 

(18.6m2) in floor area shall not be required to have emergency escape windows. 

 

3301.1.1 Explosive material standard. In addition to the requirements of this chapter, 

NFPA 495 shall govern the manufacture, transportation, storage, sale, handling and use 

of explosive materials, and along with the Michigan Explosives Law 1970 PA 202, as 

amended, or its equivalent. 

 

3308.11 Retail display and sale. Deleted. 

 

3308.11 Retail display and sale. A permit shall be required as set forth in Section 105.6 

and regulated in accordance with this section. Fireworks displayed for retail sale shall not 

be made readily accessible to the public. A minimum of one pressurized-water portable 

fire extinguisher complying with Section 906 shall be located not more than 15 feet (4572 

mm) and not less than 10 feet (3048 mm) from the hazard. “No Smoking” signs 

complying with Section 310 shall be conspicuously posted in areas where fireworks are 

stored or displayed for retail sale. No person under the age of 18 years shall sell, purchase 

or possess fireworks unless accompanied by a parent or legal guardian. 

 

3405.2.4 Class I and II liquids. Deleted. 

 



3406.2.5.2 Tanks for gravity discharge. Deleted. 

 

Section 3.  Savings 

 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 

time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be consummated 

under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were 

commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending 

prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or 

impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses 

committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be 

instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be 

continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 

accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of 

such offense. 

 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 

unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 

publication, whichever shall later occur. 

 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 

a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 

the ___ day of ________ 2008. 

 

 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



Revision 2r- CLEAN COPY 

 

 

CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 93 

OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 

 

The City of Troy ordains: 

 

Section 1.  Short Title 

 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the 16th amendment to Chapter 93, Fire 

Prevention, of the Code of the City of Troy.  

 

Section 2.  Amendment 
 

93.00 Adoption of the 2006 International Fire Code by Reference. The International 

Fire Code, 2006 Edition, including its appendices, is hereby adopted by reference with 

the additions, insertions, deletions and changes prescribed in Section 93.01 of this 

Ordinance, as the Fire Prevention Code of the City of Troy, regulating and governing the 

safeguarding of life and property from fire and explosion hazards arising from the 

storage, handling and use of hazardous substances, materials and devices, and from 

conditions hazardous to life and property in the occupancy of buildings.  This Ordinance 

and a copy of the International Fire Code, 2006 Edition, shall be kept on file with the 

City Clerk. 

 

93.01  Additions, Insertions, Deletions and Changes to the International Fire Code, 

2006 Edition and Amendment to Chapter 93.  The City of Troy adopts the following 

amendments to Chapter 93 of the Code of Ordinances which represent additions, 

insertions, deletions and changes from the International Fire Code, 2006 Edition. 

Subsequent section numbers used in this section shall refer to the like numbered sections 

of the International Fire Code,  2006 Edition. Deletions are indicated with strike-through 

text while additions and insertions are indicated with underlined text. Any provisions of 

Chapter 93, Section 93.01 which are not amended or deleted herein shall remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

105.6 Required operational permits. The code official is authorized to issue operational 

permits for the operations set forth in Sections 105.6.1 through 105.6.46. Where there are 

no provisions for issuing said permits, the code official is authorized to waive the 

particular permit requirement.  

 

105.6.13 Special events. An operational permit is required to operate/conduct all special 

events including exhibits, crafts, and trade shows. 

 



105.6.20 Hazardous materials. An operational permit is required to store, transport on 

site, dispense, use or handle hazardous materials in excess of the most restrictive amounts 

listed in this code, the EPA’s  Emergency Planning and Community Right To Know 

regulations, and MIOSHA’s Firefighter Right To Know requirements. 

 

105.6.20.1 Required amounts for reporting. Reportable quantities shall be considered 

the maximum amount of hazardous material on site at any given time. This amount is 

required to be reported to the fire department as indicated in the Troy Fire Department’s 

HMIS packet as defined in Chapter 27 of this code. 

 

105.6.21 Hazardous Materials. Deleted. 

 

105.6.21.1 Required Amounts for Reporting. Deleted. 

 

105.7.13 Permit Issuance. Deleted. 

 

105.7.14 Permit issuance. A permit granted hereunder shall not be transferable 

nor shall any such permit be extended beyond the time set forth therein unless 

approved by the fire official. When work is started without a permit, the permit 

fee shall be doubled. 
 

109.3 Violation penalties. Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail 

to comply with any requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair, service, 

test or do work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the 

fire code official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions of this code, shall be   

responsible for a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of 

the Code for the City of Troy. Each day that a violation continues after due notice has 

been served shall be deemed a separate offense. Sanctions for each violation shall include 

a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders, as authorized by 

Chapter 100.   

 

SECTION 202 

GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
 

307.1.1 Prohibited open burning. Open burning that is offensive or objectionable 

because of smoke or odor emissions or when atmospheric conditions or local 

circumstances make such fires hazardous shall be prohibited. Burning for purposes of 

incineration of waste material including paper, leaves, or any other combustible 

debris, outside of any structure at any place is prohibited. 
 

307.2 Allowable burning. Open burning shall be allowed without prior notification to 

the fire official for recreational fires, highway safety flares, smudge pots and similar 

occupational needs. Bonfires may be permitted if in compliance with 307.3.1 and subject 

to prior approval of the fire official. 
 

307.2.2. Prohibited open burning. Deleted. 

 

307.2.3. Allowable burning. Deleted. 
 



307.3 Extinguishment authority. The fire code official or police official is authorized to 

order the extinguishment by the responsible person, another person responsible, or the 

fire department of open burning that creates or adds to a hazardous or objectionable 

situation. 

 

307.3.1  Bonfires. Deleted. 

 

307.4.1 Bonfires.  A bonfire shall not be conducted within 50 feet (15 240 mm) of a 

structure or combustible material unless the fire is contained in a barbecue pit. Conditions 

which could cause a fire to spread within 50 feet (15 240 mm) of a structure shall be 

eliminated prior to ignition. Once approved, the intended maximum size and duration of a 

bonfire shall not be increased unless by City Council and only after it has been 

determined by the fire official that fire safety requirements of the situation and the 

desirable duration of burn warrant the increase prior to the bonfire. 

 

307.3.3 Ground Fires. Deleted. 

 

307.4.3 Ground fires. A ground fire shall be the minimum size for the intended purpose 

but not larger than 3 feet by 3 feet by 3 feet in dimension and shall be contained in a safe 

manner. 
 

404.5.1 Format. Fire safety and evacuation plans, general floor plans, seating 

arrangements, storage configurations, or other specific plans shall be furnished to the fire 

code official in an approved format upon request. 

 

 

SECTION 502  

DEFINITIONS 

 

609.1.1 Exhaust fans. Exhaust fans for commercial cooking hoods shall be installed so 

that the fans are operational at all times cooking is occurring. This may be accomplished 

by a temperature monitoring device installed in, on, or near the hood to activate the 

exhaust fan(s) at a pre-determined temperature, or as otherwise approved by the code 

official. 

 

610.1.1 Exhaust fans. Deleted. 

 

803.1.1. Explosive and highly flammable or combustible materials. Deleted. 

 

803.3.1. Explosive and highly flammable or combustible materials. Furnishings or 

decorations of an explosive or highly flammable or combustible character shall not be 

used. 

 

804.1.1. Restricted Occupancies. Deleted. 

 

805.1 General. Deleted. 

 

806.1.1 Restricted occupancies. Natural cut trees shall be prohibited in Group A, B, E, 

F, H, I, M, R-1, R-2, R-4, S, and U occupancies. 

 



Exceptions. Trees located in areas protected by an approved automatic fire 

sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2 shall 

not be prohibited in Groups A, B,E, F, M, R-1,R-2, S, and U.  

 

807.1 General. In occupancies of Groups A, B, E, F, H, I, M, R-1, dormitories in Group 

R-2, R-4, S, and U, curtains, draperies, hangings and other decorative materials 

suspended from walls or ceilings shall meet the flame propagation performance criteria of 

NFPA 701 in accordance with Section 806.2 or be noncombustible. 

 

901.5. Installation acceptance testing. Deleted.  

 

901.5 Installation acceptance testing. Fire detection and alarm systems, fire-

extinguishing systems, fire hydrant systems, fire standpipe systems, fire pump systems, 

private fire service mains and all other fire protection systems and appurtenances thereto 

shall be subject to acceptance tests as contained in the installation standards and as 

approved by the fire code official. The fire code official shall be notified before any 

required acceptance testing is performed in order to schedule, witness and approve such 

testing prior to use of said fire protection system or equipment. 

 

901.6.2 Records. Deleted.  

 

901.6.2 Records. Records of all system inspections, tests and maintenance required by 

the referenced standards shall be maintained on the premises for a minimum of three 

years and shall be copied to the fire code official upon request.  A copy shall also be sent 

to the fire code official by the service company or individual performing such work 

within 30 days or as may be otherwise required by the fire code official.  

 

901.6.2.1 Noncompliant systems. Deleted. 

 

901.6.2.2 Noncompliant systems. Fire suppression, protection, or other related systems 

found to be noncompliant, malfunctioning, or otherwise non-operational in the manner 

required, designed, or intended, shall be identified as “noncompliant” by the service 

company or individual performing such service, and the fire code official and the 

occupant shall be notified immediately or at the earliest practical time. At no time shall 

an approval, compliance, or other indication of operability be affixed to, on, or near such 

system(s) so as to give false indication of designed, intended, or expected operation. 

 

SECTION 902 

DEFINITIONS 

 

903.2.10.3 Buildings over 30 feet in height. Deleted.  

 

903.2.10.3 Buildings over 30 feet in height. An automatic sprinkler system shall be 

installed throughout a building that has a floor level which has an occupant load of 30 or 

more occupants and which is located 30 feet (9144 mm) or more above the lowest level 

of fire department vehicle access. 

 

Exceptions: Refer to the Michigan Building Code, as set forth in Chapter 79, 

Section 8.1 of the City of Troy Code. 

 



903.3.5.3 Required pressure margin. The code official is authorized to require a 

pressure margin of up to twenty (20)  p.s.i. over the minimum design criteria for installed 

automatic fire sprinkler systems. Where this margin cannot be achieved, approved means 

shall be taken to provide this margin. 

 

907.7.1 Annunciation. Where fire suppression systems exist in multi-tenant occupancies, 

i.e., strip malls, separate annunciation, including water flow switch and inspector test 

valve, shall be required for each separately addressed tenant space unless otherwise 

approved by the code official. 

 

907.10.2.2 Audible alarm appliance silencing.  Deleted.  

 

907.12.1 Remote annunciation: Deleted. 

 

 

SECTION 914.0 

TEMPERATURE AND MONITORING 

 

Deleted in its entirety 

 

SECTION 915.0 

TEMPERATURE AND MONITORING 

 

915.1 General. Precautions shall be taken in all rooms and areas containing fire sprinkler 

equipment such as piping, valve(s), and fire pump(s), to prevent freezing of said 

equipment during times of extremely cold temperatures. Where the code official deems 

necessary, equipment shall be installed to monitor the temperature of said areas and send 

a trouble or supervisory signal to an approved location when the temperature falls below 

40 degrees F to warn of freezing conditions so that the occurrence of frozen and/or 

broken piping, valve(s), and fire pump(s) can be prevented. 

 

1019.1.8 Smokeproof enclosures. Deleted. 

 

1020.1.7 Smokeproof enclosures. In buildings required to comply with Section 403 or 

405 of the International Building Code, each of the exits of a building which serves 

stories where the floor surface is more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) above the lowest level 

of fire department vehicle access or more than 30 feet (9144 mm) below the level of exit 

discharge serving such floor levels shall be a smokeproof enclosure or pressurized 

stairway in accordance with Section 909.2 of the International Building Code. 

 

1022.2 Use in a means of egress. Deleted. 

 

1023.2 Use in a means of egress. Exterior exit stairways shall not be used as an element 

of a required means of egress for occupancies in Group I-2. For occupancies in other than 

Group I-2, exterior exit stairways shall be permitted as an element of a required means of 

egress for buildings not exceeding five stories above grade plane or having occupied 

floors more than 55 feet (16 764 mm) in height above the lowest level of fire department 

vehicle access. 

 

1025.1 General. Deleted. 

 



1026.1 General. In addition to the means of egress required by this chapter, provisions 

shall be made for emergency escape and rescue in Group R and I-1 occupancies. 

Basements and sleeping rooms below the fourth story above grade plane shall have at 

least one exterior emergency escape and rescue opening in accordance with this section. 

Where basements contain one or more sleeping rooms, emergency egress and rescue 

openings shall be required in each sleeping room, but shall not be required in adjoining 

areas of the basement. Such openings shall open directly into a public way or to a yard or 

court that opens to a public way. 

 

Exceptions: 

1. In other than Group R-3 occupancies, buildings equipped throughout with an 

approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 

903.3.1.2. 

2. In other than Group R-3 occupancies, sleeping rooms provided with a door to a 

fire-resistance-rated corridor having access to two remote exits in opposite 

directions. 

3. The emergency escape and rescue opening is permitted to open onto a balcony 

within an atrium in accordance with the requirements of Section 404 of the 

International Building Code, provided the balcony provides access to an exit and 

the dwelling unit or sleeping unit has a means of egress that is not open to the 

atrium. 

4. Basements with a ceiling height of less than 80 inches (2032 mm) shall not be 

required to have emergency escape and rescue windows. 

5. High-rise buildings in accordance with Section 403 of the International 

Building Code. 

6. Emergency escape and rescue openings are not required from basements or 

sleeping rooms that have an exit door or exit access door that opens directly into 

a public way or to a yard, court or exterior exit balcony that opens to a public 

way. 

7. Basements without habitable spaces and having no more than 200 square feet 

(18.6m2) in floor area shall not be required to have emergency escape windows. 

 

3301.1.1 Explosive material standard. In addition to the requirements of this chapter, 

NFPA 495 shall govern the manufacture, transportation, storage, sale, handling and use 

of explosive materials, along with the Michigan Explosives Law 1970 PA 202, as 

amended, or its equivalent. 

 

3308.11 Retail display and sale. Deleted. 

 

3308.11 Retail display and sale. A permit shall be required as set forth in Section 105.6 

and regulated in accordance with this section. Fireworks displayed for retail sale shall not 

be made readily accessible to the public. A minimum of one pressurized-water portable 

fire extinguisher complying with Section 906 shall be located not more than 15 feet (4572 

mm) and not less than 10 feet (3048 mm) from the hazard. “No Smoking” signs 

complying with Section 310 shall be conspicuously posted in areas where fireworks are 

stored or displayed for retail sale. No person under the age of 18 years shall sell, purchase 

or possess fireworks unless accompanied by a parent or legal guardian. 

 

3405.2.4 Class I and II liquids. Deleted. 

 

3406.2.5.2 Tanks for gravity discharge. Deleted. 



 

Section 3.  Savings 

 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 

time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be consummated 

under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were 

commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending 

prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or 

impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses 

committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be 

instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be 

continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 

accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of 

such offense. 

 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 

unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 

publication, whichever shall later occur. 

 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 

a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 

the ___ day of ________ 2008. 

 

 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 11, 2008, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 
Pastor Paul Monson of St. Augustine Evangelical Lutheran Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a. On behalf of the City of Troy Employees‟ Casual for a Cause Program (June), Carol 

Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director presented and accepted a check in the amount 
of $503.17 to the Troy Seniors. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 City of Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority Issuing Tax-Exempt Bonds for 

William Beaumont Hospital – Troy 

 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the Petitioner. No comment 
was received from the Public. 
 
Resolution #2008-08-242 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority (the “Authority”) proposes to 
make loans to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”), to be used, in part, by the Hospital 
to (1) finance the construction, acquisition, renovation, equipping, rehabilitation and/or improve 
hospital facilities in the City of Troy, Michigan and (2) refinance indebtedness used to finance 
the construction, renovation and equipping of certain hospital facilities in the City of Troy, 
Michigan;  

WHEREAS, The Authority intends to issue City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group) and Hospital Revenue 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group), in one or more series (the 
“Bonds”) on behalf of the Hospital in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 
$825,000,000 to provide funds with which to make loans to the Hospital;  

WHEREAS, The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority and will not constitute 
general obligations or debt of the City of Royal Oak, the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, 
the State of Michigan or any political subdivision thereof;  

WHEREAS, The City Council has held a public hearing after notice was published as provided 
in, and in satisfaction of the applicable public hearing requirements of, the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);  

WHEREAS, A record of public hearing will be maintained with the City Clerk;  

WHEREAS, The Authority has requested that this City Council approve the issuance of the 
Bonds by the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to express its approval of the issuance 
of the Bonds by the Authority; 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TROY, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Solely for the purpose of fulfilling the public approval requirements of the 

Code, the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the issuance, 
sale and delivery of not to exceed $825,000,000 in aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds by the Authority; and 

2. The City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to provide three (3) certified copies of 
this resolution to the Secretary of the Authority. 

Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Approval of Proposed Ballot Language of the Citizen Petition Initiated Charter 

Amendment Proposal – Section 9.16.5 

 
Resolution #2008-08-243 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES for placement on the November 4, 
2008 Election, the following ballot question:  
 

AN INITIATORY PETITION TO AMEND THE TROY CITY 

CHARTER BY ADDING SECTION 9.16.5 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation be added 
to the Troy City Charter as follows:  

 
“Section 9.16.5. The Council shall not increase the millage rate 
imposed pursuant to Section 9.16 of this charter above a current rate 
actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the increased rate 
shall first be approved by a majority of the City electors voting on the 
question.”? 
Yes ___ No ___ 
 

Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak 
No: Beltramini, Kerwin, Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Resolution for the Distribution of Charter Amendment Educational 

Information 
 
Resolution #2008-08-244 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council shall hereby APPROVE any educational information that is 
posted or sent out by the City regarding the November 4, 2008 Charter Amendment before 
publication. 
 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City 

Council Appointments: Historic District Commission and Historical Commission 

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments – No appointments scheduled 

 
(b) City Council Appointments  

 
Resolution #2008-08-245 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

Historic District Commission  
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms  

  

Emily Wang-Student Term Expires 07/01/09 

  

Historical Commission  
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms  

  

Yanyu (Andrew) Liu-Student Term Expires 07/31/09 

 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: None (b) City Council Nominations: Parks and Recreation Board  

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations – No nominations scheduled 
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Resolution #2008-08-246 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular: 3-Year Terms) (1-Troy School Board: 1-Year Term)  
(1-Troy Daze Committee: 1-Year Term ) (1-Adv. Comm. for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Term) 

 
Gary Hauff                     Troy School District Rep. Term Expires 07/31/09 

 
Yes All-7  

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-3 Rescind Concept Development Plan Approval – The Oasis at Centennial Park 

Planned Unit Development (PUD 6), South Side of Long Lake and West Side of 

John R, Section 14, Currently Zoned PUD 
 
Resolution #2008-08-247 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, On September 10, 2007, City Council granted Concept Development Plan 
approval, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, for The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 6), located on the south side of Long Lake and west side of John R, 
Section 14, being approximately 9.35 acres in size; 
 
WHEREAS, The property was rezoned to the Planned Unit Development zoning district 
designation on September 10, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner Oasis at Centennial Park, LLC has requested that the Concept 
Development Plan be abandoned; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DECLARES The Oasis at Centennial Park 
Planned Unit Development (PUD 6) project to be abandoned; and 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS the Concept Development Plan 
approval for The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development (PUD 6); and 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby INVALIDATES the Development Agreement 
for The Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development (PUD 6); and 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS any and all rights and approvals 
granted under and as a part of the Concept Development Plan for The Oasis at Centennial 
Park Planned Unit Development (PUD 6); and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
this resolution with the Oakland County Register of Deeds as evidence of City Council action.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-4 Bid Waiver – Printing of Election and Voter Registration Materials 
 
Resolution #2008-08-248 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. provides Election related supplies and printed materials that 
comply to State of Michigan standards; 
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. has provided the City of Troy with the required materials as 
a result of the lowest quote and regularly as the only vendor able to provide the materials 
requested in the quotes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. holds the contract for ballot printing and supply kits with 
Oakland County and it is desirable to utilize Printing Systems, Inc. for ballot folding and 
specialized forms in conjunction with the County procurement;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and AUTHORIZES the purchase of printing of Election and Voter Registration 
materials from Printing Systems, Inc. at an estimated cost of $40,000.00.  
 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-5 Ordinance to Add Chapter 101 to Troy City Code - Liquor Licenses 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to add Chapter 101, Liquor 
Licenses, to the Troy City Code City, as recommended by the City Attorney, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Chapter 101-Liquor Licenses of the Troy City Code 
 
Resolution #2008-08-249 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution to Add Chapter 101 to the 

Troy City Code-Liquor Licenses by MOVING “which shall be determined by the Troy City 

Council in its sole discretion” AFTER “or an assembly or a convention center use” in Paragraph 
9. 
 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Chapter 101-Liquor Licenses of the Troy City Code as 

Amended 

 
Resolution #2008-08-250 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to add Chapter 101, Liquor 

Licenses, to the Troy City Code, as recommended by the City Attorney and AMENDED by 

MOVING “which shall be determined by the Troy City Council in its sole discretion” AFTER “or 

an assembly or a convention center use” in Paragraph 9, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

E-6 Amendment to Chapter 98 of Troy City Code – Criminal Code for Liquor License 

Decoy Enforcement Operations 
 
Resolution #2008-08-251 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Sections 
98.10.06 and 98.10.11 and the addition of a new Section 98.10.14 of Chapter 98 of the Troy 

City Code as recommended by the City Attorney, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-7 Amendment to Chapter 13 of Troy City Code – Historic Preservation  
 
Resolution #2008-08-252 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Section 3 of 
Chapter 13 of the Troy City Code as recommended by the City Attorney, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-8 Phase II Stormwater Permit – Administrative Challenge  
 
Resolution #2008-08-253 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS City Administration‟s filing of a 

Contested Case Proceeding Challenging the NPDES Storm Water Permit, and AUTHORIZES 
the payment of any necessary costs and expenses to adequately represent the City.  
 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

Resolution #2008-08-254-F-1a 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Items F-2, F-5, and F-6, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes All-7 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 

  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Vending Machine Services   
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a five-year contract to provide for the 
installation, operation and management of on-site vending machine services for various City of 
Troy facilities with additional options to renew at one-year intervals for a maximum length of ten 
(10) years to Vendtek/Satellite Vending Company of Wixom, MI, the bidder with the highest 
score as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City Council determines to be in the 
public interest, at a 15% - 18% return on gross receipts, which is offset by the cost of 
$45/month for money changers at the Library and Community Center; or a guaranteed 
minimum of $11,000.00 per year whichever is greater, to expire August 31, 2013; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, 

agreement and all other specified requirements, and Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement when in acceptable form.  
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Sole Bidder Meeting 

 Specifications – Stain Exterior General Store   
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all equipment, 
material, and labor to stain the exterior of the General Store located at the Troy Historical 
Museum to the sole bidder meeting specifications, Hermes Painting Company of Troy, MI, for 
an estimated total cost of $45,000.00, at prices contained on the bid tabulation opened June 

11, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
submission of proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Sidewalk 

 Replacement and Installation Program   
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On August 20, 2007, a contract to complete the Sidewalk Replacement and 
Installation Program for 2007/08 with an option to renew for two additional one-year periods 
was awarded to the low total bidder, Viking Construction, Inc. of Warren, Michigan (Resolution 
#2007-08-250-E-4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Viking Construction has agreed to exercise first of two one-year options to renew 
the contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the first one-year 
option to renew the contract with Viking Construction to provide sidewalk replacement and 
installation for the 2008/09 construction season under the same prices, terms, and conditions as 
contained in the bid tabulation opened July 19, 2007, to expire June 30, 2009. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Major Street Pavement 

Marking Program   
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a two-year contract to furnish major 
street pavement markings with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low total 
bidder, RS Contracting, Inc. of Casco Twp, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 

opened July 11, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting to expire June 30, 2010; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificate(s) and all 
other specified requirements.  
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Initial Issue Police Uniforms and Equipment   
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4e 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to supply two-year 
requirements of initial issue police uniforms and equipment for newly hired Police Department 
employees, with an option to renew for two one-year periods, to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Metropolitan Uniform Company, 3065 Orchard Lake Road, Keego Harbor, MI 
48320, at an estimated cost of $1,638.98 per employee, plus tailoring charges of $8.00 per 
flashlight pocket, shirt or pants, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened on July 16, 

2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting to expire 
August 11, 2010.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – Troy 

Daze Tents   
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4f 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish, set-up and take 
down tents for the Troy Daze Festival to the lowest bidders meeting specifications, Dial Tent & 
Awning Co., Inc of Saginaw, MI, and Ace Canvas & Tent of Detroit, MI for an estimated total 
cost of $11,656.00 and $5,255.00 respectively, at unit prices contained in the price quote 
submitted August 4, 2008 and bid tabulation opened August 1, 2008, copies of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors‟ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 

 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award - Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Community Center Treadmills   
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4g 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase and install 
thirteen (13) new commercial treadmills at the Community Center to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI, at an estimated net total cost of 
$51,142.00 including trade-ins, at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened July 21, 2008, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company‟s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 

h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 08-8 – Civic 

 Center and Town Center Mill and Overlay   
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4h 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 08-8, Civic Center and 
Town Center Mill and Overlay, to Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, 
MI 48084, at an estimated total cost of $595,675.70; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 

i) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract – 

Engineering Software Maintenance (Bentley Systems, Inc.)   
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

Resolution #2008-08-254-F-4i 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Proprietary Maintenance Service 
contract to provide software maintenance for Microstation, InRoads, InRoads Survey, 
PowerSurvey and InRoads Storm and Sanitary Sewer software through July 13, 2009 to 
Bentley Systems, Inc., 685 Stockton Drive, Exton, PA 19341 for an estimated total cost of 
$15,671.36. 
 

F-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 16, 2008 
 

(a) Establishment of Fire Lanes – 1607 E. Big Beaver  
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-7a 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 08-03-MR be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes at 1607 E. Big Beaver as recommended by the Fire Department as shown in the 
attached sketch. 
 

(b) Establishment of Fire Lanes – 6475 Rochester Road  
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-7b 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 08-04-MR be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes at 6475 Rochester Road as recommended by the Fire Department as shown in the 
attached sketch. 
 

F-8 Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – Section 9 Water Main Replacement 

Project #01.508.5 – Sidwell #88-20-09-233-022, Perry and Ramona Sankovich 
 
Resolution #2008-08-254-F-8 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for water 
main from property owner Perry J. Sankovich and Ramona Sankovich, owners of the property 
having Sidwell #88-20-09-233-022; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to 
record the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which 
shall be attached to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-08-255 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of July 21, 2008 as corrected. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F-5 Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, Long Lake Road 

to Square Lake Road, Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #15 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-

037 – Dynex Properties, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2008-08-256 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Dynex Properties, Inc., owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-11-
226-037, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road in the amount of $34,000.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F-6 Approval of MDOT Contract No. 08-5205 Street Lighting System Beneath I-75 at 

Long Lake Road – Project No. 08.102.6 
 
Resolution #2008-08-257 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Contract No. 08-5205 between 
the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation for the replacement of the 
street lighting system under I-75 at the Long Lake Road structure, Project No. 08.102.6, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a. EcoMotors, 1055 West Square Lake – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) 

and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – August 25, 
2008  

Noted and Filed 
 

b. Concept Development Plan Approval – Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development (PUD 13) 
– West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5500 New King), Section 8 – O-M 
District – August 25, 2008      

Noted and Filed 
 
 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Discussion on the Possibility of City Council Adopting a Civility Pledge, 

Requested by Council Member Kerwin 

Council Member Kerwin reminded Council that during the time Council Member Lambert 
served on City Council that he encouraged other council members to adopt a code of conduct 
or rules by which Council can govern themselves. Council Member Kerwin is hoping that 
Council will set time aside at an additional meeting where she can share the ideas from the 
various professional development sessions she has recently attended. She continued by 
stating that she is also hoping that they can reinstate the third meeting that was abandoned 
when the current Council established their rules to discuss policy issue topics such as the one 
she is suggesting tonight. Council Member Kerwin noted that there are several available dates 
at the end of September and in October where an additional meeting could be incorporated for 
discussions about developing a code of conduct. 
 
Mayor Schilling concurred but is concerned that City Council is already obligated to meet to 
conclude discussions in regard to the Budgeting for Outcomes strategy. The Mayor then asked 
whether Council Member Kerwin is suggesting that City Council meet on Mondays when no 
meeting is scheduled.  
 
Council Member Kerwin agreed and reminded City Council members that the last Budgeting for 
Outcomes meeting finished rapidly and that policy issue topics could be added to those 
meetings. Council Member Kerwin continued by stating that time needs to be set aside to 
discuss other policy topics also such as the Green Initiative topic which was brought forward by 
Council Member Eisenbacher. 
 
Mayor Schilling recalled that once staff has compiled City Council‟s responses, the plan is to 
continue discussions about Budgeting for Outcomes after an upcoming City Council meeting in 
September. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

Council Member Kerwin‟s preference would be to meet in a smaller room to discuss and 
develop their own civility pledge and although it would be an official meeting, it would be a 
workshop environment. She continued by stating that they all know a civility pledge is the 
hallmark of all efficient and effective governing teams, and Troy‟s City Council has never 
developed one. 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher recalled that former City Council Member Lambert„s proposal for 
a code of ethics would be a precursor to the information that was brought back by Council 
Member Kerwin. He understands that what has been holding them back is that there are other 
levels of state government currently formulating something similar to this type of policy. 
 
City Attorney, Lori Bluhm advised that in her discussions with other Michigan Municipal League 
members that there is publication (Ethics in Local Government), scheduled to be released in 
the very immediate future that may possibly provide them with some guidance. Ms. Bluhm 
understands that there are plans to offer an on-line version so that the information can be 
accessed immediately. 
 
Council Member Beltramini believes it is time to quit postponing policy issue topics and 
recommends that they consult their calendars to consider dates for additional meetings during 
the next quarter. She further believes that if City Council does not complete their Budgeting for 
Outcomes discussions within the next six weeks that staff will not be able to prepare a budget. 
 
Council Member Broomfield is supportive of scheduling study sessions after regular meetings 
that are already scheduled that can accommodate an additional meeting afterwards. She 
added that she would be open to scheduling a third meeting only if necessary. She continued 
by stating that she recalls the reason a third meeting was originally scheduled in the past was 
because City Council was not getting through their agendas at their regular meetings. 
 
Mayor Schilling agreed with Council Member Broomfield, but is in favor of getting the Budgeting 
for Outcomes well underway before scheduling meetings to discuss other policy issue items 
after a scheduled regular City Council meeting. The Mayor is also agreeable to scheduling an 
additional meeting on a Monday to be consistent with their current meeting schedule. She 
recalled that Council Member Howrylak is supportive of scheduling additional meetings on 
Mondays also. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments: 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher asked what precautions are currently in place to protect the 
City‟s savings and further asked whether a preapproved back-up needs to be in place to 
transfer funds should any of the City‟s banks be at risk of going into receivership.  
 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration, replied that all of the banks 
are carefully selected for investments and the investments are scattered with various banks 
that are reviewed by City Council annually. He continued by stating that the City‟s current 
investment banks are fairly local and in good shape. He added that they keep a close eye on 
the City‟s main depository, Fifth-Third Bank by pulling condition reports and noted that Fifth-
Third Bank is doing well at this point. Mr. Lamerato reported that he has the authority to 
transfer funds quickly if necessary. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

Although Council Member Beltramini is an advocate of buried power lines, she understands 
that state law governs designations of where lines can be located underground for local 
jurisdictions and that underground lines are limited to one area. She advised that Troy has 
designated the DDA area along Big Beaver for underground utility lines. Council Member 
Beltramini further understands that changes to this regulation can only be made at the state 
level. 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services reported that lines 
were located underground along Telegraph Road during the reconstruction in the City of Taylor 
in accordance with their ordinance. He continued by stating that in a recent case involving the 
City of Taylor, the State‟s Supreme Court ruled in favor of the utility companies and the city had 
to reimburse the cost for putting the lines underground to the utility companies. Mr. Murphy 
suggested that Council take this under consideration when exploring the possibility of locating 
utility lines underground.  
 
Therefore, Council Member Beltramini understands that the City can only compel the utility 
companies to locate utility lines underground along Big Beaver.  
 
Mr. Murphy agreed. 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a. Traffic Committee/Final – February 20, 2008 
b. Traffic Committee/Final – March 19, 2008 
c. Downtown Development Authority/Final – June 18, 2008 
d. Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – June 24, 2008 
e. Planning Commission/Draft – July 8, 2008 
f. Planning Commission/Final – July 8, 2008 
g. Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 15, 2008 
h. Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 15, 2008 
i. Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – July 15, 2008 
j. Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 29, 2008  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a. City Attorney‟s Office – 2008 Second Quarter Litigation Report 
b. Police Department – 2008 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report  
c. Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2008 
d. Council Member Kerwin‟s Travel Expense Report – Institute for Local Government‟s 

“Who Controls our Water System” Session on May 22, 2008 
e. Council Member Kerwin‟s Travel Expense Report – SME Chapter One Workshop: 

Michigan‟s Economy on June 17, 2008  
f. Council Member Kerwin‟s Travel Expense Report – MSUE Master Planner Advanced 

Academy on June 18, 2008  
g. Council Member Kerwin‟s Travel Expense Report – SEMCOG University Workshop: 

Asset Management on July 15, 2008  
h. Council Member Kerwin‟s Travel Expense Report – “Building a Championship Team” – 

Troy Chamber of Commerce on July 30, 2008  
Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a. Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Troy High School Teacher Gail Yax Regarding the 

Cooperation and Services Received from Troy Police Personnel with Troy High School 
Students  

b. Letter of Appreciation from Shelley Spinner Regarding the Troy Family Aquatic Center  
c. Letters of Appreciation from H&S Inspection Service Regarding the Contributions of 

Richard Kessler, Gary Bowers, and Robert Winkelman during 422 Oliver Building 
Reconstruction 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

J-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Draft Minutes from May 15, 2008 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson Regarding the Fitness Trail in 

Raintree Park 

Council Member Fleming recommends that by raising the level of the landscaping along the 
fitness trail that the dense vegetation will provide sufficient screening, and will satisfy the 
resident‟s objections to the fitness trail adjacent to his property. Council Member Fleming 
believes this solution is much more cost effective than if they were to reconstruct the trail. 

Council Member Beltramini believes the proposed plantings will obscure a 4-foot fence. 
 
Mayor Schilling believes that the proposed landscape design plan is an appropriate way to 
resolve this issue with the adjacent residents who object to the fitness trail in Raintree Park. 
The Mayor explained that she believes it is not feasible for City Council to bring forward a 
resolution to remove the path due to the cost involved and reminded everyone that it was 
members of the community who requested inter-connecting pathways in all of the city‟s parks.  
 
David Ross supports the compromise of the City installing a berm and plantings for screening, 
but raised concerns about the proposed landscape design plan. Mr. Ross would like 
clarification in regard to exactly what kinds of plants the City is intending to plant and be 
assured that his view of the park will be completely blocked. 
 
Zitao Liu has safety concerns for his non-English speaking parents and small son in regard to 
the proximity of the fitness trail to his house. Mr. Liu supports the proposal to install a berm and 
plantings for screening. 
 
Council Member Beltramini asked whether it would be less expensive to install a five-foot 
privacy fence rather than spend $4,000-$5,000.00 in landscaping. 
 
Mayor Schilling‟s concern is that the fence would only benefit Mr. Ross and the landscaping 
option would benefit everyone. 
 
Council Member Beltramini believes another argument could be raised that the landscaping 
takes away from areas that can be used for the park. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

Council Member Broomfield is not certain that the other adjacent residents would welcome 
breaks between landscaping and fencing. Therefore, she believes landscaping is the better 
choice. 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher asked if the intent is to provide a screen to block the visibility of 
the resident‟s view of the park. 
 
Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director responded that the intent is to block the view and 
described the types of proposed plantings. She explained that their goal is to also make the 
area appropriate and attractive. 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher asked whether it is possible to provide a horizontal view of the 
plan for Mr. Ross. 
 
Mrs. Anderson replied that she could redo the plan and provide a horizontal view. However, 
she noted that she does not recall Mr. Ross asking for a side view of the plan. She added that 
depending upon the plantings and the season that the view will change due to the growth of the 
plantings. She assured Council that the intent is to screen Mr. Ross‟ view of the park. 
 
Council Member Beltramini believes it would be helpful to articulate the plan in a way that will 
clearly address the concerns of Mr. Ross. 
 
Mrs. Anderson agreed. 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  
 
Resolution #2008-08-258 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Love v. Troy.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 11, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

L-2 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Manager as Permitted by 

Council Resolution #2008-07-232 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:58 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 10:08 PM. 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 1:03 AM on Tuesday, August 12, 2008. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 

Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

 
 

August 8, 2008 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    William S. Nelson, Fire Chief   
      

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 7:  Amendment – Proprietary Service 
Contract CLEMIS Fire Records Management System  

 

Background 

 The Fire department as been using the CLEMIS Fire Records Management System (FRMS) 
since 2000.   

 The contract was extended in 2006 for three additional years at an estimated cost of $18,025.00. 
CC Res #2006-10-320-E4b 

 During the first five years of the program, Oakland County CLEMIS provided the leased data lines 
that connect the Fire stations with City Hall and shared the cost of the lines with the City on a 
prorated schedule. 

 Oakland County billed the City for the cost of the data lines on a quarterly basis. 

 In 2007, the City Information Technology department was able to reconfigure the leased data 
lines to decrease the monthly line charge and Oakland County was notified to cancel the data 
lines they provided to the City. 

 Due to the billing process at Oakland County, two quarters (six months) of the leased line 
charges were billed after the effective date of the 2006 contract extension and charged against 
the current purchase order. 

 These charges have resulted in the expenditure of the maximum amount of the purchase order 
prior to the scheduled end of the contract. 

 In order to continue with the FRMS program an additional $7,725.00 must be added to the 
estimated 2006-2009 contract cost. 

 

Financial Considerations 

 Funds are budgeted in the Fire department operating budget for this program. 
 

Legal Considerations 

 The Fire department is required by state law to report fire incident activity to the State Fire 
Marshal. 

 

Policy Considerations 

 This regional program is consistent with City Council outcome number 1 - Troy has enhanced the health 
and safety of the community. 

 

Options 

 City management recommends amendment of the FRMS contract by adding $7,725.00 to the 
five-year agreement with Oakland County for an estimated total cost of $25,750.00.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a





 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
October 11, 2006 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
    Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief   
      
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 7:  Proprietary Service Contract 

CLEMIS Fire Records Management System  
 

Background: 
• The fire department as been using the CLEMIS Fire Records Management System 

(FRMS) since 2000.  CC Resolution # 2002-08-459-E7 
• The Oakland County Board of Commissioners has authorized Oakland County to fund 

75% of the FRMS costs. 
• The FRMS permits fire departments within Oakland County to share data as required. 
• The fire department share of the cost was fixed at approximately $5,300 per year for the 

first five years of the program. 
• The cost for each participating agency has been increased 10% for 2007, 3% for 2008, 

and 3% for 2009. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
• Funds are budgeted in the fire department operating budget for this program. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
• The fire department is required by state law to report fire incident activity to the State Fire 

Marshal. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
• This regional program is consistent with City Council goals I – Minimize cost and increase 

efficiency of City government; and goal VI – protect life and property.  
 
Options: 
• City management recommends approval of a five-year interlocal agreement with Oakland 

County for participation in the Oakland County Fire Records Management System at an 
estimated cost of $18,025.00 to expire December 31, 2009.  

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



 
 

Oakland County 
Fire Records Management System 

 
2006 - 2009 Fee Structure 

 
 
 

 2006 2007 2008 2009 
Annual 

 Department  
Fees 

Annual  
Department  

Fees 

Annual 
 Department 

 Fees 

Annual 
 Department 

 Fees 
$ 3,500.00 $ 3,850.00 $ 3,966.00 $ 4,085.00 

Annual  
Additional  

Station Fee 

Annual 
 Additional  
Station Fee 

Annual  
Additional  

Station Fee 

Annual  
Additional  

Station Fee 
$ 300.00 $ 330.00 $ 340.00 $ 350.00 

 
 
 
 
Approved 1/11/2006 
Oakland County Fire Governance Committee 
 
Note: This is the first fee increase since the program’s inception. 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
August 5, 2008                        
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Sole Known Supplier – Cell Phone Forensics Purchase 
 
 

Background 
 
 Cell phone forensics is a growing field within law enforcement.  Most if not all criminals have and 

use cell phones before, during, and after whatever criminal activity they are involved in.  The 
evidence retrieved from these phones includes contact lists, call logs, text messages, emails, 
documents, and images that can be used to substantiate a claim of criminal activity. 
 

 The recovery of evidence from cell phones is a very complicated activity that requires specialized 
training, and specific hardware and software used to retrieve the evidence.   

 
 The department has a certified computer forensic examiner who has taken several classes 

dealing specifically with cell phone forensics and has tested all ten products requested for 
purchase through his involvement with the Michigan State Police Computer Forensics Lab.   
 

 The Police department has conducted over a hundred cell phone forensic examinations with the 
use of the software and hardware provided at the Michigan State Police Computer Forensic Lab 
located in Livonia, Michigan.  

 
 Through training and experience, it has been determined there is not a single tool (software and 

hardware) available with the ability to recover data from all the different types of cell phones on 
the market.  Therefore, in order to build a lab capable of handling the majority of cell phones on 
the market at this time, several software and hardware applications are needed. 

 
 The ten applications (software and hardware) requested will provide coverage for approximately 

90 to 95 percent of the cell phones on the market now, including smart phones, PDA’s, GPS 
navigation units, and older cell phones. 

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
August 5, 2008 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Sole Known Supplier – Cell Phone Forensics 
 

Background – continued  
 TEEL Technologies is a company that tests cell phone software and hardware applications, 

maintains a data base of their findings and the findings of other technicians testing and supporting 
these applications. 
 

 TEEL Technologies is the only company that sells all the software and hardware applications the 
Troy Police Department has determined necessary to build a cell phone forensics lab in one 
package. 

 
 TEEL Technologies also provides several items with the package purchase, including;  

o five faraday bags (used to block signals to a cell phone) 
o TeelTech iGo50 Tip Kit (used to charge cell phones)  
o TEEL Technologies’ Mobile Forensics Central Search Tool – offline version (provides 

an offline database detailing the capabilities of each application and which applications 
are most effective with which phones) 

o 3% discount on the entire purchase 
 

 The software and hardware purchased will be used exclusively within the Troy Computer 
Forensics Lab, which is a standalone forensic lab.  This means that the forensic lab is not on 
and/or associated with the City of Troy IT network because of the sensitive nature of the evidence 
examined within the lab, including child pornography and ongoing narcotic investigations. 

 

Financial Considerations 
 The State Forfeiture fund will be used to make this purchase based on the fact that a majority of 

the cell phone forensics this year was conducted for direct narcotic’s investigations. Capital Fund, 
A/C #401.301.10.305.7978.065. 

 

Legal Considerations 
 None 
 

Policy Considerations 
 Troy continues to enhance the health and safety of the community. (Outcome Statement I) 
 

Options 
 City management recommends Troy City Council authorize the purchase of hardware, software, 

and services from TEEL Technologies at an estimated total cost of $36,050.23, plus ongoing 
license renewals, updates, and technical support as needed. 

 
 
Prepared by:  James Mork, Investigations/Officer 
 
JM97/Cell Phone Forensics Purchase 









campbellld
Text Box
F-06























campbellld
Text Box
F-07











campbellld
Text Box
F-08











campbellld
Text Box
F-09







campbellld
Text Box
F-10











campbellld
Text Box
F-11











 
 
DATE: August 15, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas 

Station/Tim Horton’s, Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road (3990 
Rochester Road), Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731) 

 
Background: 
 

 A public hearing is scheduled for the September 8, 2008 City Council meeting. 
 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to H-S 
at the August 12, 2008 Regular meeting.   
 

 The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non Center Commercial.  This 
classification has a secondary correlation with the Highway Service Zoning District in the 
Future Land Use Plan.  The application therefore is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 

 

 The application is consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent 
zoning districts and land uses. 
 

 The attached Planning Commission memo outlines the issues associated with this rezoning.  
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1 Special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 

 No City Council action until the September 8, 2008 public hearing.   
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes (draft) from the August 12, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Planning Commission report dated August 7, 2008. 
4. Letter of Opposition. 
 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 731 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-731 Gas Station Tim Hortons Sec 23\Announce CC Public Hearing 08 25 08.doc 

 
 



JO
H

N 
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

KS

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
A

M
S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



RENEE

BRAHMS

BURNS

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

E WATTLES

GARWOOD

REZONING REQUEST
EX. GAS STATION / PROPOSED TIM HORTON'S RESTAURANT
SE CORNER ROCHESTER RD. & WATTLES RD. (3990 ROCHESTER RD.)
SEC. 23  (Z-731) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



RENEE

BRAHMS

BURNS

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

E WATTLES

GARWOOD

R-1C

B-3

R-1T

B-2
P-1

B-1

H-S

O-1

REZONING REQUEST
EX. GAS STATION / PROPOSED TIM HORTON'S RESTAURANT
SE CORNER ROCHESTER RD. & WATTLES RD. (3990 ROCHESTER RD.)
SEC. 23  (Z-731) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  

 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 731) – Shell Gas Station / 

Tim Horton’s Restaurant, Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road 
(3990 Rochester Road), Section 23, From B-1 (Local Business) to H-S (Highway 
Service) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the request as submitted.  He noted it is prudent 
professional community planning advice to consider acquisition and consolidation 
of abutting properties to create a larger redevelopment site.  Mr. Miller also 
identified the trend for gasoline service stations to provide retail and food service.  
Mr. Miller addressed a detailed report submitted by the Planning Department 
relating to recently approved service stations that are less than one acre in size.  
It was noted those service stations listed on the report have no drive-through 
service. 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that a potential future right of way in the area is irrelevant to 
the Planning Commission deliberation of the proposed rezoning request. 
 
Leo D. Gonzalez of CRS Commercial Real Estate Services, 550 Forest Avenue, 
Plymouth, was present to represent the petitioner.  He announced that the 
owner, Sam Beydoun of Safeway Oil, was also present, and they would like to go 
forward with the request this evening.   
 
Mr. Gonzalez gave a brief history of subject property and addressed changes in 
the operation of service stations from five to ten years ago.  He addressed the 
investment by Safeway Oil to modify existing stations that would reflect current 
service station trends and would be beneficial to the community.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Savidant announced that a letter of opposition was received in Planning 
Department today, copies of which were distributed to members prior to the 
beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
There was discussion on the proposed use with drive-through service as relates 
to lot size, lot layout, and traffic impact.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  

 
 

 
Chair Schultz reminded members that the proposed site plan should not be 
considered in the deliberation of the rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez said comments expressed this evening would be taken into 
consideration as well as the best interest of the petitioner and Safeway Oil in the 
redevelopment of the site. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-08-098 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located at the southeast corner of 
Rochester and Wattles, within Section 23, being approximately 0.7 acres in size, 
be granted.  
 

Yes: Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
No: Ullmann 
Absent: Maxwell, Tagle, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Ullmann said he has difficulties with the request. 

 



 1 

DATE: August 7, 2008 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 731) – Proposed Gas 

Station / Tim Horton's, Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles 
Road (3990 Rochester Road), Section 23 – B-1 to H-S 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The application states the applicant and owner is Sam Beydoun of Safeway Oil; however, the 
owner of record is Safeway Acquisition Company LLC.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road, in 
Section 23. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 30,492 square feet or 0.70 acre in gross area.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently used as a Shell gas station with automotive service and is a legal 
nonconforming use. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
H-S Highway Service. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The Rezoning Site Plan indicates the applicant is proposing to expand the convenience 
store, including adding a Tim Horton’s restaurant with a drive-up window.  The gasoline 
pump islands and overhead canopy are to be demolished and replaced. 
 
Proposed City of Troy Right of Way Acquisition: 
The City intends to acquire a portion of the subject property for a road widening project for 
both Rochester Road and Wattles Road.  This potential right of way acquisition should not 
be considered in the Planning Commission’s rezoning recommendation. 
  



 2 

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Shopping Center. 
South: Shopping Center. 
East: Daycare Center Parking Lot and Shopping Center. 
West: Fast Food Restaurant. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 Community Business. 
South: B-3 General Business. 
East: B-1 Local Business and B-3 General Business. 
West: H-S Highway Service. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed H-S Highway Service Zoning District and 
Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 

 
Retail establishments to service the needs of the highway traveler including such 
facilities as:  drug stores, convenience food stores, gift shops, and restaurants other 
than those of the drive-in or open front store type. 

 

Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  Sleeping accommodations may be 
provided in conjunction with ambulance facilities. 

 

 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 

 New and used automobile salesroom, showroom or office. 
 

 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repairs of recreational vehicles. 
 

Banks, savings and loan associations, and credit unions which may consist solely of 
drive-up facilities. 

 

 Public utility buildings and sub-stations. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 

 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants permitted within 
this district. 
 
Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within H-S districts, 
apart from restaurants. 

  



 3 

Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 
establishments. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 

 
Automobile service stations for the sale of engine fuels, oil, and minor accessories 
only, and where no repair work is done, other than incidental service, but not including, 
steam cleaning, undercoating, vehicle body repair, painting, tire recapping, engine 
rebuilding, auto dismantling, upholstering, auto glass work and other such activities 
whose external effects could adversely extend beyond the property lines.  

 

Auto washes where engine fuels are sold as a significant part of the operation.   
 

Auto washes, not including the sale of engine fuels, when the entire operation is 
completely enclosed within a building or structure. 

 

Uses, other than those specified in Article 23.20.06 of the Zoning Ordinance, wherein 
drive-up service facilities are the sole use of the property. 

 

Business in the character of a drive-in restaurant. 
 

Motel or hotel. 
 

Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second hand automobiles, 
trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles. 

 

Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a completely 
enclosed building.   

 

Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts both Rochester Road and Wattles Road.   
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on the 
property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S Highway Service 
Zoning District.  The rezoning application is therefore consistent with the City of Troy 
Future Land Use Plan. 
  



 4 

Compliance with Location Standards 
The Location Standards for the H-S District in Article 23.40.01 of the Zoning Ordinance 
states the following: 
 
 The H-S (Highway Service) District may be applied when the application of such a 

classification is consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use plan and policies 
related thereto, or with other land use policies of the City of Troy, and therefore, on a 
limited basis, may involve the following types of areas: 

 
 23.40.02 Areas indicated on the Master Land Use Plan for non-center commercial 

use. 
 
 23.40.03 Areas within broader areas generally designated for Light Industrial use, 

where the City has established, through rezoning, areas to provide 
commercial and service uses for the surrounding Light Industrial area. 

 
The application is consistent with the Location Standards for the H-S District. 
 
Analysis of Existing Parcel Size 
The parcel is approximately 30,492 square feet or 0.70 acre in gross area.  Applicant 
indicates that the purpose of the rezoning is to allow for a gasoline service station without 
automotive repair and Tim Horton’s restaurant with a drive-up window.  Minimum parcel 
size for service stations in the H-S district is 15,000 square feet or 0.34 acre without 
automotive repair, per Article 23.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance.  Minimum parcel size for 
restaurants with a drive-up window in the H-S district is 43,560 square feet or 1.0 acre; in 
addition, 150 feet of frontage on a major thoroughfare, per Article 23.25.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
The subject property is 30,492 square feet or 0.70 acre in size and therefore would meet 
the minimum parcel size for a gasoline service station, while the subject parcel would not 
meet the 1.0 acre minimum parcel size for a restaurant with a drive-up window. 
 
City Management has a recent history of recommending approval of H-S rezoning 
requests when the application is consistent with Future Land Use Plan and compatible with 
existing land uses and zoning districts.  Intent of these recommendations was to convert 
nonconforming uses to a Use Permitted Subject To Special Use Approval.  These rezonings 
enabled service station owners the legal ability to make substantial improvements that were 
prohibited for nonconforming uses.  Attachment 2 titled Service Stations Recently Approved 
and Less Than One Acre in Size, provides a list of the service stations for the Planning 
Commission’s use.   
 
  



 5 

CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. The rezoning application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan 
and compatible with abutting zoning districts and land uses.  City Management 
recommends approval of the rezoning request as submitted. 

 
2. The subject property appears small considering the full range of automobile-

oriented uses permitted in the H-S District.  If the subject property is redeveloped, it 
will require variances and produce very compact development with potential traffic 
access and circulation problems.  It is prudent professional community planning 
advice to consider acquisition and consolidation of abutting properties to create a 
larger redevelopment site.   
 

3. There is a trend for gasoline service stations to provide considerable retail and food 
service activities above and beyond the fuel sales.  Given this evolutionary role of 
becoming convenience retail centers, City Management recommends the Planning 
Commission explore revising the standards for gasoline service stations during the 
comprehensive re-write of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Service Stations Recently Approved and Less Than One Acre in Size 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z-731) 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-731 Gas Station Tim Hortons Sec 23\Shell Gas Station Tim Hortons PC Rezoning Report 08 12 08.docx 



  Prepared by: 
  City of Troy 
  Planning Department 
  August 8, 2008 

 

SERVICE STATIONS 
 

RECENTLY APPROVED 
 

AND LESS THAN ONE ACRE IN SIZE 



Location: 1602 Livernois, NE corner Maple and Livernois 
Station: Clark 
Section: 27 
Parcel Size: 15,475 square feet / 0.35 acre 
Building Size: 1,600 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Non-center Commercial 
File Number: SU 328 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 09/13/05, Attached 
 .................................................................................................................................................  
Location: 6951 Rochester, SW corner South Blvd and Rochester 
Station: Clark 
Section: 3 
Parcel Size: 19,517 square feet / 0.44 acre 
Building Size: 2,475 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Non-center Commercial 
File Number: SU 337 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 12/12/06, attached 
 .................................................................................................................................................  
Location: 5991 Livernois, SW corner Square Lake and Livernois 
Station: BP 
Section: 9 
Parcel Size: 20,370 square feet / 0.46 acre 
Building Size: 1,885 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Community Service Area 
File Number: SU 326 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 12/14/04, attached 
 .................................................................................................................................................  
Location: 1610 John R, NE corner Maple and John R 
Station: Clark 
Section: 25 
Parcel Size: 20,804 square feet / 0.47 acre 
Building Size: 1,840 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Non-center Commercial 
File Number: SU 323 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 11/09/04, attached 
 ..................................................................................................................................................  
Location: 3400 Rochester, NE corner Rochester and Charrington 
Station: Marathon 
Section: 23 
Parcel Size: 21,000 square feet / 0.48 acre 
Building Size: 1,740 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Non-center Commercial 
File Number: SU 342 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 01/09/07, attached 















  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: August 20, 2008 
SUBJECT: Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance 

 

 

  During the past few years, the City has received a number of complaints about 
our “Massage Parlor Ordinance” provisions, which are contained in Chapter 98 of the 
Criminal Code.  Under the existing provisions, massage therapy services are allowed only 
in very limited circumstances.  However, with the adoption of Troy’s Adult Use Business 
Ordinance, some of the protections provided by the Massage Parlor Ordinance are no 
longer necessary.   There is now an increased acceptance of massage therapy as an 
alternative approach to the prevention of illness.  There are some spas and other facilities 
in the City that desire to offer massage services.   
 

We have met over the past year with the Assistant City Manager/Economic 
Development Services, the Planning Director, Director of Building and Zoning, 
representatives from the City Clerk’s office and the Police Department to study the current 
trends in massage therapy.  It was our intent to make sure that any licensing requirements 
of a massage ordinance would provide adequate protection for individuals that were using 
massage therapy services, while simultaneously expanding the opportunity to offer such 
services in reputable facilities.     
 

The state does not currently regulate massage businesses or individual massage 
therapists, even though there have been several bills introduced by different legislators.  
This interest in massage therapy is due, in part, to the high standards of training and 
experience that have been implemented in the massage therapy schools and 
associations.  In this proposed ordinance, we have required similar standards for licensing 
of massage facilities to match the criteria of accreditated massage therapy schools.  We 
have also contacted two local reputable Troy massage schools, Blue Heron Academy of 
Healing Arts and Science and Carnegie Institute, for input and comment.  According to 
some of the faculty members who reviewed the proposed Massage Facility License 
ordinance, the criteria required by the ordinance would promote quality massage therapy 
businesses and allow qualified individual to perform massage therapy services.  
 
  A copy of the proposed Massage Facility License is provided as an informational 
item for your review.  Proposed amendments to Chapter 60, setting fees for the Massage 
Facility Licenses, are also included for your review.  In addition, there would need to be a 
repeal of Chapter 98, Sections 98.15.01 through 98.15.06, which is attached for your 
convenience.  Absent significant concerns or contrary direction from City Council, the 
proposed ordinance revisions will appear as a regular action item on the next regular 
agenda.    
 

If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.   

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



 1 

 
CHAPTER 91 - MASSAGE FACILITY LICENSE 

 
1. Definitions: 
 

For the purpose of the provisions of this Chapter, the following words and phrases shall be 
construed to have the meanings herein set forth, unless it is apparent from the context that 
a different meaning is intended. 

 
(a) “Employee” means any person other than a massage therapist, who renders any 

service in connection with the operation of a Massage Facility and receives 
compensation from the operator of the business or patrons.  This includes a 
leased employee or subcontractor. 

 
(b) “Licensee” means the person to whom a license has been issued to own or 

operate a Massage Facility as defined herein. 
 
(c) “Manager” means an operator, other than a licensee, who is employed by a 

Massage Facility to act as a manager or supervisor of employees, independent 
massage therapists, or independent contractors, or is otherwise responsible for 
the operation of the business. 

 
(d) “Massage” means the treating of external parts of the body for remedial or hygienic 

purposes, consisting of stroking, kneading, rubbing, tapping, pounding, vibrating, 
or stimulating with the hands or with the aid of any mechanical or electrical 
apparatus or appliances, with or without such supplementary aids as rubbing 
alcohol, liniments, antiseptics, oils, powder, creams, lotions, ointment or other 
such similar preparations commonly used in the practice of massage, under such 
circumstances that it is reasonably expected that the person to whom the 
treatment is provided shall pay any consideration whatsoever.  For purposes of 
this Chapter, the term “bodywork” is included in the definition of massage. 

 
(e) “Massage facility” means any individual, group of individuals, person or business 

which engages in the practice of massage as defined in subsection 1(d), and 
which has a fixed place of business where any person, firm, association, 
partnership, limited liability company or corporation carries on any of the activities 
as defined in subsection 1(d). Massage Facility also includes a Turkish bath parlor, 
steam bath, sauna, magnetic healing institute, health club, health spa, or physical 
fitness club or business that offers massages on occasion or incidental to its 
principal operation.  

 
(f) “Massage therapist” means any person who engages in the practice of massage 

as defined in subsection 1(d). Use of the word “massage therapist” in this Chapter 
shall include massage therapist, masseurs, masseuses and all others engaged in 
massage. 

 
(g) “Massage School” means a school which is licensed by the State of Michigan 

Board of  Education as required by P.A. 148 of 1943 (MCLA 395.101, et. seq.) with 
a class hour requirement of at least 500 hours and which requires for admission 
students with a tenth grade education, which has minimum requirements of a 



 2 

continuous course of study and training consisting of studies in physiology, 
anatomy, massage theory, hydrotherapy, hygiene, ethics, and practical massage, 
and which employs as instructors one or more massage therapists meeting all of 
the following criteria:    

 
(1) Graduate of a state licensed school with a minimum of 500 hours of 

education. 
 

(2) A minimum of five years of experience as an instructor at a recognized 
school and/or massage therapist, and proof of such experience. 

 
 (3) For the purpose of this Chapter, a correspondence school or a school 

outside the United States is not a recognized school or massage school. 
 

(h) “Patron” means any person who receives a massage under such circumstances 
that it is reasonably expected that he or she shall pay money or give any other 
consideration for the massage. 

 
(i) “Person” means any individual, partnership, firm, association, joint stock company, 

limited liability company, corporation or combination of individuals or business 
entities of whatever form or character. 

 
2.        Facility License required: 
  

Except as set forth in Section 3, no person shall operate a Massage Facility without 
obtaining a valid Massage Facility License for each separate office or place of business 
address.  A Massage Facility License shall be renewed on an annual basis and cover the 
licensing period of January 1st to December 31st of each year. 

 
The requirement to obtain a new Massage Facility License for the remainder of the 2008 
calendar year is waived for those massage facilities that are properly licensed under the 
City’s previous licensing requirements.  However, commencing January 1, 2009, all 
massage facilities are required to comply with the provisions of this ordinance.   

 
3. Exemptions for Massage Facility Licensing: 
 

The following facilities are exempt from the requirement of a Massage Facility License:    
 

(a) Hospitals, medical facilities, medical offices where massage therapists engage in 
the performance of massage under the supervision of and in conjunction with the 
professional practices of physicians, surgeons, chiropractors, osteopaths, physical 
therapists or other recognized medical professionals who are fully licensed to 
practice their respective professions in the State of Michigan.  

 
(b)  Hospitals, medical facilities, medical offices, or other facilities where nurses who 

are registered and licensed under the laws of the State of Michigan perform 
massages. 

 
(c)      A facility which, as its primary function, is a gymnasium, fitness center with weight  
           lifting/ body building/ body strengthening equipment,  a sports training facility, or a  

                      sports or fitness facility in which massage therapy is an integral part of the  



 3 

                      relaxation and/or treatment of muscle groups for sports or fitness conditioning. 
 
 (d)       A facility, including a school of cosmetology and/or beauty school that administers 
                       massage to the face, head, neck and shoulders only as part of cosmetic or 
                       beautifying processes. 
 

(e)  A massage therapist or a group of massage therapists who administer massage 
for not more than 10 days in any calendar year at the same location and/or 
address, as long as there is no sale of merchandise at the temporary location other 
than merchandise directly related to massage.  Individual massage therapists shall 
register with the Clerk, as provided in Section 4.  

 
4.         Massage Therapist Registration; Fee. 
 

No individual shall act as a massage therapist in the City of Troy without first registering 
with the City Clerk and paying the registration fee as set out in Chapter 60. The 
registration fee shall be paid on an annual basis and cover the registration period from 
January 1st to December 31st of each year.  An individual massage therapist administering 
massage at a location other than a Massage Facility shall only sell merchandise related to 
massage. 

 
A massage therapist must complete a registration form, which will be kept in the ordinary 
course of business by the City Clerk.  To satisfy the registration requirement the massage 
therapist must fully complete the registration form provided by the City Clerk, and must 
supply the following information under oath:   
 

A. The full name, home address, telephone number and date of birth of the 
massage therapist; 

B. A copy of the massage therapist’s driver’s license with photo identification or 
other government issued photo identification;  

C. The name and address of the massage school attended by the massage 
therapist; 

D. Proof that the massage therapist has completed the required course of study 
from a massage school that meets the requirements of Section 1(g) of this 
Chapter (certificate of completion).  

 
A massage therapist shall display his/her registration at all locations where massage is 
administered. 

   
5. Application for Massage Facility License; Fees: 
 

Every applicant for a license to maintain, operate or conduct a Massage Facility shall file 
an application with the City Clerk’s office upon the form provided by the City of Troy and 
pay the nonrefundable application investigation fee, which is set forth in Chapter 60.  The 
applicant shall provide the following information, which shall be sworn to under oath: 

 
(a) A description of services to be provided. 

 
(b) The location, mailing address and all telephone numbers for the massage facility. 

 
(c) The name and permanent residential address of the applicant(s). 



 4 

 
(1) If the applicant is a corporation, the names and permanent residential 

addresses of each of the officers, directors and resident agents of said 
corporation and of each stockholder owning more than ten (10) percent of 
the stock of the corporation; the address of the corporation itself, if different 
from the address of the massage facility; and the name and address of a 
resident agent in Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
(2) If the applicant is a partnership, the names and permanent residential 

addresses of each of the partners and limited partners and of the 
partnership itself, if different from the address of the massage facility; and 
the name and address of a resident agent in Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
(d) The applicant’s two (2) immediately preceding addresses. 
 
(e) Proof that each individual applicant is at least eighteen (18) years of age. 

 
(f) The height, weight, sex and color of eyes and hair of each individual applicant or 

each partner of a partnership applicant. 
 

(g) A copy of identification, such as driver’s license, which bears a date of birth for 
each individual applicant or each partner for a partnership applicant, or each 
officer, director, stockholder and resident agent for a corporation applicant. 

 
(h) One front face current portrait photograph of the individual applicant(s), which is at 

least two inches by two inches (2” x 2”), and a complete set of the individual 
applicant(s) fingerprints, which shall be taken by the Chief of Police or his agent.  

 
(1)  If the applicant is a corporation, one front face current portrait photograph, 
which is  at least two inches by two inches (2” x 2”), of all officers and resident 
agents of said corporation and a complete set of the same officers’, directors’ and 
resident agents’ fingerprints, which shall be taken by the Chief of Police or his 
agent.  
 
(2)  If the applicant is a partnership, one front-face current portrait photograph, 
which is at least two inches by two inches (2” x 2”) in size of each partner, including 
a limited partner in said partnership, and a complete set of each partner or limited 
partner’s fingerprints, which shall be taken by the Chief of Police or his agents. 

 
(i) The business, occupation, or employment of the applicant(s) for the three (3) years 

immediately preceding the date of application. 
 

(j) The massage or similar business history of the applicant(s);  
 

(k) A statement of whether or not the applicant(s) currently operates or previously 
operated a massage business in this or another municipality or state; 

 
(l) A statement or whether or not the applicant(s) had a business license of any kind 

revoked or suspended and the reason for the suspension or revocation;  
 

(m) All of the individual applicant’s criminal convictions (other than misdemeanor traffic 



 5 

violations not involving a controlled substance or alcohol), and the dates of 
conviction(s), the nature of the crime(s) and court or tribunal where the matter was 
adjudicated. 

 
(1)  If the applicant is a corporation, the criminal convictions (other than 
misdemeanor traffic violations not involving a controlled substance or alcohol), and 
the dates of conviction(s), the nature of the crime(s), and the court or tribunal 
where the matter was adjudicated for all of the officers and resident agents of the 
corporation.  
 
(2)  If the applicant is a partnership, the criminal convictions (other than 
misdemeanor traffic violations not involving a controlled substance or alcohol), and 
the dates of conviction(s), the nature of the crime(s), and the court or tribunal 
where the matter was adjudicated for each partner, including a limited partner in 
the partnership.  

 
(n) The names, addresses, birth dates and driver’s license numbers of each massage 

therapist and each employee or independent contractor who is or will be employed 
in said facility.  

 
(o) The name, address, birth dates and driver’s license number of each individual who 

will be a manager, acting manager or in charge of each facility. 
 

(p) Applicant(s) must furnish a certified copy of a diploma or certificate of graduation 
from a school licensed pursuant to P.A. 148 of 1943 (MCLA 395.101, et. seq.) by 
the Michigan Board of Education or an equivalent license from another state for 
themselves and each massage therapist who may be doing massage at the 
massage facility, provided, however, that if the applicant(s) will not himself or 
herself engage in the practice of massage, he or she need not furnish such a 
diploma or certificate of graduation. 

 
(q) The name and addresses of any massage businesses facility or other facility 

owned or operated by any person whose name is required to be given in 
subsection 5(c). 

 
(r) A description of any other business(es) to be operated on the same premises or on 

adjoining premises owned or controlled by the applicant(s). 
 

(s) An authorization for the City, its agents and employees to seek information and 
conduct an investigation to verify the veracity of the information contained in the 
application and the qualifications of the applicant(s), including but not limited to 
authorization to conduct a LEIN records check of all applicants, employees, 
officers, directors, resident agents or stockholders. 

 
(t) The names, current addresses and written statements of at least three (3) bona 

fide permanent residents of the United States that the applicant is of good moral 
character. If possible, the statements must first be furnished from residents of the 
City of Troy.  If the applicant cannot provide these statements from residents of the 
City of Troy, then the statements can be provided by residents of the County of 
Oakland.  If the applicant cannot provide these statements from residents of 
Oakland County, then the statements can be from residents of the State of 



 6 

Michigan, and lastly from the rest of the United States. These statements or 
references must be from persons other than relatives and business associates. 

 
(u) Evidence of current valid premises liability, workers compensation and general 

liability insurance for the massage facility, in an amount of two hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($250,000.00) or more. 

 
(v) All information required by this section shall be provided at the applicant’s 

expense. 
 

If there is any change to the above required information from the information that is 
provided with the application, the Massage Facility licensee is required to notify the City of 
Troy of each such change within thirty (30) days after such change occurs.  Any such 
change may result in a revocation of the Massage Facility License for failure to satisfy the 
City’s license requirements.   

 
6. License procedures: 
 

(a) Any applicant for a license pursuant to this Chapter shall present to the City Clerk’s 
office the application containing the aforementioned and described information. 
Once a fully completed application has been received by the City Clerk, it shall be 
referred to the Chief of Police or his/her designee, who shall have thirty (30) days 
in which to investigate the application and the background of the applicant(s). 
Based on such investigation, the Chief of Police, or his/her designee shall render a 
recommendation as to the approval or denial of the license to the City Clerk. 

 
The Chief of Police shall recommend denial or approval of an application for 
license. In making this determination, the Chief of Police shall consider: 

 
(1) The criminal or penal history of the applicant(s), including but not limited to 

actual criminal convictions for all or each of the applicants, massage 
therapists, employees, managers and independent contractors; civil 
judgments against all or each of the applicants, massage therapists, 
employees, managers and independent contractors; the circumstances of 
those convictions or judgments; and the demeanor of the applicant, 
massage therapists, employees, managers and independent contractors 
subsequent to his or her conviction or judgment.   

 
(2) The license history of the applicant(s), including but not limited to whether 

such person(s) has previously operated in this City or State, or in another 
state under a license, and has had such license or a permit revoked or 
suspended.   

 
(b) The facility may be inspected for compliance with the requirements of this Chapter 

and compliance with all City ordinances and State laws by one of more City 
representatives, including but not limited to representatives of the Police 
Department, Fire Department, Building Department and/or Planning Department. 
Within thirty (30) days of the date of submission of a fully completed application, 
any inspection reports and recommendations as set out herein shall be forwarded 
to the City Clerk. 

 



 7 

7. Issuance of License for a Massage Facility: 
 

The City Clerk shall issue a license for a Massage Facility if all requirements for a 
Massage Facility described in this Chapter are met, unless the City Clerk determines:   

 
(a) The correct license fee has not been tendered to the City and/or, a check, or bank 

draft, given to the City has not been honored with payment upon presentation. 
 

(b) The operation, as proposed by the applicant(s), if permitted, would not comply with 
all applicable laws, including, but not limited to, the City’s building, zoning and 
health regulations. 

 
(c) The applicant(s), if an individual(s), or any of the stockholders holding more than 

ten (10) percent of the stock of the corporation; or any of the officers, directors or 
resident agents, if the applicant is a corporation; or any of the partners, including 
limited partners, if the applicant is a partnership; or the holder of any lien, of any 
nature, upon the business; and the manager or other person principally in charge 
of the operation of the business; or any employees or independent contractors has 
(have) been convicted of any of the following offenses within or without the State of 
Michigan: 

 
(1) A felony offense involving the use of force or violence upon another person.  

 
(2) A misdemeanor or felony sexual misconduct offense, including but not 

limited to prostitution.   
 

(3) A felony offense involving narcotics, dangerous drugs or dangerous 
weapons.   

 
Exception:  If any of the above referenced convictions were at least ten (10) years 
prior to the date of the application, and there are no subsequent felony convictions 
or convictions for the offenses listed in 7 (c)(2), the City Clerk may issue a license 
to the applicant(s).  

 
(d) The applicant(s) knowingly made any false or fraudulent statement of fact in the 

license application or in any document required by the City in conjunction 
therewith. 

 
(e) The applicant(s) ever had a massage business facility or other similar license 

denied, revoked, or suspended by the City or a similar business license or permit 
denied by any other governmental entity within ten (10) years prior to the date of 
the application and the denial, revocation or suspension was based on criminal 
activity, fraud or a violation of the healthy, safety and welfare provisions of a 
municipal ordinance or State law. 

 
(f) The applicant(s), if individual(s), or any of the officers, directors, and resident 

agents (if the applicant is a corporation); or any of the partners, including limited 
partners (if the applicant is a partnership); or any massage therapists or 
employees that are under the age of eighteen (18) years. 

 
 



 8 

8. Approval or Denial of Application: 
 

The City Clerk shall act to approve or deny an application for a license within a reasonable 
period of time and in no event this action occur later than sixty (60) days from the date that 
said application was accepted by the City Clerk’s office. 

 
Every license issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be valid for one year and must be 
renewed as required by this Chapter.  

 
Applicant(s) denied a license, pursuant to these provisions, may appeal the denial to the 
City Council through a written document that states the reasons why the license should be 
granted. Such appeal proceedings shall be held in an open meeting before the City 
Council. The City Council may grant or deny a license after an appeal hearing. 

 
9. Posting of License: 
 

Every Massage Facility Licensed under this Chapter shall be displayed in a prominent 
place at the Massage Facility.     

 
10. Records of Employees: 
 

(a) The licensee shall maintain a register of all persons employed or engaged as massage 
therapists for the licensee and/or on the licensed premises. Such registry shall be 
maintained at the Massage Facility, and available upon request to representatives of 
the City of Troy during regular business hours.    

 
(b) Each licensee is responsible for providing the information that is required under 

Section 5 of this ordinance for any new employees or massage therapists that will be 
employed or engaged by the Massage Facility licensee that were not included on the 
license application.  The investigative fee for each such proposed new employee or 
massage therapist must also be paid, and the City will then conduct the required 
investigation.  City Clerk approval is required before any new employee or massage 
therapist can work or do massage at the massage facility.   

 
11. Suspension or Revocation of License; Notice and Hearing: 
 

(a) When any of the provisions of this Chapter are violated by the licensee, an 
employee, manager, massage therapist, employee or independent contractor of 
the massage facility; and/or when any licensee, employee, manager, massage 
therapist, employee or independent contractor of the licensee is engaged in any 
conduct which violates any State law or City ordinance; or upon notification from 
the Oakland County Health Department that the Massage Facility is being 
managed, conducted, or maintained without regard to proper sanitation and 
hygiene; or for any good cause; the City Council of the City of Troy may suspend 
or revoke the Massage Facility License after notice and a due process hearing.   

 
(b) For conditions posing a threat to the public health, safety and welfare of the 

community, patrons, employees or others, a health officer, code enforcement 
officer, fire marshal or a police officer, with the approval of the City Manager or his 
designee, is hereby granted the authority to immediately suspend any license 
granted hereunder, without notice or a hearing; provided, however, that written 



 9 

notice of the suspension shall be given to the licensee within seventy-two (72) 
hours of the suspension, and shall contain the effective date and time of such 
suspension.  Notice shall be hand delivered to the manager or person in charge of 
the facility and also sent by first class mail to the licensee’s last know address. A 
copy of the notice shall also be posted on the front door of the facility.   

 
(c) If the Massage Facility License is suspended pursuant to Section 11 (b), or if the 

City Manager or his/ her designee determines that the Massage Facility License 
should be suspended or revoked under the provisions of Section 11 (a), the City 
Clerk shall set a date and time for a due process hearing before City Council. The 
hearing shall be set for the next available regular Council meeting, taking into 
account the notice requirements of City Charter, City ordinance and State law.  
The City Clerk shall send a notice of the hearing to the licensee at the Massage 
Facility, as well as sent by first class mail to the licensee’s last known address, if 
different than the Massage Facility.  Additionally, a copy of the notice of the hearing 
shall also be posted on the front door of the Massage Facility.  

 
(d) The notice of hearing shall indicate that the City of Troy has initiated suspension 

and/or revocation proceedings, and shall state the reason for the suspension or 
requested revocation.  The notice shall state the location of the hearing and the 
date and time that the licensee may appear before City Council to give testimony 
and show cause why the Massage Facility License should not be suspended or 
revoked. 

 
(e) At the due process hearing, City staff and/or other concerned individuals will have 

the opportunity to present evidence and testimony supporting the suspension ore 
requested revocation.  The licensee shall be allowed to present evidence and 
testimony at the hearing as to why the license should not be suspended or 
revoked.  After the hearing, the City Council may revoke the Massage Facility 
License, suspend the Massage Facility License, or deny the suspension or 
revocation of the license.  If City Council suspends the Massage Facility License, 
then Council shall clearly specify the length of the suspension, as well as any 
conditions that must be satisfied or corrective action that must be taken prior to 
restoration of the Massage Facility License.     

 
(f) If the licensee fails to satisfy Council’s articulated conditions for restoration of a 

suspended Massage Facility License within the time allocated to the licensee, then 
Council can revoke the Massage Facility License.  The licensee may appeal the 
City Council decision with the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Any such appeal 
must be filed within 21 days of the final decision and shall be governed by the 
Michigan Court Rules applicable to an appeal from an administrative agency under  
MCLA 660.631. 

 
12. Renewal of Massage Facility License: 
 

An application to renew a license to operate a Massage Facility shall be filed at least 
fifteen (15) days prior to the date of license expiration. Such renewal shall be annual and 
shall be accompanied by the application fee. 

 
(a) The applicant(s) shall present the following information to the City Clerk’s office for 

the renewal application:   



 10 

 
(1) A sworn affidavit by the applicant(s) stating that the information contained 

in the original application has not changed, or if it has changed, specifically 
identifying the changes that have occurred. 

 
(2) The names, addresses, birth dates and driver’s license numbers of each 

massage therapist and each employee or independent contractor who is or 
will be employed or located in the Massage Facility.  

 
(3) The names, addresses, birth dates and driver’s license numbers of each 

individual who will be a manager, acting manager or in charge of each 
Massage Facility.   

 
(b) The application shall be referred to the Chief of Police who shall investigate the 

criminal history of the applicant(s) and any  massage therapists, employees, 
managers and independent contractors listed as set out above. 

 
13. Massage Facility Requirements: 
 

No Massage Facility License shall be issued unless the appropriate inspectors from the 
Police Department, Fire Department or any other appropriate department of the City of 
Troy confirm that the Massage Facility complies with each of the following minimum 
requirements: 

 
(a) All provisions of the City codes and State law have been complied with, including 

but not limited to building, mechanical, plumbing, electrical and fire codes. 
 

(b) Adequate and appropriate bathing, dressing, locker, and toilet facilities are 
provided for patrons. If clothing and personal property is not kept with the patron, 
there shall be a separate locker for each patron to be served, which shall be 
capable of being locked. 

 
 (c) Rooms used for steam baths and showers shall be waterproof, and shall be 

constructed of approved waterproof materials and shall be installed in accordance 
with the City of Troy codes, including but not limited to the following: 

 
(1) Floors, walls and ceilings of steam rooms and shower compartments shall 

be waterproofed with a smooth, readily cleanable, nonabsorbent material. 
 

(2) Floors of wet and dry heat rooms shall be adequately pitched to one or 
more floor drains properly connected to the sanitary sewer. 

 
(3) A source of hot water must be available within the immediate vicinity of dry 

and wet heat rooms to facilitate cleaning. 
 

(d) The premises shall have adequate equipment for disinfecting and sterilizing 
non-disposable instruments and materials used in administering massages. Such 
non-disposable instruments and materials shall be disinfected after use on each 
patron. 

 
(e) Closed cabinets shall be provided and used for the storage of clean linen, towels 



 11 

and other materials used in connection with administering massages. All soiled 
linens, towels and other materials shall be kept separate from the clean storage 
areas.  No common use of towels or linens is permitted. 

 
(f) A minimum of one separate washbasin shall be provided in each Massage Facility 

for the use of employees of any such Facility. The basin shall provide soap or 
detergent and hot and cold water at all times, and shall be located within or as 
close as practicable to the area devoted to the performing of massage services. In 
addition, there shall be provided at each washbasin sanitary single-use towels 
placed in permanently installed dispensers. 

 
14. Operating Requirements: 
 

(a) Every portion of the Massage Facility, including appliances and apparatus, shall 
be kept clean and operated in a sanitary condition. 

 
(b) The price rates for all services at the Massage Facility shall be prominently posted 

in the reception area in a location available to all prospective customers. 
 

(c) The Massage Facility shall not be made available as a sleeping quarters 
accommodation for any person. No beds, water mattresses, cots, or equipment 
designed for sleeping shall be permitted on the premises. 

 
(d) All massage therapists and independent contractors massaging and/or attending 

patrons shall be clean and wear clean uniforms covering the torso. Such uniforms 
shall be non-transparent and of washable or disposable material and shall be kept 
in a clean condition. Such clothing shall cover the person’s pubic area, perineum, 
buttocks, natal cleft and the entire chest up to a height of four (4) inches below the 
collarbone. All employees and independent contractors giving massages shall 
wear slacks and a blouse or shirt, or a one-piece pants suit or coverall. Skirts or 
dresses shall not be permitted.  

 
(e) All massage facilities shall be supplied with and provide clean laundered sheets 

and towels in sufficient quantity.  Sheets and towels shall be laundered after each 
use thereof and stored in a sanitary manner. 

 
(f) Wet and dry heat rooms, steam or vapor rooms, or steam and vapor cabinets, 

shower compartments and toilet rooms shall be thoroughly cleaned each day the 
business is in operation. 

 
(g) Massage Facility Licensees shall not place, publish, distribute or cause to be 

placed, published, or distributed any advertisement, picture, or statement which is 
known to be false, deceptive, or misleading or through the exercise of reasonable 
care should be known to be false, deceptive or misleading, in order to induce any 
person to purchase or utilize any professional massage services. 

 
15. Persons under Age Eighteen Prohibited on Premises: 
 

No person shall permit any person under the age of eighteen (18) years to come or remain 
on the premises of any Massage Facility as a massage therapist, employee, or 
independent contractor.  A patron under the age of eighteen (18) years shall be 



 12 

accompanied by a parent or legal guardian, or have in his or her possession a signed 
parental or legal guardian consent form, consenting to his or her presence at the Massage 
Facility premises for the purpose of receiving a massage. 

 
16. Hours: 
 

Massage Facilities shall not be operated or kept open for any purposes between the hours 
of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 

 
17. Inspection Required: 
 

The Chief of Police, Fire Chief, police officers, fire department personnel, code 
enforcement officers, or other authorized inspectors from the City of Troy shall have the 
right from time to time to inspect each Massage Facility for the purposes of determining 
that the Massage Facility is in full compliance with the provisions of this Chapter.  It shall 
be unlawful for any Massage Facility Licensee to refuse or fail to allow such inspection or 
to hinder such officer or inspector in any manner. 

 
18. Unlawful Acts: 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person in a Massage Facility to place his or her hand or 
hands upon, to touch with any part of his or her body, to fondle in any manner, or to 
massage a sexual or genital part of any other person. Sexual or genital parts shall 
include the genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus, or perineum of any person, or the 
vulva or breasts of a female. 

 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person in a Massage Facility to expose his or her sexual 

or genital parts, or any portion thereof, to any other person. It shall also be unlawful 
for any person in a Massage Facility to expose the sexual or genital parts, or any 
portions thereof, of any other person. 

 
(c) It shall be unlawful for any person, while in the presence of any other person in a 

Massage Facility, to fail to conceal the sexual or genital parts of his or her body 
with a fully opaque covering. 

 
(d) It shall be unlawful for any person owning, operating or managing a Massage 

Facility, or any agent, employee, or any other person under his or her control or 
supervision to perform such acts or allow the performance of such acts that are 
prohibited in subsections 19 (a), (b) or (c). 

 
19. Sale, Transfer or Change of Location: 
 

The Massage Facility License shall not be sold or transferred to another. Any sale, 
transfer, or relocation of a Massage Facility requires compliance with the application 
process under the provisions of this Chapter, and the Massage Facility License is null and 
void upon the transfer, sale, or relocation.  All licensees having knowledge of the sale, 
transfer or relocation of a Massage Facility are required to immediately report such sale, 
transfer or relocation to the City Clerk’s office. Failure to do so within thirty (30) days of the 
sale, transfer or relocation shall result in an immediate suspension of all business. 

 
 



 13 

20. Name and Place: 
 
No person granted a license pursuant to this Chapter shall operate a Massage Facility 
under a name that is not specified in their Massage Facility License, nor shall they conduct 
business under any designation or location that is not specified in their Massage Facility 
License. 

 
21. Violation and Penalty: 
 

Any individual who violates Section 4 of this Chapter shall be responsible for a municipal 
civil infraction, as set out in Chapter 100 of the Code of Ordinances. 
 
Any person, whether acting as an individual, owner, manager, employee of the owner, or 
whether acting as an agent or independent contractor for the owner, employee or 
operator, or acting as a participant or worker in any way directly or indirectly who operates 
a Massage Facility without first obtaining a license from the City of Troy and paying the 
established fee, or who violates any provisions of this Chapter except the provisions in 
Section 4, is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by 
imprisonment for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days and/or a fine not to exceed five 
hundred dollars ($500.00), plus costs, at the discretion of the Court. Each day that a 
violation is permitted to exist constitutes a separate offense. 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule of Chapter 60. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule is hereby amended to provide a license fee and 
renewal fee for Massage Facility Licenses. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule. Is amended by the addition of the following new 
fees:    
 
 
ITEM/SERVICE:     FEE: 
 
Massage Facility License 
 
Application Fee     $500.00 
 
Investigation Fee $500.00 for each listed applicant 

and an additional $50.00 for each 
massage therapist, employee, 
and/or independent  contractor.  
 

Annual License Renewal Fee    $500.00 
 
 
Massage Therapist Registration: 
 
Registration Fee      $  10.00 
 
Annual Renewal Fee      
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 



proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2008. 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

1 

CHAPTER 98 – CRIMINAL CODE 
 

 
MASSAGE PARLORS 
  
98.15.01 Definition.  
 

For purposes of this Chapter, a “massage parlor” is defined as any 
building or part thereof, place or establishment where non surgical and 
non medical manipulative exercises are practiced upon the human body, 
with or without the use of mechanical or bathing devices, where the 
revenue from the massage activities comprises more than five per centum 
(5.0%) of the gross receipts of the business location, other than; a 
regularly licensed hospital or dispensary, a place where massage of the 
face is for cosmetic or beautifying purposes, a place providing massage in 
the course of prescribed medical treatment by a physician, surgeon 
similarly qualified and registered status. 

 
98.15.02 License Required. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation 

to maintain or operate a Massage Parlor without first having obtained a 
Massage Parlor license. 

 
a. The annual licensing fee for a Massage Parlor shall be 

$5,000.00. 
 

b. The annual licensing fee for persons engaged in the practice of 
massage as defined in this Chapter shall be $25.00. 

 
98.15.03 Application Requirements. The applicant for a license under the 

provisions of this Chapter shall file with the Chief of Police a written 
application therefore, under oath, on a form prescribed and supplied by 
the City Clerk, and shall submit satisfactory proof of good moral character, 
and, if qualified, shall receive a certificate of approval from the Chief of 
Police, a copy of which certificate shall be delivered to the City Clerk with 
the application for license and the license fee therefore. A record of 
conviction for an offense involving gambling, narcotics, prostitution, 
pandering, or any other offense involving moral turpitude, or a violation of 
any provision of this Chapter, within the preceding two (2) years shall 
constitute grounds for denial of the application. The owners or conductors 
of any massage parlor shall be of good moral character, or, if a 
corporation, it officers of good moral character. The premises on which 
such establishment is located shall be sanitary and suitable for the 
conduct of such business. 

 
98.15.04 Display Of License and Regulations. License certificates issued under this 

Chapter shall be displayed by the licensee at or near the place where 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

2 

such licensee is engaging in the practice or occupation for which he has 
obtained a license. The City Clerk shall cause copies of the regulations 
provided for by this Chapter to be printed and be furnished the licensees 
under this Chapter. Every licensee shall cause such regulations to be 
placed in a prominent place in each establishment or shop regulated by 
this Chapter. 

 
98.15.05 Inspection. Every massage parlor shall, at reasonable business hours, be 

held open for inspection by duly authorized representatives of the Police 
Department, the Building Department, and the Oakland County Health 
Department. 

 
98.15.06 Regulations. Licensees under this Chapter shall be subject to the       

following regulations: 
  

a. Service in massage parlors licensed under this Chapter shall be 
limited to exercise, baths and massage. Medical treatment of 
any kind shall not be given to any patron without a prescription 
from a registered physician. The use of heat lamps and sun-ray 
lamps only will be permitted. 

 
b. No person who has any visible symptoms of a communicable 

disease, such as a rash, discharge, or fever, or who is 
complaining of a sore throat may be attended by a licensee 
under this Chapter or any person engaged in the practice or 
massage. 

 
c. Serving or attending in a massage parlor of patrons of the 

opposite sex is prohibited; provided, that this provision shall not 
apply in cases in which such serving or attending is under the 
immediate, direct supervision of a licensed physician or 
osteopath. 

d. Each applicant for a license under this Chapter shall present a 
certificate from a licensed physician, certifying that he is free 
from communicable disease. 

  
e. Advertising that there is a nurse in attendance is prohibited 

unless there is a registered graduate nurse constantly in 
attendance during the business hours of the massage parlor. 

 
f. Advertising that there is a doctor in attendance is prohibited 

unless there is a licensed physician or osteopath constantly in 
attendance during the business hours of the massage parlor. 

  
g. Licensees shall exercise every precaution for the safety of 

patrons. They shall watch for early signs of fatigue or weakness 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

3 

and immediately discontinue whatever form of service is being 
given upon the appearance of such signs. 

 
h. No massage parlor shall be conducted in direct connection with 

living quarters. 
 

i. The premises used for a massage parlor shall be well-lighted 
and ventilated. They shall be kept clean, and the furniture and 
equipment shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary condition. 
There shall be an adequate supply of running hot and cold 
water during business hours. Bathing devices shall be 
thoroughly cleaned before the use of each patron. 

 
j. All robes, towels, blankets, and linens furnished for the use of 

one patron shall be thoroughly laundered before offered to 
another. 

 
k. Uniforms or garments worn by employees while attending 

patrons shall be of washable material and shall be kept in clean 
condition. The sleeves shall not reach below the elbow. 

 
l. The skin of the hands of those attending patrons shall be clean 

and in healthy condition, and the nails shall be kept short. The 
hands shall be washed thoroughly before giving the patron any 
attention. 

 
m. Licensees shall be restricted in the exercise of their license to 

the places set forth in their application. 
  

n. Every person employed in the practices defined in this Chapter 
shall be eighteen (18) years of age or older, and shall be of 
good moral character, and approved by the Police Department. 
Such persons shall present a certificate from a licensed 
physician certifying that he is free from communicable disease. 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JUNE 4, 2008 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, June 4, 2008, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Done called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.                                        
 
 
Present:  A. Done, member  P. Hammond, member  
   B. Harrell, member  E. Kempen, member 
   P. Lin, member  J. Stewart, alternate   
   D. Chong, student  A.  Vasudevan, student    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff    
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member 
   M. Chaffee, member 
   K. Clark, member 
   K Mayer, alternate 
   L. Patton, member 
   S. Murphy, alternate  UA 
    
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF APRIL 2, 2008 
Hammond made a motion to approve the minutes of April 2, 2008; supported by 
Kempen; all voted in favor.  
 

Harrell motioned to excuse the absences of Buchanan, Chaffee, Clark, Mayer and 
Patton; supported by Hammond.  All voted in favor. 

 
ITEM IV – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ITEM V - SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM VI – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Hammond reported that Costco and the Speedway at John R and E. Big Beaver will 
pump gas for persons requiring assistance.  Hammond will forward the information on 
to Cindy Stewart for inclusion on the ACPD page of the City website and also on the 
resource list.  Hammond will contact Cindy also regarding appreciation letters to be 
sent. 
 
Cindy Stewart extended her deadline for additions to the resource list to 6/5/08. 
 
Done will continue to monitor the Library expansion project. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JUNE 4, 2008 

 2

Done encouraged Chong and Vasudevan to encourage inclusion of students with 
cognitive disabilities in the schools. 
 
ITEM VII – NEW BUSINESS 
The Committee has a new student member, Anita Vasudevan.  Anita is a freshman at 
the International Academy. 
 
Lin recommended that a map of Troy with gas stations that offer assistance to persons 
with disabilities be made available on the City website. 
 
Troy Daze will be held 9/11 through 9/14/08.  Stewart reported that portable sidewalks 
could not be used everywhere due to prohibitive cost.  However, the layout has been 
changed so that cords will not be such a problem.   
 
October is Disabilities Month and Done and Vasudevan will do the display at the Troy 
Public Library. 
 
There will be no meeting in July. 
 
ITEM VIII – REPORTS 
Chong reported that his school installed a sign indicating that a pass is necessary in 
order to use the elevator. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Kempen will research progress on the Pathways and Trails Project and will attend the  
Parks and Rec meeting on 9/18/08. 
 
Harrell suggested having ACPD brochures available at the City booth at Troy Daze. 
 
Done reported that sensitivity training was given by this Committee to the Troy Museum 
and Nature Center staff.  This training should be offered to other departments as well 
as City Council.  Done will follow up with Kelly Clark who scheduled the presentation. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Lin made a motion to adjourn at 8:25 p.m.  Supported by Kempen .   All voted in favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                   Angela Done 
                Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                                                   
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JUNE 4, 2008 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, June 4, 2008, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Done called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.                                        
 
 
Present:  A. Done, member  P. Hammond, member  
   B. Harrell, member  E. Kempen, member 
   P. Lin, member  J. Stewart, alternate   
   D. Chong, student  A.  Vasudevan, student    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff    
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member 
   M. Chaffee, member 
   K. Clark, member 
   K Mayer, alternate 
   L. Patton, member 
   S. Murphy, alternate  UA 
    
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF APRIL 2, 2008 
Hammond made a motion to approve the minutes of April 2, 2008; supported by 
Kempen; all voted in favor.  
 
Harrell motioned to excuse the absences of Buchanan, Chaffee, Clark, Mayer and 
Patton; supported by Hammond.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM IV – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ITEM V - SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM VI – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Hammond reported that Costco and the Speedway at John R and E. Big Beaver will 
pump gas for persons requiring assistance.  Hammond will forward the information on to 
Cindy Stewart for inclusion on the ACPD page of the City website and also on the 
resource list.  Hammond will contact Cindy also regarding appreciation letters to be 
sent. 
 
Cindy Stewart extended her deadline for additions to the resource list to 6/5/08. 
 
Done will continue to monitor the Library expansion project. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JUNE 4, 2008 

 2

Done encouraged Chong and Vasudevan to encourage inclusion of students with 
cognitive disabilities in the schools. 
 
ITEM VII – NEW BUSINESS 
The Committee has a new student member, Anita Vasudevan.  Anita is a freshman at 
the International Academy. 
 
Lin recommended that a map of Troy with gas stations that offer assistance to persons 
with disabilities be made available on the City website. 
 
Troy Daze will be held 9/11 through 9/14/08.  Stewart reported that portable sidewalks 
could not be used everywhere due to prohibitive cost.  However, the layout has been 
changed so that cords will not be such a problem.   
 
October is Disabilities Month and Done and Vasudevan will do the display at the Troy 
Public Library. 
 
There will be no meeting in July. 
 
ITEM VIII – REPORTS 
Chong reported that his school installed a sign indicating that a pass is necessary in 
order to use the elevator. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Kempen will research progress on the Pathways and Trails Project and will attend the  
Parks and Rec meeting on 9/18/08. 
 
Harrell suggested having ACPD brochures available at the City booth at Troy Daze. 
 
Done reported that sensitivity training was given by this Committee to the Troy Museum 
and Nature Center staff.  This training should be offered to other departments as well as 
City Council.  Done will follow up with Kelly Clark who scheduled the presentation. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Lin made a motion to adjourn at 8:25 p.m.  Supported by Kempen .   All voted in favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                   Angela Done 
                Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01c





campbellld
Text Box
J-01d





ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES July 15, 2008  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

Minutes for Tuesday, July 15, 2008 
 
 

I. Call to Order 7:05 pm 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Karen Yelder 
    Kelly Jones 
       William Lawrence 
    Cathy Francois 
    Mayada Fakhouri 
    Grigore Buia 
    Reuben Ellis (7:20 pm) 
    Lily Huang, Student 
    Cindy Stewart  
     
  Absent Michelle Haight 
    Tony Haddad 

  
III. Approval of Minutes – June 3, 2008  

 
Motion to approve June 3, 2008 minutes by Cathy Francois, seconded by Kelly 
Jones. Approved unanimously  
 

IV. Correspondence/ Articles – None  
 

V. New Business – None 
 
VI. Old Business 

a. Troy Daze- Ethnicity  
 
Booths confirmed for the EthniCity Tent 
CAPA  
National Federation of Filipino American Association  
Peru  
Troy High Chinese Club  
Bharatiya Temple 
Filipino American Community Council 
 
Coming:  African American Parent Support Group (Nadeen Brown) 
 

  No responses: Poland, Finland, Budda Light Intl., All Nations Lutheran is going to  
  the Big Tent. 

 
Kelly has calls to many organizations.  Contact Kelly if any ideas on groups that 
would like to be involved.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES July 15, 2008  

 

  
 
EIAB Volunteers for tent looks good. Cindy will order 1,000 small flags to pass out 
to visitors.  
 

  Kelly will talk to Michelle. Re: passports.  What information was on the one they  
  did at Barnard.  Mayada will bring her sample to Cindy’s office.   

 
Willie Dechavez has a fashion show planned.  “Asian Cultural Couture Fashion 
Show” – possible to put on the outdoor stage?   Need to talk to Willie- no cooking 
under the tent!  
 

  Committee needs to bring artifacts for EIA Booth- be sure they are not breakable  
  items or heirlooms.   

 
 
 
b. Troy School District Update 
Elementary Schools: Kelly putting together a presentation for PTO’s. with 
demographics, resources and information.  Hopefully she will go to the PTO 
President meeting in September and perhaps a Principal’s meeting.  Karen offered 
to go with Kelly to get information for high schools.  

   
  High Schools: Karen looking to find out when she could talk to the high school  
  principals and teachers.   Athens High held an Ethnic Fair (May) very successful.  
   Each ethnic group had a sponsor.  They had a talent show, booths with  
  information and food, fashion show.  

 
  African American Parent Support Group: Kelly was in attendance, along with Dr.  
  Fowler, Kathy Davisson, Tim McAvoy, and some school board members.  
   Students shared their feelings.  Parents broke into groups on separate topics to  
  brainstorm ideas and share resources.  

 
  Karen spoke on last night’s planning committee meeting.  They established a  
  mission statement and goals, plan to come out with a brochure.  Future plans  
  include Saturday retreat to go along with their goals of academic excellence.  
   Focus now to get parents involved.  The group will have a booth at Troy Daze  
  Ethnicity Tent.  

 
  Parents’ workshop is scheduled by the African American Parent Support Group for  
  Monday, August 11, 2008 6 – 9 pm at either Baker or Boulan (TBD).  Invitation to  
  EIAB to have a table to share information on EIAB. Reuben, Karen, and Cathy  
  would be willing to be there.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES July 15, 2008  

 

 
 

VII. Adjournment  7:55 pm 
 
Motion by Mayada Fakhouri, seconded by William Lawrence.  Meeting adjourned.   

 
 
  Next Meeting Tuesday,   August 12, 2008 at 7 pm  
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on July 22, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Wayne Wright 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-090 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-091 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-092 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 8, 2008 Regular meeting as 
presented. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Tagle, Ullmann, Vleck 
Abstain: Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat reported on action taken at the June 17, 2008 Board of Zoning Appeals 
relating to tonight’s agenda item #8, Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed 
parking lot expansion at 1800 W. Big Beaver (SP 345-B).  The BZA granted a 
setback variance with the conditions to provide a screen wall and additional 
landscaping.   
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant said a report on the June 18, 2008 DDA meeting was given previously. 
 
Mr. Savidant reminded members that a joint meeting of the DDA and Planning 
Commission is scheduled tomorrow, July 22, at 7:30 a.m.  By a show of hands, a 
quorum of Planning Commission members is expected to attend.   
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following: 

 Mobile Windshield Repair. 

 Draft 2008 Master Plan Distribution. 

 P.U.D. #6, Oasis at Centennial Park. 
 
The statuses of several Planned Unit Development projects were discussed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

There was a short discussion on the conditions placed on preliminary site plan 
approval for Grace Christian Learning Center Addition, located on the north side of 
Big Beaver Road and east side of John R.   
 
Chair Schultz announced that Oakland County received its copy of the City’s Draft 
2008 Master Plan on July 14. 
 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 345-B) – Proposed Parking Lot 

Expansion, Existing Office Building, Northeast Corner of Big Beaver and McClure, 
(1800 W. Big Beaver), Section 20, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and P-1 (Vehicular 
Parking) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a review of the proposed preliminary site plan.  He reported 
the petitioner received a setback variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals that 
would allow parking closer to McClure.  Mr. Savidant addressed the calculations 
used to determine the parking requirement.  The total number of required spaces 
based on the calculated usable floor area is 103 spaces.  The applicant proposes a 
total of 98 spaces and requests a reduction of five spaces.  Mr. Savidant said the 
petitioner provided a statement of explanation relating to the parking calculations 
and parking requirement, as well as letters from three tenants addressing their 
parking demands.  Mr. Savidant addressed the parking variance granted by City 
Council in 2004.  The Building Department determined that the variance is expired 
because of a change in site conditions.  Mr. Savidant said the petitioner has 
provided correspondence from the property owner on McClure, just north of the 
subject property, confirming that he and the petitioner are negotiating the potential 
sale of the eastern portion of his lot that would be used for additional parking.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted with two conditions:  (1) The applicant shall come back to the 
Planning Commission for preliminary site plan approval when a new tenant 
proposes to occupy the building and potentially increase parking demand; and (2) If 
it is determined that there is a shortage of parking spaces on the property, the 
applicant shall alleviate the problem in an appropriate manner.   
 
Mr. Hutson asked if there is any use more intensive in this zoning district than 
medical. 
 
Mr. Savidant replied that medical is the most intensive use. 
 
David Hunter of Professional Engineering Associates (PEA), 24300 Rochester 
Court, Troy, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Hunter had floor plans and 
additional email correspondence relating to a shared parking agreement available 
for members to review.  He indicated that the petitioner is diligently working toward 
acquiring additional space for parking. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck apologized that the petitioner had to return to tonight’s meeting for 
consideration of the item, and thanked him for the additional information.  The item 
was postponed so that the Planning Commission could make a fair, informed 
decision.  He said he is satisfied with the site plan as presented this evening. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Dr. Daniel Schnaar of Child Health Associates, 36700 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield 
Hills, was present.  Dr. Schnaar addressed traffic flow as relates to patient care.  He 
said they are anxious to bring their business to Troy. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Mr. Hutson said he is satisfied with the proposed parking spaces as presented this 
evening.  He addressed condition #2 of the proposed Resolution as relates to the 
potential of a second medical use tenant in the building.  Mr. Hutson encouraged 
the petitioner to continue his discussions on the acquisition of property for future 
parking. 
 
Mr. Vleck said the proposed Resolution as written is straightforward and covers any 
future changes in the tenant mix in the building. 
 
Chair Schultz suggested to incorporate the words “for the current building tenant 
mix” in the Resolution. 
 
Mr. Strat indicated his support of the site plan.  He said parking requirements and 
related concerns as discussed in this site plan application should be addressed 
when the Zoning Ordinance is updated. 
 
Chair Schultz agreed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-093 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces for the office building to 98, when a total of 103 
spaces are required for the current proposed building tenant mix on the site based 
on the off-street parking space requirements for general office and medical office 
uses, as per Article XL.  This 5-space reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed parking lot expansion, located on the northeast corner 
of Big Beaver and McClure, in Section 20, within the O-1 zoning district, is hereby 
granted, subject to the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

1. The applicant shall come back to the Planning Commission for preliminary site 
plan approval when a new tenant is proposed to occupy the building and 
potentially increase parking demand.   

2. If it is determined that there is a shortage of parking spaces on the property, the 
applicant shall alleviate the problem in an appropriate manner. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly explained the Commission’s charge to insure appropriate 
parking needs for the safety and welfare of those entering and exiting a building. 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the report relating to the definition of commercial 
vehicles, and asked members for a consensus of a specific definition, or a direction 
to that respect. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the Planning Department or administration had a recommendation 
on the definition of commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the charge by City Council to the Planning Commission as 
relates to the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
Mr. Vleck shared his findings from discussions he had with residents in his 
neighborhood.  His stance on a definition of commercial vehicles is to have three 
classes of vehicles, as follows: 

 Vehicles 10,000 pounds or less – No regulations. 

 Vehicles between 10,000 pounds and 24,999 pounds that do not require a 
commercial driver’s license but require a chauffeur’s driver’s license – Regulated 
vehicles must be stored indoors or screened from neighbors. 

 Commercial vehicles (i.e., semi trucks, garbage trucks) that require a 
commercial driver’s license – Regulated vehicles must be stored off-site and are 
not permissible in residential neighborhoods. 

 
A brief discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Consensus was reached (by a straw vote) to go forward with the definition as 
written in the Planning Department memorandum to the Planning Commission, 
dated July 16, 2008, and reads as follows: 
 

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE:  
 
(1) Any vehicle defined herein as a commercial trailer, cube truck, cut-away 

truck, dump truck, flatbed truck, panel truck, semi-tractor, stake truck, step 
van, or wrecker, or any vehicle requiring a Michigan Commercial Driver 
License to operate;  

 

 or, 
 

(2) Any vehicle which meets at least two (2) of the following thresholds: 
 

A. The vehicle has a Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) of ten 
thousand (10,000) pounds or more. 

B. The vehicle has an overall height of seven (7) feet or more, measured 
from grade. 

C. The vehicle has an overall length of twenty (20) feet or more, measured 
from bumper to bumper. 

D. The vehicle displays or is required by law to display a company name, 
company logo, company telephone number or company website.  

E. The vehicle has outside brackets or holders for ladders, tools, pipes, 
racks or other equipment used for commercial purposes. 

 
Chair Schultz suggested that (2)(D) be expanded to include vehicles registered with 
the Department of Transportation (DOT). 
 
Mr. Ullmann noted that a pickup truck might be required to register with the DOT.   
 
Mr. Hutson suggested that an identifying factor of a commercial vehicle might be 
one that has commercial plates.   
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Forsythe announced that the City Attorney is preparing reference booklets for all 
Boards, Commissions and Committees.  He asked members if there are specific 
reference materials they would like to see in the booklets. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 7 - 
 

The following suggestions were given: 

 Code Chapters; i.e., Chapter 80. 

 Parliamentary procedure. 

 Common Roberts Rules of Order. 

 Role in approval process of developments that are not in the best interest of the 
City but meet all Zoning Ordinance requirements. 

 Ex parte communications. 

 Excellent resource – Zucker Report.  
 
Chair Schultz encouraged members to give more thought to the reference material 
and come back with suggestions at the next meeting.  
 
Items briefly discussed by members: 

 Zucker Report. 

 Relationship between the BZA and Planning Commission. 

 Sign ordinance under the Planning Department charge. 

 Zoning Ordinance overhaul. 
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the following:   

 AT&T illuminated sign at Caswell Town Center PUD.  He was directed to ask the 
complainant to contact Paul Evans of the Building Department. 

 Newspaper article on the Draft 2008 Master Plan in relation to White Chapel 
Cemetery.  He said the article offended him. 

 
Chair Schultz agreed with Mr. Vleck’s comments on the newspaper article.  He said 
the article was extremely slanted and a misrepresentation on behalf of the 
newspaper.  
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\07-22-08 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on July 22, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Wayne Wright 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-090 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-091 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-092 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 8, 2008 Regular meeting as 
presented. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Tagle, Ullmann, Vleck 
Abstain: Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat reported on action taken at the June 17, 2008 Board of Zoning Appeals 
relating to tonight’s agenda item #8, Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed 
parking lot expansion at 1800 W. Big Beaver (SP 345-B).  The BZA granted a 
setback variance with the conditions to provide a screen wall and additional 
landscaping.   
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant said a report on the June 18, 2008 DDA meeting was given previously. 
 
Mr. Savidant reminded members that a joint meeting of the DDA and Planning 
Commission is scheduled tomorrow, July 22, at 7:30 a.m.  By a show of hands, a 
quorum of Planning Commission members is expected to attend.   
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following: 

 Mobile Windshield Repair. 

 Draft 2008 Master Plan Distribution. 

 P.U.D. #6, Oasis at Centennial Park. 
 
The statuses of several Planned Unit Development projects were discussed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

There was a short discussion on the conditions placed on preliminary site plan 
approval for Grace Christian Learning Center Addition, located on the north side of 
Big Beaver Road and east side of John R.   
 
Chair Schultz announced that Oakland County received its copy of the City’s Draft 
2008 Master Plan on July 14. 
 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 345-B) – Proposed Parking Lot 

Expansion, Existing Office Building, Northeast Corner of Big Beaver and McClure, 
(1800 W. Big Beaver), Section 20, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and P-1 (Vehicular 
Parking) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a review of the proposed preliminary site plan.  He reported 
the petitioner received a setback variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals that 
would allow parking closer to McClure.  Mr. Savidant addressed the calculations 
used to determine the parking requirement.  The total number of required spaces 
based on the calculated usable floor area is 103 spaces.  The applicant proposes a 
total of 98 spaces and requests a reduction of five spaces.  Mr. Savidant said the 
petitioner provided a statement of explanation relating to the parking calculations 
and parking requirement, as well as letters from three tenants addressing their 
parking demands.  Mr. Savidant addressed the parking variance granted by City 
Council in 2004.  The Building Department determined that the variance is expired 
because of a change in site conditions.  Mr. Savidant said the petitioner has 
provided correspondence from the property owner on McClure, just north of the 
subject property, confirming that he and the petitioner are negotiating the potential 
sale of the eastern portion of his lot that would be used for additional parking.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted with two conditions:  (1) The applicant shall come back to the 
Planning Commission for preliminary site plan approval when a new tenant 
proposes to occupy the building and potentially increase parking demand; and (2) If 
it is determined that there is a shortage of parking spaces on the property, the 
applicant shall alleviate the problem in an appropriate manner.   
 
Mr. Hutson asked if there is any use more intensive in this zoning district than 
medical. 
 
Mr. Savidant replied that medical is the most intensive use. 
 
David Hunter of Professional Engineering Associates (PEA), 24300 Rochester 
Court, Troy, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Hunter had floor plans and 
additional email correspondence relating to a shared parking agreement available 
for members to review.  He indicated that the petitioner is diligently working toward 
acquiring additional space for parking. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck apologized that the petitioner had to return to tonight’s meeting for 
consideration of the item, and thanked him for the additional information.  The item 
was postponed so that the Planning Commission could make a fair, informed 
decision.  He said he is satisfied with the site plan as presented this evening. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Dr. Daniel Schnaar of Child Health Associates, 36700 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield 
Hills, was present.  Dr. Schnaar addressed traffic flow as relates to patient care.  He 
said they are anxious to bring their business to Troy. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Mr. Hutson said he is satisfied with the proposed parking spaces as presented this 
evening.  He addressed condition #2 of the proposed Resolution as relates to the 
potential of a second medical use tenant in the building.  Mr. Hutson encouraged 
the petitioner to continue his discussions on the acquisition of property for future 
parking. 
 
Mr. Vleck said the proposed Resolution as written is straightforward and covers any 
future changes in the tenant mix in the building. 
 
Chair Schultz suggested to incorporate the words “for the current building tenant 
mix” in the Resolution. 
 
Mr. Strat indicated his support of the site plan.  He said parking requirements and 
related concerns as discussed in this site plan application should be addressed 
when the Zoning Ordinance is updated. 
 
Chair Schultz agreed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-07-093 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces for the office building to 98, when a total of 103 
spaces are required for the current proposed building tenant mix on the site based 
on the off-street parking space requirements for general office and medical office 
uses, as per Article XL.  This 5-space reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed parking lot expansion, located on the northeast corner 
of Big Beaver and McClure, in Section 20, within the O-1 zoning district, is hereby 
granted, subject to the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

1. The applicant shall come back to the Planning Commission for preliminary site 
plan approval when a new tenant is proposed to occupy the building and 
potentially increase parking demand.   

2. If it is determined that there is a shortage of parking spaces on the property, the 
applicant shall alleviate the problem in an appropriate manner. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz briefly explained the Commission’s charge to insure appropriate 
parking needs for the safety and welfare of those entering and exiting a building. 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the report relating to the definition of commercial 
vehicles, and asked members for a consensus of a specific definition, or a direction 
to that respect. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the Planning Department or administration had a recommendation 
on the definition of commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the charge by City Council to the Planning Commission as 
relates to the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
Mr. Vleck shared his findings from discussions he had with residents in his 
neighborhood.  His stance on a definition of commercial vehicles is to have three 
classes of vehicles, as follows: 

 Vehicles 10,000 pounds or less – No regulations. 

 Vehicles between 10,000 pounds and 24,999 pounds that do not require a 
commercial driver’s license but require a chauffeur’s driver’s license – Regulated 
vehicles must be stored indoors or screened from neighbors. 

 Commercial vehicles (i.e., semi trucks, garbage trucks) that require a 
commercial driver’s license – Regulated vehicles must be stored off-site and are 
not permissible in residential neighborhoods. 

 
A brief discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 22, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Consensus was reached (by a straw vote) to go forward with the definition as 
written in the Planning Department memorandum to the Planning Commission, 
dated July 16, 2008, and reads as follows: 
 

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE:  
 
(1) Any vehicle defined herein as a commercial trailer, cube truck, cut-away 

truck, dump truck, flatbed truck, panel truck, semi-tractor, stake truck, step 
van, or wrecker, or any vehicle requiring a Michigan Commercial Driver 
License to operate;  

 

 or, 
 

(2) Any vehicle which meets at least two (2) of the following thresholds: 
 

A. The vehicle has a Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) of ten 
thousand (10,000) pounds or more. 

B. The vehicle has an overall height of seven (7) feet or more, measured 
from grade. 

C. The vehicle has an overall length of twenty (20) feet or more, measured 
from bumper to bumper. 

D. The vehicle displays or is required by law to display a company name, 
company logo, company telephone number or company website.  

E. The vehicle has outside brackets or holders for ladders, tools, pipes, 
racks or other equipment used for commercial purposes. 

 
Chair Schultz suggested that (2)(D) be expanded to include vehicles registered with 
the Department of Transportation (DOT). 
 
Mr. Ullmann noted that a pickup truck might be required to register with the DOT.   
 
Mr. Hutson suggested that an identifying factor of a commercial vehicle might be 
one that has commercial plates.   
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Forsythe announced that the City Attorney is preparing reference booklets for all 
Boards, Commissions and Committees.  He asked members if there are specific 
reference materials they would like to see in the booklets. 





LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 11, 2008  

 Page 1 of 3

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, August 
11, 2008 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member Henry Allemon called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 

Timothy P. Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert & Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2008-08-020  
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Payne at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of August 11, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of July 14, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-08-021 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the July 14, 2008 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 11, 2008  

 Page 2 of 3

Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Dhammamegha, Inc. requests to transfer ownership 2008 Resort Class C 

licensed business, issued under MCL 436.1531(2), with Official Permit 
(Food), from Priya Enterprises, Inc. located at 72 West Maple Road, Troy, 
MI 48084, Oakland County.  {MLCC Req #480928}  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were applicant Ravi Mandava 
and attorney Kelly Allen.   
 
Ms. Allen explained to the Committee that Mr. Mandava is purchasing the 
business from his uncle.  Mr. Mandava worked for 1-1/2 years at this Troy location 
when it opened in 1996 and since then has managed the Farmington location.  
There was one liquor violation in Farmington in 2004 and the Troy location has 
had no violations since 2007.  The Troy location had one violation in 2007; this 
applicant had no involvement with that operation at that time. 
 
Sergeant Cantlon reported that his investigation uncovered no disqualifying 
factors. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-08-022 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that Dhammamegha, Inc. be allowed to transfer ownership 2008 
Resort Class C licensed business, issued under MCL 436.1531(2), with Official 
Permit (Food), from Priya Enterprises, Inc. located at 72 West Maple Road, Troy, 
MI 48084, Oakland County. 
 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Payne 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             AUGUST 11, 2008  

 Page 3 of 3

 
Sergeant Cantlon briefly reviewed the “Informational Items” that appeared on the 
Agenda. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster stated that the new Ordinance would be 
presented to City Council this evening.  Also, she distributed the first draft of a 
map showing the distribution of liquor licenses throughout the City of Troy.   
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES August 12, 2008  
 

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
Minutes for Tuesday, August 12, 2008 

 
 

I. Call to Order 7:10 pm 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Michelle Haight 
    Karen Yelder 
    Kelly Jones 
       William Lawrence 
    Grigore Buia 
    Reuben Ellis 
    Lily Huang, Student rep 
    Cindy Stewart, city liaison 
     
  Absent Cathy Francois 
    Mayada Fakhouri 
    Tony Haddad 
 
  Visitors: Faris Alami 

  
III. Approval of Minutes – July 15, 2008  

 
Motion to approve July 15, 2008 minutes by Karen Yelder, seconded by Kelly 
Jones. Approved unanimously.  
 

IV. Correspondence/ Articles 
a. Updated Resource Listing handed out.  

 
b. Michelle has article from Congressman Knollenberg’s blog re: his derogatory 

remarks towards Asians. “Protecting Our Families from Asian Invaders” 
changed to “Protecting our Families from Harmful Products.” Intent was not to 
be derogatory – poor choice of words. Hopefully his office has made amends 
with the groups he upset.   
 

V. Old Business 
a. Troy Daze Ethnicity 

 
  Ethnicity Booths Confirmed: 
   
  EIAB, Peru, Germany, Troy High Chinese Club, Bharatiya Temple, CAPA,  
  NAFFAA, African American Parent Support Group, Filipino American Community  
  Council. Total 12 tables.  
 

Possibilities: Arab Chaldean Council, Japanese Club. No Finland, Poland, 
Buddha, Spanish Club, Can’t reach Taiwan, China.  

   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES August 12, 2008  
   
  Ideas to fill tent: floor games, entertainment, Mehendi.  
 
  Student volunteers needed:  
  Friday 3-7 pm, 10 volunteers 

Saturday 10am-2pm, 6 volunteers; 2pm-6pm, 6 volunteers;  
6pm-10pm, 6 volunteers  

  Sunday 12pm-4pm, 4 volunteers; 4pm-8pm, 6 volunteers 
 
  Passports: 

Mayada said the Arab Chaldean Council will donate passports. Michelle will give 
Cindy the contact for a company that sells stamps from countries. Also, get fact 
sheets from each county to hand out. Flags have been delivered. Maps to display. 
Display board? Instruments – Michelle. 

 
  Kelly stressed the importance for EIAB to play an active role at Troy Daze  
  Ethnicity.  
 

Poster contest: Michelle is lining up judges for the Poster Contest. No child of EIAB 
is allowed to win.  
 
 
b. African American Support Group 
 
Seminar, Monday August 11th at Baker – 60 people in attendance, broke into 
support groups – example, SAT Prep class, Math help, Tutoring Assistance.  
 
Teachers from Troy Schools as speakers – great motivational speakers and 
awesome information.  
 
August 5th there was an activity – bowling at Troy Lanes, 80 parents and children 
attended.  
 
Next meeting is September 8th at Troy School District Service Center Building, 
7:30-9 pm.  
 
 
c. Troy School District Updates 

 
Elementary school – Kelly is finalizing her presentation for PTOs/PTAs. Date is 
unconfirmed.  Information includes statistics, EIAB Mission & Goals. Kelly will 
share this info for the High School presentations.  
 
High Schools – Michelle will help Karen with high school presentations to PTOs.  
Monday, August 18th is the new teacher orientation. Michelle will be out of town so 
Mayada will work with Padma to present. New Director of Curriculum will give 
cultural cohesiveness presentation after Padma and Mayada. Michelle will include 
her new cultural connection calendar to her teachers, as well as Teaching 
Tolerance materials.  Cindy has handouts ready for Mayada. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES August 12, 2008  
 
 
Michelle (EIAB) and Padma (TIG) are coordinating training for School 
Administrators.  Working on Professional Development for 52 of District’s 
Administrators.  Dates are: October 22, December 10, March 18, April 22 (locations 
to be announced). They will break into groups, 6 voices – Arab, Jewish, Muslim, 
African, Indian, and Chinese.  

 
There will be two presenters at each workshop. Hopefully next year they can 
include teachers. Possible to include City Administrators/Employees in a similar 
workshop in the future? 

 
VI. New Business 

a. Sterling Heights Diversity Dinner September 18th at Ike’s Family Dining on Van 
Dyke, Sterling Heights. $30/ticket.  
 

b. Cultural Brochures –  
 
Michelle wants us to put together a brochure, “Faces of Troy,” to highlight some 
cultural groups and provide information, customs, religions, stores/restaurants, 
cultural holidays, and history.  
 
Use photos of actual city residents. Example, Arab, Chinese, and Indian. Project 
done by the end of 2008. 

  
VII. Public Comment 

a. Francis Alami: visit, xology.com, he has an article “Bridging Cultural 
Differences.”  Also wrote an article for the Oakland Press, “Understanding the 
Changing needs of the Me Generation.” 
 

VIII. Motion to adjourn 8:05 pm, by Michelle Haight and seconded by Reuben Ellis.  
 
 

  Next Meeting Tuesday,   September 2, 2008 at 7 pm  
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



 

 

 

 

 
August 15, 2008 

 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Beth Tashnick, Customer Solutions Director 
 
SUBJECT:   July, 2008 – Customer Solutions Monthly Report 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Customer Solutions Department was officially established in February of 2008, for the 

purpose of enhancing service provided by the City of Troy.  Customer Solutions is designed to be 
the first point of contact for residents, businesses and visitors to obtain information and 
assistance from the City of Troy. 
 
Our mission is to exceed customer expectations by providing accurate information that is 
communicated in an efficient and effective manner through the integration of people and 
technology. 
 
This report generated on a monthly basis will provide you with service request statistics, trends 
and general Customer Solutions Department updates and information. 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The Customer Solutions Department provides information and assistance to residents, 

businesses and visitors to the City of Troy.  (I – Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the 
community)   

 The Customer Solutions Department provides assistance and support to City of Troy staff.  

(II – Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality 
of live venues) 

 
Options: 
 
 There is no council action requested for this item. 
 
g/my documents/Tashnick/welcome center – customer service & solutions/customer solutions – monthly report – cover memo – 7.08 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



Customer Solutions
500 W. Big Beaver Rd * Troy, MI 48084 * 248-524-3337 * CustomerSolutions@troymi.gov

Customer Solutions - Monthly Report
July, 2008

**Please note:   The following figures include only service requests/inquiries that were received by the Customer Solutions department.  Service 

requests received by other departments directly that were not routed through Customer Solutions are not included in this report.

Total Service Requests/Inquiries:

Requests Resolved:

Requests Unresolved:

Unresolved Detail:

SR 33841 Engineering and DPW are investigating this claim re water damage 

SR 34180 Building Inspection is addressing property maintenance issue

Service Requests/Inquiries Pertaining to Departments:

Assessing 1

Building Inspection 10

City Clerk 27

Community Affairs 7

Customer Solutions 16

Department of Public Works 18

Engineering 2

Finance 1

Fire Department 1

Human Resources 0

Parks and Recreation 9

Police Department 4

Real Estate & Development 0

SOCRRA 0

Treasurer 12

Total

Note:

108

106

2

108

One goal of the Customer Solutions department is to assist other departments by 

resolving caller requests without having to transfer the caller.  For the Month of July, 

2008 we were able to accomplish that goal by 92%.  Of the 108 calls that were 

received by the Customer Solutions department, 100 were resolved without the need 

to be transferred to another department.

1



Customer Solutions
500 W. Big Beaver Rd * Troy, MI 48084 * 248-524-3337 * CustomerSolutions@troymi.gov

Customer Solutions Department Updates:

g/tashnick/welcome center - customer service & solutions/customer solutions monthly report

Customer Solutions, along with a few other departments throughout the city, is using the Hansen 

Service Request System to document interactions with customers.  In order to track our contact 

with customers throughout all departments, Janice Hynes (DPW) and I will be conducting training 

sessions using Hansen to record and track complaints/service request issues.  We have completed 

the procedure and training outline, and planned to begin training sessions in July, 2008.  Due to 

summer vacation schedules we have delayed training classes until September, 2008. 

The number of calls and email to the Customer Solutions department is gradually increasing as 

more residents and visitors find out about our department.  Attached please find an update 

published in the fall edition of Troy Today and we are looking at other vehicles to get the word out.

We have received several email requests from residents taking advantage of our web page contact 

link.  Go to www.troymi.gov/Customer Solutions and take a look.

2



19

City News

Details on displaying temporary signs
The Troy Sign Ordinance allows all types of temporary signs on private property. 

These include signs for homes for sale or rent, land for sale, garage sales, estate 

sales, buildings under construction, political, holiday, and other seasonal signs.

1. Size of Temporary Signs: The maximum size of an individual temporary 

sign must not exceed 6 sq. ft. in area (measured on one side). The total 

aggregate area of all temporary signs on any one site must not exceed 14 sq. 

ft. Temporary signs must not be higher than 42 inches above the ground.  

2. The signs must be placed on private property, with the property owner’s 

permission. 

3. Placement is never allowed in the public street right-of-way (City property). In 

most cases this means that the signs must be located behind the sidewalk. 

In areas where there is no sidewalk, signs cannot be located closer than 

20 feet from the edge of the traveled portion of the roadway.  

telephone pole.  

5. Signs that are placed in the public right-of-way (City property) will be 

removed by the City, and stored for a 48-hour period. If you wish to retrieve 

fee for each sign. Signs not retrieved within 48 hours will be destroyed.  

6. The entire text of the Troy Sign Ordinance can be obtained at www.troymi.
gov/CodeAndCharter/Code/CH085.pdf. Call the Building Department at 

248.524.3344 with questions.

The Customer Solutions Department is coordinated by Beth 

developed to enhance service provided by the City of Troy. The new 

businesses, and visitors to obtain information and assistance from 

the City of Troy.  

We are committed, as always, to achieving the highest level of 

customer satisfaction and will continually strive to create a positive 

and enjoyable experience for our customers as they interact with  

the City of Troy.

February 19, 2008 we have received over 500 requests for service, 

information or assistance.  

White-tailed deer management for the Nature Center
Development in southeastern Michigan has displaced many forms 

of wildlife contributing to higher populations of wildlife in pockets 

of green space throughout suburban and metropolitan areas.  

The white-tailed deer population at the Nature Center has increased 

wildlife and plant life inhabiting the same area. It is important that 

the land be balanced for use by the public and to provide a healthy 

community for all forms of life. 

According to statistics from the Troy Police Department for deer/

car related crashes in Troy in 2005-2006, 25% of the collisions were 

within one mile of the Nature Center.  Aerial surveys were performed 

of 450 acres of land, including the Nature Center’s 100 acres.

In 2005, 42 deer were counted & in 2007, 50 deer were counted.

In 2008, 47 were counted equating to 66.84 deer per sq. mile.

The Michigan Department of Natural Resource biologists 

recommend 15-20 deer per square mile to promote the ecological 

health of natural communities.

In the late 1970s when the Nature Center property was acquired, 

In 1997 deer and plant enclosure cages were installed to save the 

effects of the overpopulation of deer on vegetation. The Nature Center 

has experienced a tremendous growth of invasive plant species, such 

as garlic mustard, the result of over browsing and alteration of forest 

soil by an overpopulation of deer. These changes in plant vegetation 

have a direct result in the decline of ground nesting birds as well.  

•

•

Our web page is ready for your visit at:  

This page has been designed as a virtual service center. The easy-

to-navigate page provides links to City news and events, frequently 

asked questions, service directories, maps, and more. One of the 

highlights is the forms and applications tab. You can access forms 

and applications from all departments in one convenient location.  

From the new page, you can contact the Customer Solutions 

department with a single mouse click and e-mail us with your 

service survey; we would love to hear your comments and 

suggestions. We look forward to hearing from you!

Phone:   e-mail: 

A Customer Solutions Representative is available: 

Over the past few years, nearby residents have expressed concerns 

about the increased deer population and the effect on their properties 

including loss of landscaping and a feeling of diminished safety with 

the deer in their yards.  

Nature Center users have expressed concerns about the health 

and overpopulation of deer and questioning why a management 

plan hasn’t been instituted. Some users have expressed a loss of 

number and proximity of deer to the trails.  

If no action is taken, the herd will likely increase resulting in 

inhumane starvation. City staff has explored various alternatives 

for managing the deer population including:

Culling the herd by a volunteer bow hunt, or professional sharp 

shooters. Deer birth control is impractical due to high cost and 

administering boosters.

rates, chronic wasting disease, and deer homing instinct.  

The number of white-tailed deer at the Nature Center is likely to 

continue increasing. Currently the only control method that exists 

for the deer population at the Nature Center is natural death or deer/

car collisions. Deer management is a tool that can be an effective 

population control to help restore the natural community back into 

balance, and make the Nature Center and its surrounding homes and 

roads a safe environment for the citizens of Troy.

If you support a deer management plan or have concerns on this 

subject, e-mail .

•

•

•

tashnickbl
Highlight

tashnickbl
Highlight



 

 
 
August 8, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

 

SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – July 2008  
 
 
 
 

Background 
 

 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 
BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is Purchasing’s official e-procurement website 
used for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a 
Purchasing goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
 

 

Financial Considerations 
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for one 
(1) GemTrac cassette storage unit, one (1) Fuji camera with case, one (1) Hon desk, 
one (1) Philips pocket memo, one (1) Sony digital camera, one (1) Casio calculator, one 
(1) Nikon FM2 camera, one (1) wooden toboggan, one (1) HP deskjet 3820 printer, one 
(1) HP deskjet 420 printer, one (1) table, one (1) Palm keyboard, one (1) HP designjet 
plotter, three (3) monitor stands, one (1) Nikon EF camera, four (4) Quantum batteries, 
and one (1) lot of handheld radio equipment with accessories that were auctioned on-
line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, on July 3, 2008 and closed on, 
July 21, 2008.   

 

 
 
 

1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



August 8, 2008 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – July 2008  
            
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS    SUB-TOTAL  NET INCOME 

Radio equipment, cameras, toboggan, desk, & etc.         $1,169.58              

     
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:       $1,169.58  

 FEES:   

5% - Radio equipment, cameras, toboggan, & etc. (58.50)   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:          ($58.50)  

Sales Tax +6% (Radio equipment, cameras, & etc):       70.17   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:            $70.17  

                                                         $   1,181.25 

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing department. 

(Chapter 7, Sec 8), no perceived Policy consideration is associated with this item.  
 

Options 
 
 To report final results of July 2008 auctions to the City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line–July 08  

2 of 2 



 

MITN Auctions National Auctions   Auctions Main Menu     HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: ALL   

Reported on 8/1/2008 From: 7/1/2008  To: 7/31/2008 

 

Item ID  Date 

Sale Amount Tax Collected Charge Type of Fee  

Auction Description Seller  

3369 7/21/2008 10.00 0.60 0.50 Sale  Table Bockstanz   

3094 7/21/2008 1.00 0.06 0.05 Sale  Monitor or laptop stands Bockstanz   

3075 7/21/2008 55.00 3.30 2.75 Sale  GemTrac Cassette Storage Unit Bockstanz   

3085 7/21/2008 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  HP Deskjet 420 Printer Bockstanz   

3086 7/21/2008 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  HP Deskjet 3820 Printer Bockstanz   

3421 7/21/2008 15.50 0.93 0.78 Sale  Fuji Camera with Case Bockstanz   

3384 7/21/2008 25.00 1.50 1.25 Sale  DESK - HON Bockstanz   

3381 7/21/2008 13.00 0.78 0.65 Sale  Philips Pocket Memo Bockstanz   

3372 7/21/2008 62.58 3.75 3.13 Sale  HP DesignJet Plotter Bockstanz   

3379 7/21/2008 10.50 0.63 0.53 Sale  Palm Keyboard Bockstanz   

3391 7/21/2008 31.00 1.86 1.55 Sale  Sony Digital Manica Camera Bockstanz   

3373 7/21/2008 207.50 12.45 10.38 Sale  Nikon FM2 Camera Bockstanz   

3371 7/21/2008 61.00 3.66 3.05 Sale  Wooden Toboggan Bockstanz   

3374 7/21/2008 105.50 6.33 5.28 Sale  Nikon EF Camera Bockstanz   

3383 7/21/2008 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Casio Calculator Bockstanz   

3368 7/21/2008 515.00 30.90 25.75 Sale  Radio Equipment - One Lot Bockstanz   

3376 7/21/2008 42.00 2.52 2.10 Sale  Quantom Batteries Bockstanz   

  

 

 

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected date 
range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$1,169.58 $70.17 $58.50 
 

$1,298.25 $58.50 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=7&beginyear=2008&endmonth=7&endyear=2008&sortby=id
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=7&beginyear=2008&endmonth=7&endyear=2008&sortby=Date
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=7&beginyear=2008&endmonth=7&endyear=2008&sortby=Type
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=7&beginyear=2008&endmonth=7&endyear=2008&sortby=Seller
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3369
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3094
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3075
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3085
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3086
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3421
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3384
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3381
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3372
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3379
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3391
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3373
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3371
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3374
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3383
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3368
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3376


campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a













 

 
  
 

 
 
Attached is Judge Kumar’s ruling in favor of the City in the Amber Creek 

East Apartments v. City of Troy lawsuit.  As you may recall, this lawsuit was filed 
on behalf of five tenants in the Amber Creek East Apartment complex, who 
sought to invalidate the administrative search warrants issued by 52-4 Judicial 
District Court Judge Michael Martone and affirmed by 52-4 Judicial District Court 
Judge William E. Bolle.  These administrative search warrants were obtained so 
that the City could comply with the state mandate to conduct inspections of all 
apartment rental units in the City of Troy every two to three years.  The City of 
Troy has also codified this state mandate in Chapter 82-A of the City of Troy 
ordinances.  These inspections are to occur every two to three years, and are 
extremely limited in scope to verify that the apartments meet the minimum health, 
safety, and welfare standards. Administrative search warrants were sought only 
after several notifications and requests for consent were provided to both the 
landlord and also the individual tenants.        

 
The attorney representing the tenants argued that the state statute and 

also Troy’s rental housing inspection ordinance were unconstitutional.  On behalf 
of the City, we responded to these allegations in both the written and also the 
oral argument.  However, Judge Kumar did not rule on that substantive issue, 
and instead ruled in favor of the City because the inspections had already been 
completed.  The attorney representing the tenants filed a Motion for 
Reconsideration on August 18, 2008.  If Judge Kumar denies the request for 
Reconsideration, then an appeal may be filed by the tenants and/or the landlord 
for Amber Creek East Apartments. We will keep you apprised of any new 
developments in this case.         

 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call us. 

To: Members of the Troy City Council  
From: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Date: August 19, 2008 
Subject: Amber Creek East Apartments v. City of Troy  

campbellld
Text Box
         J-05

campbellld
Text Box







  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: August 20, 2008 
SUBJECT: Proposed consolidation and redraft of Municipal Solid Waste and 

Littering Ordinances. 
 

 
 
 
Enclosed for your review is a proposed rewrite of Chapter 16 of the City Code. The 

proposed revisions consolidate provisions that are currently found in Chapter 16 (Municipal 
Solid Waste), Chapter 48 (Litter), and Chapter 88 (Billposting/Littering Section of Nuisance 
Ordinance).  These provisions have been consolidated into one area and reorganized, and 
redundant provisions have been eliminated. Recent revisions to the state statute, the Solid 
Waste Management Act (MCL 324.11502 et. seq.) have also been incorporated into the 
proposed draft ordinance.  These state statutory provisions address the management of yard 
waste.     

 
The proposed revision, in addition to corresponding necessary amendments to 

Chapters 3, 16, 48 and 88 are attached for your review.  Although City Council could 
take action on these proposed revisions as early as the next City Council meeting, it is 
the recommendation of City Administration that these revisions be incorporated into the 
comprehensive revision of the Property Maintenance Code, which is being actively 
undertaken at this time, and should be presented to City Council in the immediate future.  
The consolidation of these revised ordinance provisions into the Property Maintenance 
Code would further the City’s goal of streamlining and reorganizing the Code of 
Ordinances.   

 
Absent further direction from City Council, these ordinance provisions will be 

included into the Property Maintenance Code re-write, rather than presented as a stand 
alone item.  The consolidation of these revised provisions into the Property Maintenance 
Code would further the City’s goal of streamlining, reorganizing, and codifying the City’s 
ordinances.     

 
If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.   

  

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

1 
 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 16 OF THE CODE 
 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as a consolidation of Chapter 48 
(Litter), Chapter 88, Sections 9.13-9.16, and Chapter 16 (Municipal Solid Waste 
and Recycling), and shall completely replace the current provisions of Chapter 16 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Replacement Ordinance 
 

1. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply in this Chapter:  
 

a. Construction Refuse – means rejected, discarded or abandoned 
materials resulting from the alteration, repair, construction, and/or 
demolition of buildings. 
 

b. Garbage – means putrescible waste resulting from the handling, 
preparation, cooking or spoiling of food. The term shall not include 
discarded food from food processing plants, large quantities of 
condemned food products or large quantities of wind fallen fruit 
subject to rapid decomposition. 
 

c. Hazardous Waste –  means a waste, or combination of wastes, 
which because of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical 
or infectious characteristics may cause or significantly contribute to 
an increase in serious irreversible, or incapacitating reversible 
illness or pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human 
health, safety, welfare or to the environment when improperly 
treated, stored, transported, used or disposed of, or otherwise 
managed, however, not to include solid or dissolved materials in 
irrigation return flows or industrial discharges which are point 
sources subject to permits under section 402 of the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act of 1967 as amended, or source, special 
nuclear, or by product material as defined by the Atomic Energy 
Act of 1954. 
 

d. Litter – means refuse, recyclables, rubbish, garbage and all other 



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

2 
 

waste material, except yard waste. 
 

e. Nuisance – means whatever annoys, injures, or endangers the 
safety, health, comfort or repose of the public; interferes with or 
destroys or renders dangerous any street, highway, allows 
accumulation of junk or obnoxious matters on private property; or in 
any way renders the public insecure in life or property.  
 

f. Private premises – means any lot or parcel of land owned or 
occupied by any person whether or not improved with any dwelling, 
house, building, or other structure, whether inhabited or temporarily 
or continuously uninhabited or vacant, and shall include any yard, 
grounds, walk, driveway, porch, steps, vestibule or mailbox 
belonging or appurtenant to any dwelling, house, building, or other 
structure erected thereon. 
 

g. Public place – means any and all streets, sidewalks, boulevards, 
alleys, or other public ways and any and all public parks, squares, 
spaces, grounds, and buildings.  
 

h. Recyclables – shall be defined on an annual basis by the 
Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority, but is 
expected to at least include newspapers, inserts, catalogs, 
magazines, brown paper grocery bags, paperboard, corrugated 
cardboard, telephone books,   clear and brown glass, #1 and #2 
plastics, metal cans, metal lids, pie tins, small metal objects, empty 
metal paint cans and metal aerosol cans, and household batteries. 
 

i. Refuse –means all solid waste including garbage and rubbish but 
excluding recyclables and yard waste. 
 

j. Rubbish – means non putrescible solid wastes consisting of both 
combustible and noncombustible wastes, such as paper, 
household plastic, empty tin cans and glass containers, wood, 
other than tree trimmings, limbs or branches, wood products or 
lumber, paper products, books, magazines, glass, crockery, stone, 
concrete and similar materials.   
 

k. Yard Waste – means biodegradable materials such as leaves, 
grass clippings, vegetable, fruit or other garden debris, shrubbery, 
brush and tree trimmings, tree limbs and branches less than four 
feet in length and two inches in diameter, old potting soil, shredded 
bark, weeds, old flowers, and any other similar items. The term 
does not include agricultural waste, animal waste, roots, stumps, 
treated wood, sludge, or sewage. 

 



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

3 
 

 
 

 
REFUSE AND RECYCLING 

 
2. Refuse – In General. 

 
a. Every owner, tenant or occupant of any building, and the owner of 

any property or use which generates refuse shall provide sufficient 
size containers to hold the accumulated refuse between weekly 
scheduled refuse collections. 
 

b. Containers for refuse must be portable, watertight, vermin-proof, of 
substantial construction, and have handles and a tight-fitting cover. 
  

c. The container must have a capacity of at least ten (10) gallons, but 
not more than thirty-five (35) gallons.  Mechanically lifted carts 
which exceed 35 gallons may be used with prior permission of the 
Public Works Department. 
 

d. Strong, securely closed plastic bags holding up to thirty-two (32) 
gallons of refuse are also acceptable. 
 

e. Cardboard boxes, buckets, bushel baskets, paper bags, paint pails, 
and other similar containers are considered unapproved containers 
and the City may not collect refuse when placed in these 
unapproved containers. 
 

f. For regularly scheduled pick-up, items of refuse, including 
containers filled with refuse, shall weigh less than sixty (60) 
pounds.  In addition, items of refuse shall not exceed three (3) feet 
in length or three (3) feet in girth. 

 

g. Large residential refuse items shall be broken down or 
disassembled and placed in approved containers or securely tied in 
bundles which do not exceed sixty (60) pounds in weight, three (3) 
feet in length, and three (3) feet in girth.  No item shall exceed 60 
pounds. 

 

h. Bulky residential refuse items, such as large appliances or 
furniture, which cannot be broken down or disassembled, shall be 
placed at the curb by 7:00 a.m. on the normally scheduled 
collection day.  For safety reasons, refrigerator or freezer doors 
shall be removed before placing items at the curb.  No item shall 
exceed 250 pounds. 

 



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

4 
 

i. All persons who own, lease or occupy property zoned commercial, 
office, industrial or research may place at the curb up to 4 bags, 1 
container, or 1 cart of refuse per week for collection.  A container 
shall not exceed a thirty-five (35) gallon limit nor weigh more than 
60 pounds.  A cart shall not exceed a ninety gallon limit nor weigh 
more than 250 pounds, and may only be used with prior permission 
of the Public Works Director. 

 

j. No person shall leave any materials that could ignite waste in a 
container or waste collection vehicle. 

 
3. Private Collection and Disposal  

 
a. Hazardous waste shall be the responsibility of the producer, or 

owner thereof and shall not be disposed of within the City.  In 
addition, hazardous waste shall not be stored or transported within 
the City without the written approval of the City Manager or Public 
Works Director.  Written approval will not be granted unless the 
City Manager designates a supervisor who has knowledge of the 
safety measures required to protect the public health and safety 
during the storage, transport, or disposal of hazardous waste. 
 

b. Construction refuse shall be the responsibility of the owner, 
contractor, occupant or other person responsible for construction, 
and the responsible person shall arrange, at their own expense, the 
removal of such construction refuse from the premises within a 
reasonable time after the completion of such construction work. 
 

c. In every case where the owner, occupant or user of any residential 
premises accumulates more than two (2) cubic yards of refuse 
within any one-week period, it shall be the responsibility of such 
owner, occupant, or user to arrange for private collection and 
disposal. 

 
d. If the owner or occupant of property zoned commercial, office, 

industrial or research accumulates more than the allowable limit of 
4 bags or 1 container, or 1 cart per week, as provided in Section 2, 
Subsection h, it shall be the responsibility of the owner or occupant 
to arrange for private collection and disposal.  

 
4. Rejection of Refuse; Tagging of Containers 

 
a. If any refuse is rejected by the City’s waste collector because it 

does not conform to the requirements of this Chapter, the City’s 
waste collector shall give notice to the owner or occupant of the 
premises by placing a tag on the rejected refuse.  The tag shall 



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

5 
 

advise the owner or occupant of the non-conformity and shall 
include a telephone number to call for additional information and 
possible alternatives. 
 

b. If the Public Works Director determines the owner or occupant has 
failed to correct the tagged violation, a special collection of the 
rejected refuse may be completed by the Public Works Director or 
his/ her designee.  The property owner shall be liable for any 
expenses the City incurs to make the special collection. 

 
5. Disturbing Containers. No person, other than the owner of refuse or 

recycling containers or his or her agents, and/or employees or licensees 
of the City shall disturb, remove, or attempt to remove refuse or recycling 
containers or their covers or disturb or remove or attempt to remove the 
contents of such containers or disturb, remove or attempt to remove any 
refuse or recycling not in containers, whether same is on public or private 
property. This section does not apply to police officers or law enforcement 
officials who are lawfully engaged in their duties. 

 
6. Preparation of Recyclables. Recyclables shall be placed in a City of Troy 

approved recycling bin. The bin shall be placed on the opposite side of the 
driveway as the refuse so that it is clearly distinguished from the refuse.  
The bin shall be placed at the curb by 7:00 a.m. on the normally 
scheduled collection day.   

 
7.  Placing at Curb. 

 
a. Refuse and recyclables will be collected Monday through Thursday 

beginning at 7:00 a.m., with the exception of the following legal 
holidays: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, 
Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.  When a holiday 
occurs on a weekday, refuse collection shall be made on the day 
following the regularly scheduled collection day.  If the normally 
scheduled collection day is Thursday, collection shall be made on 
Friday.  
 

b. No refuse or recyclables shall be placed at the curb or street for 
collection prior to 5:00 p.m. on the day preceding the day 
scheduled for collection. 
 

c. After the collection of container contents has been made, the 
empty containers shall be removed from the curb or street as soon 
as possible, but in no case later than twenty-four (24) hours after 
collection of refuse or recyclables has been made. 

 
 



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

6 
 

 
8. Collection Vehicles.   

 
a. Vehicles used for collection, transportation of refuse within or 

through the City shall be water tight, covered, and conform to all 
laws regulating axle and road limitations. 
 

b. The contractor for the City of Troy shall dispose of all refuse 
collected from within the City at the facilities of the Southeastern 
Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority or in a manner 
agreed upon between the contractor and Southeastern Oakland 
County Resource Recovery Authority. 
 

c. The Public Works Director shall designate the route to be taken by 
trucks of haulers of refuse through the City and to the facilities of 
the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority. 

 
9. Burning or Burying Refuse; Prohibited 

 
a. No person shall burn refuse within the City of Troy. 

 
b. No person shall bury refuse within the City of Troy. This prohibition 

does not apply to a person lawfully operating a landfill ,as provided 
in the Solid Waste Management Section of the Natural Resources 
and Environmental Protection Act, Public Act 451 of 1994, MCL 
324.11502, et seq.  

 
YARD WASTE 

 
10.  Disposal. Yard waste shall be disposed of in the following manner: 

 
a. By composting, as further defined in section 11. 

 
b. By participating in City operated yard waste collection program, 

provided all the following requirements are met: 
 

i. Yard waste shall be placed in a container not exceeding 
thirty-five (35) gallons that has a yard waste sticker affixed to 
the can, or thirty gallon yard waste paper bag. Plastic bags 
shall not be used to dispose of yard waste. 
 

ii. A yard waste container or paper bag shall not exceed 60 
pounds in weight.  
 

iii. The yard recyclable container shall be placed at the curb so 
that the yard waste sticker faces the street.  



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

7 
 

 
iv. The yard recyclable container or paper bag shall be placed 

at the curb on the opposite side of the driveway from the 
regular refuse by 7:00 a.m. on the normally scheduled 
collection day. 

 
v. Container(s) marked as yard waste shall not be used to 

collect regular refuse. 
 

vi. The Public Works Director, or his/her designee shall 
promulgate additional rules and regulations for the 
implementation of this section, including the announcement 
of yard waste collection dates each year.  

 
c. By temporarily accumulating the yard waste, provided all the 

following requirements are met: 
 

i. The accumulation shall only occur at property that is zoned 
single family residential, and is a person’s residence or other 
property that the person owns or leases that is contiguous to 
the person’s residence.  
 

ii. The accumulation does not create a nuisance or otherwise 
results in a violation of this ordinance or state law.  

 
iii. The yard waste is not mixed with other types of waste, as 

defined in this ordinance. 
 

iv. No more than three cubic yards are placed on the property 
unless a greater volume has been approved by the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality.  

 
v. Yard waste placed on property on or after April 1 but before 

December 1 is disposed of as provided in subsections a. 
(composting) or b. (yard waste program) within 30 days after 
being placed on the property. 
 

vi. Yard waste placed on property on or after December 1 but 
before the next April 1 is disposed of as provided in 
subsections a. (composting) or b. (yard waste program) by 
the next April 10 after the yard waste is placed on the 
property.  

 
vii. Except as provided in subsection (d), the restrictions of 

Section 12 of this Chapter shall not be deemed to prohibit 
the disposal of yard waste on private premises.  



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

8 
 

 
d. No person shall throw or deposit yard waste on private premises 

owned by another person or on any public place. 
 

e. No person shall burn yard waste within the corporate limits of the 
City. 

 
f. All persons who own, lease or occupy property zoned commercial, 

office, industrial, or research shall be responsible to arrange for 
private pickup or delivery for yard waste and cannot dispose of yard 
waste as described in this section.   

 
11. Composting 
 

a. The restrictions of Chapter 39, Section 39.90.03; Chapter 88, and 
Section 12 of this Chapter shall not be deemed to prohibit 
composting on private property.  

 
b. The construction and maintenance of yard waste composting 

bins/piles shall be permitted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

i. The contents of compost bins/piles may consist of a 
combination of biodegradable material including those items 
listed as acceptable by composting authorities such as the 
Department of Environmental Quality or Southeastern 
Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority.  
 

ii. The contents of compost bins/piles shall not include meats, 
bones, fish, dairy products, vegetable or animal fats, cooked 
foods, carnivorous animal manure, plastics, synthetics, or 
other non-biodegradable material. 

 
iii. Compost bins/piles are not permitted in drainage or utility 

easements. 
 

iv. Compost bins/piles are permitted in rear yards, a minimum 
of three (3) feet from any lot line and fifteen (15) feet from 
any dwelling located on adjacent property. 
 

v. Composting bins/piles are limited in size to a maximum of 3 
feet x 3 feet in area and 3 feet in height. Each parcel is 
limited to a maximum of three (3) bins/piles. 

 
vi. Composting must be maintained in a manner to prevent the 

escape of offensive, unwholesome, or nauseous odor to 
adjacent property and not be an active attraction /refuge for 



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

9 
 

rodents. In addition, there must be adequate screening to 
shield any compost bins/piles from the view of adjoining 
residential properties. 

 
LITTER 

12. Prohibition Against Litter 
 

a. No person shall throw, deposit or sweep litter in or upon any public 
place within the City except in public receptacles or in authorized 
private receptacles for collection. 

 
b. No person shall throw or deposit litter on any private premises within 

the City, whether owned by such person or not, except the owner or 
person in control of a private premises may maintain authorized 
private receptacles in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. 

 
c. The owner or person in control of any private premises shall at all 

times maintain the premises free of litter. This section shall not 
prohibit the storage of litter in authorized private receptacles for 
collection. 

 
13. Use of Waste Receptacles. Persons placing litter in public receptacles or in 

authorized private receptacles shall do so in such a manner as to prevent it 
from being carried or deposited by the elements upon any public place or 
private property. 

 
14. Enforcement - Notice to Abate.   

 
a. The Public Works Director and Director of Building and Zoning are 

jointly charged with the enforcement of the Litter Section of this 
Ordinance.  When any litter accumulates on any private premises, 
the enforcing officer shall notify the owner, person in control, or 
occupant of such private premises to remove the litter within a time 
that is specified in the notice. The time to remove the litter shall not 
to be less than two (2) days nor more than ten (10) days from the 
time the notice is served.  Such notice shall be served as provided 
in section 1.11 of this Code. 

 
b. If the owner, person in charge or occupant of any premises fails to 

remove the litter and abate the nuisance within the time limit stated 
in the notice, the enforcing officer is authorized to enter the 
premises and abate the nuisance by removing the litter and 
clearing the premises.  The cost of abating such a nuisance, plus 
an additional fifteen (15%) percent for overhead and other 
expenses shall be charged to the occupant of the premises, unless 
the home is vacant, which shall result in the expenses being 



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

10 
 

charged to the owner of the premises.  The failure to pay the City 
within 60 days of the billing for the cost of the abatement of the 
nuisance, including the 15% overhead charges, shall result in the 
imposition of a lien for that amount against the private premises, 
and/or the City’s pursuit of any other authorized method of 
collecting debts owed to the City. 

 
15. Municipal Civil Infractions. 
 

a. A violation of any section of this Chapter is a Municipal Civil 
Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the 
City of Troy. 

 
b. Each day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal Civil 

Infraction violation. Sanctions for each violation of said sections shall 
include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive 
orders as authorized by Chapter 100.  

 
Section 3.  Savings 

 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in 
force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not 
be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective 
date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of 
any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 

 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance 
be held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance 
shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 5.  Effective Date 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 

 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 



Chapter 16   Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter  

11 
 

500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on  _________________. 
 
 
                         
                                                  ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 

                                        ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk   



Chapter 16 – Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

 16-1

 
TITLE II – UTILITIES AND SERVICES 

CHAPTER 16 MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING 
 

2.1 Necessity.  Regulations governing the storage, collection, transportation, and disposal of refuse, 
recyclables, yard recyclables, and other rejected, unwanted or discarded waste materials within 
the limits of the City of Troy are necessary to protect the public health and safety. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.2 Definitions. The following definitions shall apply: 
 

(1) Refuse – “Refuse” shall be understood to refer to municipal solid waste excluding 
recyclables and yard recyclables. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(2) Construction Refuse – “Construction refuse” shall mean all unwanted, rejected, 
discarded or abandoned material(s) resulting from the alteration, repair, construction, 
and/or demolition of buildings. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(3) Commercial/Industrial Refuse – “Commercial/Industrial refuse” shall mean the rejected, 
unwanted, discarded or abandoned materials resulting from operations that are 
generally identified with manufacturing, assembling, processing and distributing plants, 
large office buildings, hospitals, and clinics, and other producers of quantities of refuse 
in excess amounts. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(4) Hazardous Waste – “Hazardous Waste” shall mean a waste, or combination of wastes, 
which because of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical or infectious 
characteristics may cause or significantly contribute to an increase in serious 
irreversible, or incapacitating reversible illness or pose a substantial present or potential 
hazard to human health, safety, welfare or to the environment when improperly treated, 
stored, transported, used or disposed of, or otherwise managed, however, not to include 
solid or dissolved materials in irrigation return flows or industrial discharges which are 
point sources subject to permits under section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act of 1967 as amended, or source, special nuclear, or by product material as 
defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954.  

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 



Chapter 16 – Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

 16-2

  
(5) Nuisance – Whatever annoys, injures, or endangers the safety, health, comfort or 

repose of the public; interferes with or destroys or renders dangerous any street, 
highway, allows accumulation of junk or obnoxious matters on private property; or in any 
way renders the public insecure in life or property is hereby declared to be a public 
nuisance. Public nuisances shall include, but not be limited to, whatever is forbidden by 
any provision of Chapter 88 and the common and statute law of this state. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(6) Yard Recyclables – “Yard Recyclables” shall mean grass clippings, leaves, wood chips, 
chipped Christmas trees, small pencil-thin twigs, garden vegetables and fruit, old potting 
soil, Halloween pumpkins, shredded bark, sod, weeds, old flowers, prunings, straw, 
straw bales, play sand, top soil, old mulch, corn husks, and any other similar items.   

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(7) Recyclables – “Recyclables” shall be defined on an annual basis by the Southeastern 
Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority, but is expected to at least include 
newspapers, inserts, catalogs, magazines, brown paper grocery bags, paperboard, 
corrugated cardboard, telephone books, clear and brown glass, #1 and #2 plastics, 
metal cans, metal lids, pie tins, small metal objects, empty metal paint cans and metal 
aerosol cans, and household batteries.   

 
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.3 Duties of Owners, Occupants.  
 

(1) Every owner, tenant or occupant of any building, or any person responsible for 
organizing a gathering place for people for any purpose, shall provide adequate and 
sufficient size clean containers to hold the accumulated refuse between weekly 
scheduled refuse collections. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to burn refuse within the corporate limits of the City. 
  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(3) It shall be unlawful for any person to bury refuse within the corporate limits of the City. 
 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.4 Containers - General.  
 

(1) Every owner, tenant or occupant of any building, and the owner of any property or use 
which generates refuse shall provide sufficient size containers to hold the accumulated 
refuse between weekly scheduled refuse collections. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 



Chapter 16 – Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

 16-3

  
(2) Cardboard boxes, buckets, bushel baskets, paper bags, paint pails, and other similar 

containers are considered unapproved containers and the City may not collect refuse 
when placed in these unapproved containers. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(3) The City may also refuse to collect refuse placed in containers that exceed the size and 
weight limitation or otherwise do not conform to the provisions of this article. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.5 Approved Container Size and Weight.  
 

(1) Containers for refuse must be portable, watertight, vermin-proof, of substantial 
construction, and have handles and a tight-fitting cover.  The container must have a 
capacity of at least ten (10) gallons, but not more than thirty-five (35) gallons.  
Mechanically lifted carts which exceed 35-gallons may be used with prior permission of 
the City Public Works Department. 

 
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 

 
(2) Strong, securely closed plastic bags holding up to 32 gallons of refuse are also 

acceptable. 
  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(3) For regular, scheduled pick-up, item(s) of refuse, including containers filled with refuse, 
shall weigh less than sixty (60) pounds.  In addition, items of refuse shall not exceed 
three (3) feet in length or three (3) feet in girth. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.6 Rejection of refuse, tagging of containers 
 

(1) If any refuse is rejected by the city waste collector because it does not conform to the 
requirements of this chapter, the city waste collector shall give notice to the owner or 
occupant of the premises by placing a tag on the rejected refuse.  The tag shall advise 
the owner or occupant of the non-conformity and shall include a telephone number to 
call for additional information and possible alternatives. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(2) If the City of Troy Department of Public Works determines the owner or occupant has 
failed to correct the tagged violation, the Department of Public Works may make a 
special collection of the rejected refuse.  The property owner shall be liable for any 
expense(s) the city incurs to make the special collection. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.7Disturbing Containers. No person other than the owner of refuse containers or his agents, or 

employees of licensees of the City shall disturb, remove, or attempt to remove refuse containers or 
their covers or disturb or remove or attempt to remove the contents of such containers or  



Chapter 16 – Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

 16-4

 
disturb, remove or attempt to remove any refuse not in containers whether same is on public or 
private property. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.8 Container Maintenance. The refuse containers and contents shall be stored in suitable places 

between collection periods.  The containers shall be inaccessible to vermin, domestic animals, 
and insects, so as to prevent a nuisance.   

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.9 Quantity of refuse collected .  
 

(1) In every case where the owner, occupant, or user of any residential premises 
accumulates more than two (2) cubic yards of refuse within any one-week period, it shall 
be the responsibility of such owner, occupant, or user to arrange for private collection 
and disposal. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 

(2) Commercial/industrial buildings may place at the curb up to 4 bags or cans per week for 
collection.  These cans shall not exceed a thirty-five (35) gallon limit nor weigh more 
than 60 pounds.  If the owner or occupant accumulates more than 4 bags or cans per 
week, it shall be the responsibility of the owner or occupant to arrange for private 
collection and disposal.  

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.10 Preparation of Refuse. 
 

(1) Hazardous waste shall be the responsibility of the producer, or owner thereof and shall 
not be disposed of within the City.  In addition, hazardous waste shall not be stored or 
transported within the City without the written approval of the City Manager or Public 
Works Director.  Written approval will not be granted unless the City Manager 
designates a supervisor who has knowledge of the safety measures required to protect 
the public health and safety during the storage, transport, or disposal of hazardous 
waste. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 

(2) Large residential refuse items shall be broken down or disassembled and placed in 
approved containers or securely tied in bundles which do not exceed sixty (60) pounds 
in weight, three (3) feet in length, and three (3) feet in girth.  No item shall exceed 60 
pounds. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 

(3) Bulky residential refuse items, such as large appliances or furniture, which cannot be broken 
down or disassembled, shall be placed at the curb by 7:00 a.m. on the normally scheduled 
collection day.  For safety reasons refrigerator doors shall be removed before placing 
item(s) at the curb.  No item shall exceed 250 pounds. 

 



Chapter 16 – Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

 16-5

(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 

(4) No person shall leave any materials that could ignite waste in a container or waste collection 
vehicle. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.11 Preparation of Yard Recyclables. 
 

(1) Yard recyclable collection typically runs for 35 weeks, from mid-April through the first week 
in December.  The Public Works Director or his designated representative will announce the 
yard recyclable collection dates each year. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(2) Yard recyclables shall be placed in container(s) not exceeding thirty-five (35) gallons that 
have yard waste sticker(s) affixed to the can.  The yard recyclable container(s) shall be 
placed so that the yard waste sticker faces the street.  The container shall be placed at the 
curb on the opposite side of the driveway from the regular refuse by 7:00 a.m. on the 
normally scheduled collection day.  Thirty (30) gallon yard waste paper bags may also be 
used. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(3) At no time will the City collect yard waste packaged in any other manner, including yard 
waste that is placed in plastic bags. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(4) Container(s) marked as yard recyclables shall not be used to collect regular refuse. 
  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(5) No yard recyclables container shall exceed 60 pounds in weight. 
 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.12 Preparation of recyclables. 
 

(1) Recyclables shall be placed in a City of Troy approved recycling bin.  The bin shall be 
placed on the opposite side of the driveway as the refuse.  The bin shall be placed at the 
curb by 7:00 a.m. on the normally scheduled collection day. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(2) Recyclables may also be placed in an approved container with a recyclables sticker placed 
on it.  The container must conform to all provisions of section 2.4 and 2.5.  The container 
shall be placed so that the sticker faces the street and the container is clearly distinguished 
from regular refuse.  The container shall be placed on the opposite side of the driveway as 
the refuse. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 



Chapter 16 – Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

 16-6

 
2.13.1Disposal of construction refuse – It shall be the duty of the owner, contractor, occupant or other 

person responsible for construction work to arrange, at their own expense, the removal of such 
construction refuse from the premises within a reasonable time after the completion of such  

 construction work. 
 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.14 Placing at Curb. 

 
(1) Refuse, recyclables, and recyclable yard waste will be collected Monday through Friday, 

beginning at 7:00 a.m., with the exception of the following legal holidays: New Year’s 
Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas 
Day.  When a holiday occurs on a weekday, refuse collection shall be made on the day 
following the regularly scheduled collection day.  If the normally scheduled collection day 
is Friday, collection shall be made on Saturday.  

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(2) No refuse shall be placed at the curb or street for collection prior to 5:00 p.m. on the day 
preceding the day scheduled for collection. 

  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
  

(3) After the collection of container contents has been made, the empty containers shall be 
removed from the curb or street as soon as possible, but in no case later than twenty-
four (24) hours after collection of refuse has been made. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.15 Collection of Refuse. 
 

(1) Nothing in this Chapter shall be interpreted to prohibit or deny the owner or producer of 
refuse the right to dispose of their refuse, so long as no provisions of the Code are 
violated. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.16 Collection Vehicles.  Vehicles used for collection, transportation of refuse within or through the 

City shall be water tight, covered, and conform to all laws regulating axle and road limitations. 
  
 (Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.17 Disposal of Refuse. The contractor for the City of Troy shall dispose of all refuse collected from 

within the corporate limits of the City at the facilities of the Southeastern Oakland County 
Resource Recovery Authority. 

 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 
2.18 Routes to be Designated. The City shall designate the route to be taken by trucks of haulers of 

refuse through the City and to the facilities of the Southeastern Oakland County Resource 
Recovery Authority. 

(Rev. 10/15/01) 



Chapter 16 – Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling 

 16-7

 
2.19 Composting 
 
(Rev. 10/15/01) 
 

The restrictions of Chapter 39, Section 39.90.03; Chapter 88, Section 9.13; Chapter 48, Section 
6.101(5), and Section 6.107 shall not be deemed to prohibit composting on private property. 
 
The construction and maintenance of yard waste composting bins/piles shall be permitted 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
(1) The contents of compost bins/piles may consist of a combination of biodegradable 

material including those items listed as acceptable by composting authorities such as 
the Department of Natural Resources or Southeastern Oakland County Resource 
Recovery Authority.  

 
(2) The contents of compost bins/piles shall not include meats, bones, fish, dairy products, 

vegetable or animal fats, cooked foods, carnivorous animal manure, plastics, synthetics, 
or other non-biodegradable material. 

 
(3) Compost bins/piles are not permitted in drainage or utility easements. 
 
(4) Compost bins/piles are permitted in rear yards, a minimum of three (3) feet from any lot 

line and fifteen (15) feet from any dwelling located on adjacent property. 
 
(5) Composting bins/piles are limited in size to a maximum of 3 feet x 3 feet in area and 3 

feet in height. Each parcel is limited to a maximum of three (3) bins/piles. 
 
(Rev. 12/17/01) 
 
(6) Composting must be maintained in a manner to prevent the escape of offensive, 

unwholesome, or nauseous odor to adjacent property and not be an active attraction 
/refuge for rodents. In addition, there must be adequate screening to shield any compost 
bins/piles from the view of adjoining residential properties. 

 
(Rev. 12/17/01) 

 
  
 
 



Chapter 48 - Litter 
 

 1

CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO DELETE  
CHAPTER 48 OF THE CODE 

 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as a deletion of Chapter 48 of the Code of the 
City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 

 
 

CHAPTER 48  LITTER 
 

6.101 Definitions. 
 
 In the interpretation of this Chapter, the following definitions shall apply, except where the context 

clearly indicates that another meaning is intended: 
 
 (1) "Private premises" shall mean any lot or parcel of land  owned or occupied by any person 

whether or not improved with any dwelling, house, building, or other structure, whether 
inhabited or temporarily or continuously uninhabited or vacant, and shall include any yard, 
grounds, walk, driveway, porch, steps, vestibule or mailbox belonging or appurtenant to any 
dwelling, house, building, or other structure erected thereon. 

 
 (2) "Public place" shall mean any and all streets,  sidewalks, boulevards, alleys, or other public 

ways and any and all public parks, squares, spaces, grounds, and buildings. 
 
 (3) "Garbage" shall mean putrescible animal and vegetable wastes resulting from the handling, 

preparation, cooking and consumption of food. 
 
 (4) "Refuse" shall mean all putrescible and nonputrescible solid wastes including garbage, 

rubbish, ashes, street cleanings, dead animals, abandoned automobiles, junk and solid 
market and industrial wastes. 

 
 (5) "Rubbish" shall mean nonputrescible solid wastes consisting of both combustible and non-

combustible wastes, such as paper, wrappings, cigarettes, cardboard, tin cans, yard 
clippings, leaves, wood, glass, bedding, crockery and similar materials. 

 
 (6) "Litter" shall mean garbage, refuse, and rubbish as defined herein and all other waste 

material which, if thrown or deposited as herein prohibited, tends to create a danger to 
public health, safety and welfare. 

 
6.102 Litter in Public Places.  
 

No person shall throw or deposit litter in or upon any street, sidewalk or other public place within the 



Chapter 48 - Litter 
 

 2

City except in public receptacles, or in authorized private receptacles for collection. 
 
 
6.103 Use of Waste Receptacles.   
 

Persons placing litter in public receptacles or in authorized private receptacles shall do so in such a 
manner as to prevent it from being carried or deposited by the elements upon any street, sidewalk 
or other public place or upon private property. 



Chapter 48 - Litter 
 

 3

 
6.104 Sweeping Litter Into Gutters.   
 

No person shall sweep into or deposit in any gutter, street or other public place within the City the 
accumulation of litter from any building or lot or from any public or private sidewalk or driveway.  
Persons owning or occupying property shall keep the sidewalk in front of their premises free of litter. 

 
6.105 Merchants' Duty to Keep Sidewalks Clean.   
 

No person owning or occupying a place of business shall sweep into or deposit in any gutter, street 
or other public place within the City the accumulation of litter from any building or lot or from any 
public or private sidewalk or driveway.  Persons owning or occupying places of business within the 
City shall keep the sidewalk in front of their business premises free of litter. 

 
6.106  Litter on Occupied Private Property.   
 

No person shall throw or deposit litter on any private premises within the City, whether owned by 
such person or not, except the owner or person in control of occupied private premises may 
maintain authorized private receptacles for collection in such a manner that litter will be prevented 
from being carried or deposited by the elements upon any street, sidewalk or other public place or 
upon any private property. 

 
6.107 Owner to Maintain Premises Free of Litter.   
 

The owner or person in control of any private premises shall at all times maintain the premises free 
of litter; Provided, however, that this section shall not prohibit the storage of litter in authorized 
private receptacles for collection. 

 
6.108 Enforcement - Notice to Abate.   
 

The City Superintendent of Public Works is hereby charged with the enforcement of this Chapter.  
No person being the owner or person in charge of or occupant of any private premises shall 
accumulate or permit the accumulation of any litter on the private premises owned, controlled or 
occupied by him in a manner prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter.  When any litter shall be 
accumulated or permitted to accumulate on any private premises in a manner prohibited by this 
Chapter, the enforcing officer shall notify the owner, person in control or occupant of such private 
premises to remove the litter and clear said private premises within a time limited in the notice, such 
time not to be less than two (2) days nor more than ten (10) days from the time said notice is 
served.  Such notice shall be served as provided in section 1.11 of this Code. 

 
 If the owner, person in charge or occupant of any premises notified to abate a nuisance consisting 

of the accumulation of litter on any private premises shall fail to abate the same within the time 
limited in said notice therefor, the enforcing officer is hereby authorized to enter upon such private 
premises and abate said nuisance by removing said litter and clearing said private premises.  The 
cost of abating such nuisance plus an additional fifteen (15%) percent for overhead and other 
expenses shall constitute a lien against the private premises and shall be charged to the occupant 
thereof or to the owner of unoccupied premises, as the case may be.  If not paid within sixty (60) 
days after the bill for such charges is rendered, such charges may be collected as a single lot 
assessment against said premises in the manner provided by the City Charter or in any other 
manner authorized for the collection of debts owed the City. 



Chapter 88 - Nuisances  

 1

CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 88 OF THE CODE 

 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 88 of the Code of the City 
of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 

 
 
 

BILLPOSTING LITTERING 
 
9.13 Deposit of Unwholesome Substances. No person shall, within the limits of the City, by himself or by 

another, throw, place, deposit or leave in the street, lane, alley, public place or private lands, any 
animal or vegetable substance, dead animals, fish, shavings, dirt, rubbish, excrement, filth, unclean 
or nauseous water or liquor, hay, straw, soot, offal, garbage, swill, or any other article or substance 
whatever which may cause any offensive, unwholesome, or nauseous smell, or endanger the 
health of the public.  

 
9.134 Billposting. No person shall himself or by another post, attach, place, print, paint or stamp any 

placard, circular, show bill or advertisement of any description whatever, except such as what may 
be expressly authorized by law, on any street, or sidewalk, or upon any election booth or other 
public place or object, with the exception of legally permitted billboards, in the City, or upon any 
fence, building or property belonging to the City, or upon any telegraph pole, telephone pole, 
electric light pole, or tower, or bridge or curb stone in any public street or alley in the City; provided, 
however, that a service, religious or charitable organization may make application to the Board of 
Appeals for the erection of a sign upon City property, and the Board of Appeals may in their 
discretion grant such application and designate the size, type and place at which said sign is to be 
erected, and shall be removed upon written notice at the discretion of the City Council; provided 
further that the Engineering Department shall first make a recommendation on the location, type 
and size of signs. 

 
 (Rev. 03-26-79) 
 
9.15 Paper, Rubbish. No person shall throw or place, or through insecure fastening, or otherwise, cause 
or suffer to be placed or thrown or to fall in or upon any public street, alley, sidewalk, or other public 
thoroughfare or any public park or private property of the City, any loose paper or other rubbish of any 
nature. 
 
 (Rev. 03-26-79) 
 
9.16 Injurious Substances. No person shall by himself or by another, throw, place, deposit or leave in 
any street, highway, lane, alley, public place or square, or in any private place or premises, any glass, 
broken or unbroken, or any metal, stone, earthenware, tacks, cinders or other substances of a nature likely 
to cause injury to travelers or pedestrians, automobiles, bicycles, or vehicles, or to injure any horse or other 



Chapter 88 - Nuisances  

 2

animal or which might injure, cut or puncture any pneumatic tire. 
 

 
24.   Municipal Civil Infractions 

 
A violation of sections 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.5, 9.9, 9.13, 9.14, 9.15, 9.17, 9.18, 9.20, and 15 of 
this Chapter is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the 
Code of the City of Troy. Each day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal Civil 
Infraction violation. Sanctions for each violation of said sections shall include a fine of not 
more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

 
  (03-01-06) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and according 
to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may 
be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the 
provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever 
shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on  _________________. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

1 

CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 
 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3, Administrative 
Service, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 3, Section 1.141(1), shall be amended as follows: 
 
1.141(1)  A City of Troy Police Service Aide assigned to Road Patrol Duty shall have authority to 

issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to 
believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the 
Troy City Code:  

 
 
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish  
 
Chapter 16:  Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste, and Litter 

 
Chapter 26: Parks - General Regulations  

 
Chapter 29: Cemetery  

 
Chapter 39: Zoning (provisions related to the parking of vehicles)  

 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts  

 
Chapter 48:  Litter 
 
Chapter 75: Pet Shops  

 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  

 
Chapter 90: Animals  

 
Chapter 98.07.01: Hunting  

 
Chapter 98-07.02 Trapping  

 
Chapter 106: Traffic (Provisions related to the parking of vehicles) 

 
 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

2 

 
 
Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6) shall be amended as follows: 
 
1.141(6)  A City of Troy Building Department Inspector shall have authority to issue and serve 

upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, 
and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that 
the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 
Code.  

 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 

   
Chapter 13: Historic Preservation 

   
Chapter 16:  Garbage and Rubbish  
 
Chapter 16: Refuse, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter 

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility 

 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 
 
Chapter 39: Zoning  
 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 

 
Chapter 48: Litter  
 
Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 

 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 

 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 

 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 

 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 

 
Chapter 71: Auto Wash 

 
Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 
 
Chapter 76: Adult Use Businesses Licenses 
 
Chapter 77: Smoking Lounges 

 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 

 
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations  
 
Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement  



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

3 

 
Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings  
 
Chapter 83: Fences  
 
Chapter 85: Signs  
 

Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 

Chapter 93: Fire Prevention (provisions related to building codes)  
 

Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 

 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution  hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or 
amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to 
the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance 
in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after adoption or publication, whichever 
occurs later. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _____________, 2008. 
 
 
 
               ______________________________ 
                                     Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                     _______________________________ 
                                    Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

  


	AGENDA: August 25, 2008
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (July), Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director will present a check in the amount of $450.88 to Ann Comiskey for Troy Community Coalition


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – EcoMotors, 1055 West Square Lake
	C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, 1055 West Square Lake
	C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development (PUD-013) – West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5500 New King)    Section 8 - O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City Council Appointments: Parks & Recreation Board
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations: None (b) City Council Nominations: Historic District Study Committee; Historical Commission; and Liquor Advisory Committee
	E-3 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal League (MML)
	E-4 Troy Racquet Club Owner – Request to Delete Lease Provisions
	E-5 Library Café Space Recommendation
	E-6 Liquor License Ordinance Fees – Chapter 60 Amendment
	E-7 Request to Amend Library Fee Schedule
	E-8 Proposed Amendment to Troy City Code Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Amendment – Proprietary Service Contract CLEMIS Fire Records Management System

	F-5 Sole Known Supplier – Cell Phone Forensics Purchase
	F-6 Application for Transfer of Resort Class C License to Dhammamegha, Inc. – 72 West Maple
	F-7 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival
	F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-30-226-008 – Nemer Troy Place Equities and Troy Place Equities, LLC
	F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-29-151-001 – Somerset Park Apartments, LLC
	F-10 Request for Acceptance of Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and Golfview Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-30-228-002 – Somerset Collection Limited Partnership
	F-11 Troy Daze Festival Parking Services

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731) – September 8, 2008

	G-2 Memorandums:
	Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 Proposed Resolution Authorizing Staff to Draft Information Regarding Ballot Proposal as Requested by Council Member Robin Beltramini

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 4, 2008
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 4, 2008
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Amended/Final – June 11, 2008
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 9, 2008
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – July 15, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 22, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 22, 2008
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 11, 2008
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – August 12, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Customer Solutions Monthly Report – July, 2008
	Purchasing Department/Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – July, 2008

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter from Pat Anlishiv Commending Lifeguards
	Letter of Thanks to Detective Pokley from Dale and Debbie Bise Regarding the Effort and Assistance Received on a Case
	Letter of Thanks to Officer Andy Breidenich from Hannah Mae Russ Regarding the Time Taken to Educate for Daisy Scout Petal

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #08125 – Michigan’s Structural Deficit

	J-5  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Amber Creek East Apartments v. City of Troy
	J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Proposed Consolidation and Redraft of Municipal Solid Waste and Littering Ordinances

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Attorney as Permitted by Council Resolution #2008-07-233

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT

	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 0
	1: 3548100
	2: 3548100

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Assessor, City of Troy



